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DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless otherwise required by the context, the following terms shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Annual General Meeting” or
“AGM”

“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“China IC Fund”

“China IC Fund II”

“China” or “the PRC”

“Company” or “our Company”

“Company Secretary”
“Director(s)”

“EPS”

“Executive Director(s)”

“Extraordinary General Meeting”
or "EGM”

“GDP”

an annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 11 May 2023;

the audit committee of the Board;
the Board of Directors of the Company;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (BEIZR &K EIREZER
BESBHAMRAR]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 2014;
its shareholders include the Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in the Integrated
Circuit Industry Cluster, large-scale state-owned enterprises, certain financial
institutions and private enterprises. It mainly focuses on the manufacturing of
semiconductor wafers and takes into account the upstream and downstream links
covering chip design, package test, equipment and materials etc;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund (Phase Il) Co., Ltd.* (BIZK&K
BEREXKEES _BRMAMR AR, a company established in the PRC on 22
October 2019; its shareholders include the Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in
the Integrated Circuit Industry Cluster, large-scale state-owned enterprises, certain
financial institutions and private enterprises. It mainly invests in the value chain
of integrated circuit industry via equity investment, primarily in integrated circuit
chip manufacturing as well as chip designing, packaging test and equipment and
materials. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and having
made all reasonable enquiry, China IC Fund Il is not an associate of China IC Fund
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules;

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where otherwise required by the context,
references in this annual report to “China” and the “PRC” do not include Taiwan, the
Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 21 January 2005 and, except where otherwise required by the
context, all of its subsidiaries, or its present subsidiaries where the context refers to
the time before it became the holding company of its present subsidiaries;

the Company Secretary of the Company;

the Director(s) of the Company;

earnings per share;

the Executive Director(s) of our Company;

an extraordinary general meeting of the Company;

gross domestic product;



“Grace Cayman”

“Grace Shanghai”

“Group”

“HHGrace”

“HHNEC”

"HKS’

“Hongri”

“Hong Kong”

“Huahong Group”

“Huahong Group Framework
Agreement”

“Huahong Real Estate”

“Huahong Technology
Development”
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DEFINITIONS

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October 1999 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/87 748 8%EH
[R/27]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 20 December 2000 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company. It was deregistered on 3 August 2018;

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where required by the context, with respect
to the period before our Company became the holding company of our present
subsidiaries (or became such associated companies of our Company), the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);
Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/828 7 )
sl AR /A F)), a company incorporated in the PRC on 24 January 2013 and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd. (E/8ZFEYWNECE T AR A A, a
company incorporated in the PRC on 17 July 1997 and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company. It was deregistered on 3 August 2018;

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

Shanghai Huahong Hongri Electronics Co., Ltd. (E/@ZE M4 B E 7 AR A 7)),
previously known as Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd. until 16
December 2021, a company owned as to 51% by Huahong Group and a connected
person of the Company;

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;

Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/B %4 (& E ) R A7), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 9 April 1996 as Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. and renamed as Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. in 1998, and a
significant shareholder of our Company;

the framework agreement dated 31 December 2021 entered into between the
Company and Huahong Group to regulate the sales and purchase transactions and
provision of services between the Group and Huahong Group, its subsidiaries or
associates (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the year ending
31 December 2022;

Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E/8ZFE L E X AER A A, a company
incorporated in the PRC on 28 October 2011 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development;

Shanghai Huahong Technology Development Co., Limited (/8RR AR A
A]), a connected person, a company incorporated in the PRC on 10 May 2010, and
a company 50% held by and consolidated with Huahong Group and 50% held by
HHGrace;
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DEFINITIONS

“Huajin Property Management”

“Huali Integrated”

“Hua Hong Wuxi”

“ICRD”

“Independent Non-Executive
Director(s)”

“INESA”

“Jitong”

“Listing Rules”

“Nomination Committee”
“Non-Executive Director(s)”

“QST”

“Remuneration Committee”

Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (E/8EEWEEEFRAG), a
company incorporated in the PRC on 8 June 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development and a connected person of the Company;

Shanghai Huali Integrated Circuit Corporation (_E/&%E H&ERK E K EEAR R A 7)),
a company incorporated in the PRC on 8 August 2016. Its Shareholders include
Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation, Shanghai Integrated Circuit Industry
Investment Fund Co., Ltd. and China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund
Co., Ltd,;

Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC
on 10 October 2017 and held 51% by the Group. Upon completion of the Capital
Injection Agreement, the registered capital of Hua Hong Wuxi shall increase from
US$1,800 million to approximately US$2,536.85 million and Hua Hong Wuxi remains
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company held as to approximately 22.22%,
28.78%, 20.00%, 20.58% and 8.42% by the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian
Xin, China IC Fund and China IC Fund Il, respectively;

Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Development Center (/85K E K
R LERAT]), a company incorporated in the PRC in 2002 and a connected
person of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022;

the Independent Non-Executive Director(s) of our Company;

INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/BEE (£ B ) BRAQF]), formerly known as INESA
Holding Group (£ /& & & & & (% &) & R 2 &), a state-owned company
incorporated in the PRC in December 1993, and a controlling shareholder of our
Company prior to 17 December 2020;

Jitong is owned by Huahong Group as to 25.14%. To the best of the Director’s
knowledge, information and belief, Huahong Group has the right to appoint four
out of seven directors at the board of Jitong and thus controls the majority of
Jitong’s board composition. Hence, Jitong is an associate of Huahong Group and is
therefore a connected person of the Company;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time;

the nomination committee of the Board;

the Non-Executive Director(s) of our Company;

QST Corporation (/W ERHEERAF]), a company incorporated in the PRC on
13 September 2012 and a connected person of the Company until 1 September

2020;

the remuneration committee of the Board;
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“RMB”

“SAIL”

“SFC”

“SFO”

“Shanghai Awinic”

“Shanghai Huali”

“Shareholders”

“SITRI”

“Stock Exchange”

“Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin”

* For identification purpose only

DEFINITIONS

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;

Shanghai Alliance Investment Limited (£ /& Bt F1#& & & R 2 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 1994, a substantial shareholder of our
Company;

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time;

Shanghai Awinic Technology Co., Ltd. (B8 &E FHITRMHBRRAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 June 2008 whose shares are listed on the STAR
Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 688798);

Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation (/8% M E FA R A 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 January 2010 and a connected person;

holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company;

Shanghai Industrial pTechnology Research Institute (/&FEMAZEF LABR A
7]), a company incorporated in the PRC in May 2013 and a connected person of
the Company;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and
Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin Investment Co., Ltd.* (5 H T SR EEGR A R), a

professional investment company incorporated in the PRC on 19 December 2017,
jointly established by municipal and district-level state-owned enterprises.
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KEY FINANCIALS
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

In 2022, an extraordinary and challenging year, almost all the world’s economies were affected by the continuous
resurgence of the once-in-a-century pandemic, reshaping of the global industry supply chain, and geopolitical
challenges. The semiconductor industry also entered a period of adjustment. Despite many uncertainties in the macro
environment, Hua Hong Semiconductor continued to forge ahead and made continuous improvement in 2022, with its
growth leading the industry. With the advantages of our “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy, the Company stayed committed
to continuous innovation of specialized process technologies and developed core competitiveness of products using
our specialized process platforms, including embedded/standalone non-volatile memory, power device, and analog
& PM. We persisted in our advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” dual-pronged strategy, rapidly penetrated
downstream emerging markets, expanded our markets in automobiles, new energy, Internet of Things, data centers,
etc., continuously providing excellent wafer foundry services and solutions for our global customers.

During the reporting period, the Company'’s revenue hit a record high of US$2,475.5 million, representing an increase
of 51.8% compared to the previous year, and regional revenues from the United States, Europe, Japan, and China
increased significantly. In 2022, we experienced strong demand in our market segments. The Company achieved a
year-on-year increase of more than 100% in annual revenue from automotive electronics and a continual increase in
the number of new products introduced. Meanwhile, the Company made steady progress in the new energy market
and played a significant role in supporting the global industry chain in the wind power/photoelectricity/energy storage
field. Diversified process platforms, abundant customer resources at home and abroad, and a forward-looking and
dedicated capacity arrangement enabled Hua Hong Semiconductor to maintain leading capacity utilization rate in
the industry, despite the downward cycle of the industry. In the year, the overall gross profit margin of the Company
reached 34.1%, representing an increase of 6.4 percentage points compared to the previous year. Profit for the
year was US$406.6 million, representing an increase of 76.0% compared to the previous year; ROE was 15.2%,
representing an increase of 5.5 percentage points compared to the previous year.

As at the end of 2022, Hua Hong Semiconductor had three 8-inch fabs and one 12-inch fab. For the most recent three
years, annual production capacity (8-inch wafer equivalent) increased each year from 2.4852 million to 3.2604 million
and then 3.8627 million, with a CAGR of 24.67%. The existing 12-inch fab was operated at a high level with a monthly
production capacity of 65,000 wafers in 2022. The Company plans to increase its monthly production capacity to
95,000 wafers in 2023 and will start construction of a new 12-inch production line in due course, continuing to improve
its manufacturing capacity and technological upgrading.

As a key part of the global semiconductor industry supply chain, the Company has markets covering the whole
industry, with its strong industry presence. With robust strength in semiconductor manufacturing in China, the Company
won the “20-year Special Contribution Award in China Semiconductor in 2022 China IC Design Achievement Award.”
As a well-known enterprise in Shanghai, the Company worked judiciously in cities to promote regional economic
development in the Yangtze River Delta. Its contribution was recognized by all corners of society. In the year, it won the
“Outstanding Contribution Award for Scientific and Technological Innovation in Pudong New Area” again.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Only with diligent employees will we be able to achieve success in the face of more complicated and fierce
competition. We will continue to strengthen our advantages in various specialized technologies, constantly optimize
product structure in close alignment with market trends, and accumulate new momentum for high-quality development.
New opportunities will be identified from challenges and new prospects will be opened up in a changing environment.
Hua Hong Semiconductor will unswervingly innovate with international vision to create new products for our customers
all over the world and make achievements by establishing development projects in new areas of technology. We
sincerely thank all our employees, shareholders, customers, and friends from all walks of life for their support for and
cooperation with Hua Hong Semiconductor. Let's work together to achieve another year of splendid results.

Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Junjun Tang
President and Executive Director

Shanghai, PRC
30 March 2023

SOWING HOPE,
HARVESTING DREAMS.

This cherry blossom tree was planted by Suxin
Zhang, our Chairman, and Junjun Tang,

our President, along with the management
members at Hua Hong fab on 12 March 2020
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Corporate Culture

Vision
We empower our

customers through
continuous innovation

] | ]
Mission
Creating value for shareholders,

customers and employees through
collaboration, innovation and being

a good corporate citizen
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Disruptive Innovation,
Confidence, Initiative and

Teamwork
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Executive Directors
Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Junjun Tang (President)

Non-Executive Directors
Guodong Sun

Jing Wang

Jun Ye

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Long Fei Ye

Company Secretary
Sui Har Lee

Authorized Representatives
Junjun Tang
Sui Har Lee

Audit Committee

Stephen Tso Tung Chang (Chairman)
Long Fei Ye

Jun Ye

Remuneration Committee

Kwai Huen Wong, JP (Chairman)
Long Fei Ye

Jing Wang

Nomination Committee
Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Long Fei Ye

Website

www.huahonggrace.com

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Legal Advisor

Herbert Smith Freehills
23/F, Gloucester Tower
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal Banks

China Construction Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 900, Lujiazui Ring Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

China Development Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 68, Puming Road
Shanghai, PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation Hong Kong Branch
28/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road, Central
Hong Kong

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
20 Pedder Street, Central
Hong Kong

China Development Bank Jiangsu Branch
No. 232, Middle Jiangdong Road
Nanijing, Jiangsu, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Wuxi Xinwu Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road

Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

China Construction Bank Wuxi High and

New Technology Industrial Development Zone
Subbranch

No. 26, Hefeng Road

Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

China CITIC Bank Wuxi New District Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road

Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

Bank of China Wuxi High and New Technology Industrial
Development Zone Subbranch

No. 140, Wangzhuang Road

Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
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Share Registrar

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Room 2212, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road, Central
Hong Kong

Principal Places of Business

288 Halei Road
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Shanghai, PRC
Postcode: 201203

No. 30, Xinzhou Road
Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
Postcode: 214028

Stock Code

1347

CORPORATE INFORMATION



Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 59, was appointed on 11 March 2016 as the
Chairman and an Executive Director of our Company as well as a member
of and Chairman of the Nomination Committee. He is currently Chairman
and Secretary of the Communist Party of Huahong Group, Chairman of
HHGrace and Hua Hong Wuxi, Chairman of Shanghai Huali, and Director
of Huali Integrated. Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in hi-tech strategic
development, energy strategy research, and the power equipment industry.
Mr. Zhang held various positions, including President of Shanghai Turbine
Co., Ltd., Executive Vice President of Shanghai Electric Power Generation
Group, Chairman of Siemens Gas Turbine Parts Co., Ltd., Executive Director
of Shanghai Electric Group Company Limited, Vice President of Shanghai
Electric (Group) Corporation, Secretary of the Communist Party and General
Manager of Shanghai Jingiao (Holdings) Limited, Chairman and Secretary
of the Communist Party of Shanghai Jingiao Export Processing Zone
Development Co., Ltd., and Deputy Director of both the Shanghai Municipal
Development and Reform Commission and the Administration Commission
of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Tsinghua University with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering
and is a professor-level Senior Engineer.

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 58, has served as the President and Executive
Director of the Company since May 2019. Mr. Tang also serves as President
and Director of HHGrace and Hua Hong Wuxi. Mr. Tang has extensive
experience in the integrated circuit industry and management and possesses
strong coordination and execution ability. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Tang was the Secretary of the Party Committee, Vice President and Executive
Vice President of Shanghai Huali from February 2010 to March 2019. He was
concurrently the President of Huali Integrated from August 2016 to March
2019. During the period from July 2008 to February 2010, Mr. Tang was
the Vice Secretary of the Party Committee, President of Trade Union and
head of administrative and government relationships of HHNEC. Each of
Shanghai Huali and Huali Integrated is a connected person of the Company
as defined by the Listing Rules, and HHNEC was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company prior to its deregistration in August 2018. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Tang successively held various positions, including Associate
Chief Officer of Shanghai Bureau of Instrument and Telecommunications
Industry (/8 EKREMNTESR), Technologist of Shanghai Radio No.17 Factory
(B8 KE+ L) and Technologist of Shanghai Semiconductor Device No.4
Factory (/842 22{FPUER). Mr. Tang graduated from Southwest Jiaotong
University with an Undergraduate’s degree in Business Administration. He
also graduated from China Europe International Business School with a
Master’'s degree in Business Administration. He holds the title of Chief Senior
Economist, and was awarded titles including National May 1st Labor Medal,
National Model Worker, National Outstanding Party Affairs Worker.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Guodong Sun, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 10 December 2020, and is a Director of Hua
Hong Wuxi. Mr. Sun joined China Development Bank in 2000. From 2000 to
2014, Mr. Sun held various positions in China Development Bank, including
Deputy Director of the Human Resources Systems Division, Deputy Director
and Director of the Hubei Branch Human Resources Department, and Vice
Minister and Minister of the Party Committee Organization Department. Mr.
Sun had been the General Manager of the Human Resources Department of
Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd. GERIREERBREEA7]) from December 2014 to
July 2016, and has been the Managing Director of Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd.
since July 2016. Mr. Sun graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in
the PRC with a Bachelor’'s degree in Computer Application and from Central
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC with a Master's degree in
Business Administration.

Ms. Jing Wang, aged 52, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company
since June 2019. She currently serves as President, Deputy Secretary of the
Communist Party Committee and Director of Huahong Group, a Director of
HHGrace and Hua Hong Wuxi, Chairman of Hongri, Executive Director of
Shanghai Huahong Investment Development Co., Ltd., and Director of Hua
Hong International. Ms. Wang has extensive experience in management and
economic development. Ms. Wang was the Division Director of the Industrial
Development Division (Service Industry Development Division) of Shanghai
Municipal Development and Reform Commission, Deputy Director of China
(Shanghai) Free Trade Zone Management Committee (B ( b8 ) B@EE
SABEEZE), the Deputy District Head of Shanghai Pudong New Area,
a full-time Deputy Director at Shanghai Science and Technology Innovation
Centre Development Office (L/8HE#ERHL A/ LEFZIMAZE) and Deputy
Director of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-tech Industrial Development Zone
Management Committee (LM RIS MENEXRAEREZS), etc. Ms.
Wang graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong University with a Bachelor’s degree
in Technical Economics in 1992. She also graduated from Fudan University
with a Master’s degree in World Economics in 2003. She holds the title of
Chief Senior Economist.




Mr. Jun Ye, aged 50, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company
since February 2012, and is a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Ye has more than
20 years of experience in finance and investment. Mr. Ye has successively
held various positions in SAIL, including Manager of the Investment Banking
Division and the Business Development Division, General Manager Assistant
and Deputy General Manager since 1996 and General Manager since May
2018. Mr. Ye is also a Director at Bank of Shanghai, Chairman of Shanghai
Zhaoxin Semiconductor Ltd., Sino Therapeutics Inc. and Sino-US United
MetLife Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Ye obtained a Bachelor's degree
in Industrial and International Trade and a Master's degree in Business
Administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, aged 74, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of our Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Chang has extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He was a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants from 1978 to the end of 2003. Mr. Chang is also a
Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales since January 1983, and he held various positions at Ernst & Young
starting in 1976. He became a Management Committee Member of Ernst &
Young in 1989 and was actively involved in establishing and monitoring the
firm’s internal control and risk management policy and procedures. Prior to
his promotion to Managing Partner of the Professional Services Department,
he was Chairman of Ernst and Young’s audit and advisory business services
for four years. He was a Partner of Ernst and Young and the Chairman of
Ernst and Young China and Hong Kong prior to his retirement in 2003. He is a
member of the Investment Committee of Shanghai Fudan University Education
Development Foundation and Fudan University Education Development
Foundation (overseas). He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China World Trade Center Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600007.SH), and was
formerly an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1359.HK), Kerry Properties Limited (stock
code: 683.HK) and China Life Insurance Company Ltd. (stock code: 2628.
HK). Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Food Science and
Chemistry from the University of London.



Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 71, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of our Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Wong
had served as the PRC Managing Partner of two international law firms for
15 years. Prior to that, he worked for the Lands Department, Department of
Justice and Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government for a total
of 10 years. He was appointed as a Member of Airport Authority Hong Kong,
Hospital Authority, and the Competition Commission from 2011 to 2018. He
was the former Chairman of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre,
the former President of the Law Society of Hong Kong and Inter-Pacific Bar
Association, and the former Chairman of Hong Kong Copyright Tribunal. He
is presently the Chairman of Hong Kong Inland Revenue Board of Review,
and the Independent Non-Executive Director of Vinda International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3331.HK) and NWS Holdings Limited (stock code:
659.HK). Mr. Kwai Huen Wong was formerly a Director of the Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China Qilfield Services Limited. In addition, he is the Honorary Lecturer,
External Examiner, and Professor at The University of Hong Kong, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, City University of Hong Kong, and Hong
Kong Shue Yan University. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Law degree from the
University of London.

Mr. Long Fei Ye, aged 81, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our
Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Ye held various positions in the
Shanghai Municipal Government. Mr. Ye relocated to Hong Kong in 1991 and
served until 1995 as the Chief Executive of the “Shanghai Desk”, which was
a cooperation arrangement between the Shanghai government and Arthur
Andersen & Co. for promoting Shanghai. He then joined Kerry Holdings
Limited in 1995, and served as the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of
Shangri-La Asia Limited from October 2000 to August 2003 and August 2003
to March 2007, respectively. He was an advisor to Shangri-La Asia Limited
from March 2007 to February 2018. Mr. Ye obtained a Bachelor's and a
Master’s degree, both in Physics, from Fudan University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 60, has been appointed as the Secretary of
the Board of the Company since February 2012. Mr. Wang is also an Executive
Vice President of our Company, HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, overseeing
finance, information technology, administration and compliance, listed
company affairs, and overseas human resources. He joined Grace Shanghai
in April 2001 and played a central leadership role in each stage of Grace
Shanghai’s development including the preparation for and implementation of
the merger and the successful initial public offering of the Company. Prior to
joining Grace Shanghai, Mr. Wang worked at LS| Logic Corporation in San
Jose, Silicon Valley, California from August 1995 to March 2001 as the Division
Controller in the Broadband Entertainment Division. Before joining LS| Logic
Corporation, Mr. Wang was employed by Franklin Templeton Investments in
the U.S. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering and
Operations Research from the College of Engineering, University of California,
Berkeley, in the U.S. and a Master of Business Administration degree in
Finance and Banking from the University of San Francisco. In the list of “All-
Asia (Ex-dapan) Executive Team Ranking” published by Institutional Investor,
an authoritative international financial magazine, he was named the “Best
Chief Financial Officer” in the technology/semiconductor industry in 2018,
2019 and 2021.

Senior Management
As at the date of this report, the Company’s senior management includes:

Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 59, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
our Company. For more information about Mr. Zhang'’s profile and academic
background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 58, is the President and Executive Director of the
Company. For more information about Mr. Tang’s profile and academic
background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Heng Fan, aged 61, was an Executive Vice President of our Company
from the end of 2014 to March 2022, and then acted as an advisor to our
Company until his retirement in July 2022.



Mr. Weiping Zhou, aged 56, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, responsible for marketing. Mr. Zhou joined
the Company at the beginning of 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Zhou was the Executive Vice President of Shanghai Belling Corporation
Limited, the General Manager of Ningbo Shanshan Ulica Solar Technology
Developing Company Limited, the General Manager of Shanghai Belling
Microelectronics Manufacturing Company Limited, the Deputy Secretary
to the Communist Party Committee, President, Chief Executive Officer,
Secretary to the Communist Party Committee and Vice President of Advanced
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhou graduated
from East China Normal University with a Bachelor's degree in Solid State
Electronic Technology and subsequently obtained a Master's degree in
Business Administration from Fudan University, and he is a professor-level
Senior Engineer.

Mr. Lihua Ni, aged 54, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, responsible for manufacturing projects
and security management, and is the Factory Director of Fab 7. He joined
HHGrace in May 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lihua Ni successively
worked for Wuxi Huajing Group Co., Ltd. (£5ZE&EE A F]), Shanghai Hua
Hong Microelectronics Co., Ltd.,, HHNEC, acted as a Department Manager
at Shanghai Xinjin Semiconductor Fabrication Co., Ltd., the department head
at HHNEC, and a Deputy Factory Director at Shanghai Huali. Mr. Lihua Ni
graduated from Xidian University with a Bachelor of Engineering degree and
obtained a Master of Engineering degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.
He is qualified as a Senior Engineer.

Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 60, is an Executive Vice President of our
Company, HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, overseeing finance, information
technology, administration and compliance, listed company affairs, and
overseas human resources. For more information about Mr. Wang’s profile
and academic background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Team — Board of Directors”.



Dr. Weiran Kong, aged 59, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, and Hua Hong Wuxi, and is in charge of technology development
and design services. He joined Grace Shanghai in March 2003 and has
over 30 years’ experience in the semiconductor industry, with a proven track
record of driving innovations in the area of NOR Flash, Logic, and embedded
Flash. Before joining Grace Shanghai, Dr. Kong was based in the U.S. and
has worked for Sun Microsystems, Inc., LS| Logic Corporation, and ISSI. He
obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Physics from Nankai University in Tianjin and
graduated with a Master’s degree in Electrical Engineering and a Doctorate
degree in Applied Physics from Oregon Graduate Institute of Science &
Technology in the U.S. Dr. Kong holds 27 U.S. patents, 67 PRC patents and
co-authored over 20 technical papers.

Ms. Sui Har Lee, aged 45, has been serving as the Company Secretary of
the Company since November 2019. Ms. Lee is currently a Partner of Jun
He Law Offices. She has around 15 years of experience in general business
practices and corporate financial transactions, such as assisting corporations
in listing their shares on the Stock Exchange, merger and acquisitions, capital
reorganization, and compliance and regulatory matters in relation to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lee was admitted as a Solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong in 2005. Ms. Lee graduated from City University
of Hong Kong with the degree of Bachelor of Laws and obtained the degree
of Master of Laws from University College London.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company diligently practices good corporate governance and has established corporate governance procedures
that comply with the principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The Company understands the importance of sound corporate governance practices and recognizes the changing
regulatory environment. Therefore, the Company has continually monitored and updated its corporate governance
practices, from implementing the Code and evaluating the effectiveness of its practices to responding to continuous
developments in the regulatory landscape.

Compliance with the Code Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company complied with the Code.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all of the Directors, each of whom has confirmed that they
have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, complied with the required standards set out therein.

Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of managing the business and affairs of the Company. It has
the ultimate responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Company, which is delegated to the Chairman and
management.

The eight-member Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman) and Mr. Junjun
Tang (President); three Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Jun Ye, Ms. Jing Wang and Mr. Guodong Sun; and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP, and Mr. Long Fei Ye.
More details of the Directors are disclosed on pages 12 to 16 of this annual report. The Company publishes and
maintains on its website and on the Stock Exchange website an updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and
functions.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless previously terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or Director’s service contract.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. All Directors are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda for
regular Board meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary to ensure that all Board procedures, rules
and regulations are followed. Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for
inspection on reasonable notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent professional advice,
where necessary, at the expense of the Company.
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The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of the Group and supervising management.
Some functions are reserved by the Board, including, inter alia, the monitoring and approval of material transactions;
matters involving a conflict of interest with a substantial shareholder or a Director of the Company; the approval of
the quarterly, interim and final results; other disclosures to the public or regulators; and the internal control system.
Decisions relating to such matters shall be subject to formal decisions of the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to
the Board and necessary for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to management under the supervision
of the respective Director(s) and the leadership of the Chairman.

The Company has implemented different mechanisms to ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board:

e  Composition of the Board: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had at all times complied
with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

° Independence assessment: Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

e Board decision-making: A Director who has a material interest in any transaction, contract or arrangement
shall not vote (nor shall be counted in the quorum) on any Board resolution approving the same. If a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, such matter shall be dealt with in a Board meeting rather than by a written resolution.

e  Communication between the Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Directors: The Chairman of the
Board values communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors highly and holds meetings with them
at least once each year without the presence of other Directors.

e Remuneration of Independent Non-Executive Directors: Independent Non-executive Directors receive
fixed fees for their role as members of the Board and Board committees. No equity-based compensation with
performance-related elements is granted to the Independent Non-executive Directors to avoid potential bias in
their decision-making or compromise to their objectivity and independence.

e Board evaluation: The Board assesses and reviews the time contributed by each Independent Non-Executive
Director and their attendance at Board and Board committee meetings, so as to ensure that every Independent
Non-Executive Director has devoted sufficient time to the Board to discharge his responsibilities as a Director of
the Company.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms are reviewed on an annual basis. The Board considers
that such mechanisms had been implemented properly and effectively in the year ended 31 December 2022.

The roles of the Chairman and the President are separate. The Chairman is responsible for the overall management
and operations of the Company and for proposing and reviewing the corporate directions and strategies of the
Company. The Chairman is responsible for formulating business strategies and provides leadership to the Board,
ensuring effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner. The Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chairman of the Board highly values
communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors and will hold meetings with them at least once each
year without the presence of other Directors.
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The President is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company’s business and operations as well as
implementation of the Company’s business strategies.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance has been arranged by the Company to cover potential liabilities of Directors and Officers of the
Company regarding legal actions against said Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiaries, arising out
of corporate activities of the Company.

Board Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board held five Board meetings. The attendance record of each Board
member at Board meetings, meetings of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee, as well as the annual/extraordinary general meeting is set out below:

Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting Meeting
Executive Directors
Suxin Zhang 6 N/A 1 N/A 1 1
Junjun Tang 7 N/A N/A N/A 1 2
Non-Executive Directors
Jun Ye gihotel 4 N/A N/A 0 0
Jing Wang 7 N/A N/A 1 1 1
Guodong Sun 7 N/A N/A N/A 0 0
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang 7 3 N/A N/A 1 2
Kwai Huen Wong, JP 7 N/A 1 1 1 2
Long Fei Ye 7 5 1 1 1 2

Note: Suxin Zhang attended the Board meeting on 10 November 2022 as an alternate Director of Jun Ye.

In place of physical meetings, the Board may circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of the
Board except for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest that the Board has
determined to be material, in which case the matter shall be dealt with by a physical Board meeting (rather than a
written resolution) to comply with provision C.5.7 of the Code.

The Board, having considered the attendance records of the Directors, is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient
time performing his responsibilities.
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Continuous Professional Development

Directors shall keep abreast of their responsibilities as Directors and of the conduct, business activities, and
development of the Company.

Under Code Provision C.1.4, the Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
programs to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors were provided with timely updates
on the Company’'s performance, financial position, prospects, and materials on new or salient changes to laws and
regulations applicable to the Group, to enable the Board as a whole and each Director individually to discharge their
duties. Internally-facilitated briefings for the Directors will be arranged in the next financial year and reading material
on relevant topics will be issued to the Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

The participation by each Director in continuous professional development for the year ended 31 December 2022 is
set out below:

Reading related rules and
materials and/or
Name of Director attending training courses

Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Junjun Tang (President)
Jun Ye

Jing Wang

Guodong Sun

Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Long Fei Ye

NSANENENENENENEN

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Ms. Jing Wang, and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in the issues of
determining Executive compensation in public companies. The Board expects committee members to exercise
independent judgement in conducting the business of the committee. The roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights, and compensation payments, and making recommendations
to the Board in connection with the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as the salaries paid by comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group, and the desirability of performance-based remuneration. A copy of the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Remuneration Committee
shall meet at least once a year.

On 11 August 2022, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to discuss the vesting of certain options granted
under the Company’s share option scheme, and resolved to submit a proposal to the Board on the vesting

arrangements for such options.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the Financial Statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Executive Director, Mr. Suxin Zhang, and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Mr. Suxin Zhang. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in the issues of nomination of
directors to the Board. The Company has provided the Nomination Committee with sufficient resources to perform
its duties. The Nomination Committee may seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities. The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, with due regard to the board diversity policy, identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships, assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the President, and monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and review such policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee has established a specific written committee
charter which deals clearly with its authority and duties. A copy of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Nomination Committee shall meet at
least once a year.

On 10 November 2022, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting with the Nomination Committee and discussed
issues such as the Company’s remuneration policy and the competitiveness of the Company'’s salary levels.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), any person appointed as a Director to fill a
casual vacancy of the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting, and any Director appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at the relevant general meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles. The Articles also allow for removal of a
Director by an ordinary resolution.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company, Ernst
& Young, for the provision of audit services and non-audit related services to the Company were US$1.40 million
and US$0.05 million, respectively. Details of significant non-audit related services include tax and risk management
advisory services.

Audit Committee

At least one of the members of the Audit Committee has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee
was a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors within one year immediately prior to the dates of
their respective appointments. All members have appropriate skills and experience in reviewing financial statements
as well as addressing significant control and financial issues of the Company. The Board expects the members of the
Audit Committee to exercise independent judgement and delegates the responsibilities of the corporate governance
functions to the Audit Committee in order to comply with the requirement of the Code.



24 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #ZEfr a2 AR A7) o 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE k&

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Mr. Jun Ye, and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr.
Stephen Tso Tung Chang. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the reviewing of the Company’s financial
reporting system, the nature and scope of the audit review as well as the effectiveness of the system of internal control
procedures and risk management. The Audit Committee is also responsible for making recommendations in relation
to the appointment, reappointment, and removal of the external auditors, and the reviewing and monitoring of the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors. In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by
the external auditors and regulatory bodies to ensure that appropriate recommendations are implemented. A copy
of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held five meetings and all the committee members
were present at the meetings. The major work performed by the Audit Committee with respect to the year ended 31
December 2022 included reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the external auditor, approving the terms
of engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor and the audit plan, reviewing the unaudited quarterly
results announcement, reviewing the unaudited interim report and interim results announcement for the six months
ended 30 June 2022, reviewing the audited financial statements and final results announcement for the year ended 31
December 2022, reviewing the work of the Group’s audit department and assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management and internal control. The Audit Committee also held discussions with management to
ensure that the Company has adequate resources, qualified and experienced staff in the accounting and financial
reporting function, training programs and budget.

Board Diversity
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity will be considered from several aspects,
including without limitation, differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender,
age, and other qualities of the members of the Board, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience, and background on the Board. In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed on the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommended them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board may
seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

The Board believes that, among all measurable objectives, gender diversity is a representative manifestation of Board
diversity. The Company has one female Director, which is in compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that the Company has achieved gender diversity at the Board level and targets to maintain at least the
current level of female representation. In addition to gender diversity, the Remuneration Committee took the view that
the measurable objectives for Board diversity had been achieved to a large extent for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Nomination Committee paid particular attention to the cultural and educational background, professional
and technical experience, and skills of the members of the Board and also reviewed the composition of Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors, so as to ensure appropriate independence within the Board.

The Company will continue to maintain a balance of diverse perspectives on the Board that is appropriate for and
conducive to the Company’s growth.
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Workforce Diversity

As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce (including the Company’s senior management)
was approximately 73% male to 27% female. The Company'’s hiring is merit-based and non-discriminatory. The Board
is satisfied that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in provision A.2.1 of the Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy, which is subject to annual review to ensure its
implementation and effectiveness. Such policy aims to ensure that Shareholders will have equal and timely access to
information about the Company, so as to enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow them
to engage actively with the Company.

A summary of the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is set out below.

The Company provides information to Shareholders through its financial reports (including quarterly, interim and annual
reports), circulars, announcements and other disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange for publication.

To further promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.huahonggrace.com with
information and updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and
functions, constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees, procedures for nomination
of Directors for election, corporate governance practices, financial reports, circulars, announcements and other
information.

Shareholders’ meetings are a primary forum for communication between the Board and Shareholders. The Company
encourages Shareholders to attend and participate in general meetings to ensure a high level of accountability and
to keep them informed of the Company’s goals and strategies. The Chairman of the Board, other Board members,
and the Chairmen of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are
available to answer any questions from Shareholders. Shareholders are given sufficient notice of the meetings, and
detailed voting procedures are included in circulars to Shareholders accompanying the notices of meetings.

In addition to the above, the Company also publishes newsletters through its WeChat public account. Shareholders
can subscribe to the account to obtain the latest news of the Company.

To promote investors’ understanding of the Company’s business, the Company organises roadshows and on-site visits
to its clean rooms and exhibition halls for investors. The Company has also participated in a number of investment
forums and conducted multiple exchanges with securities analysts, fund management companies, and individual
investors through various means.
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In order for the Company to solicit and understand the views of Shareholders and stakeholders, Shareholders and
other stakeholders may make enquiries to the Company through its investor relations contact by email at IR@hhgrace.
com.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy for the
year ended 31 December 2022, including the steps taken at the general meetings, the handling of queries received
and the multiple communication channels in place. The Company is of the view that the policy is effective and has
been properly implemented.

Company Secretary

Ms. Sui Har Lee, the Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are
followed and that the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory, and corporate governance developments relating to
the Company and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the President, plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to Shareholders pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Sui Har Lee attended relevant professional seminars to update her
skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Directors on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company or by such Shareholder(s) who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) (as the case may be) pursuant to sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The objects of the meeting must be stated in the requisition,
which must be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in sections 580 to 583 of the Companies Ordinance for
convening an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings and Directing
Enquiries from Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their written requests, proposals, enquiries, and concerns to the Company for the
attention of Chairman of the Board or the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai 201203, China
Tel: (86) 21 38829909

Fax: (86) 21 50809999

Email: IR@hhgrace.com
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Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Objectives

Risk Management Objective

From a compliance perspective, the Company has implemented the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to ensure the compliance with relevant requirements in a timely manner.

From the perspective of operations, the management team well understands the risks that may be confronted by the
Company as it undertakes future development. Therefore, the risk management objective of the Company is to identify
and assess risks and take appropriate countermeasures to evade a risk entirely, if possible, otherwise to manage these
risks to reduce their impact and keep them under control. The Company has constructed a robust risk control system
working on a continuous basis, established a risk management platform, clarified risk management mechanisms,
improved a risk map, and carried out an annual risk evaluation. We have developed a concise, scientific, practical,
and efficient risk management and control model which complies with regulatory requirements under the Code and is
in line with the Company’s specific evolving circumstances.

Internal Control System Objective

The Company’s internal control system has fully implemented the requirements for a risk management framework as
set out by COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) as well as the guidelines of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for risk management. We refined the three tiers of risk map in the
processes and formed risk-oriented internal control evaluation by considering the Company’s ongoing operational
circumstances and business characteristics. The objective is to evaluate the effectiveness and applicability of our
internal monitoring system and provide reasonable guarantees for the effectiveness of the Company’s operating
activities, the reliability of financial reports, and compliance with laws and regulations.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring System

To ensure our risk management work develops efficiently and forms a long-term mechanism, the Company has
established a risk management monitoring system comprising a “three-line model”. It covers the roles and duties of
many different aspects as follows:

1st Line Business Departments

e  Establish and maintain various departmental risk management mechanisms;
e Ongoing collection of risk data while performing day-to-day department tasks;
e  Continue to carry out risk monitoring and early warning of the department;
Assist in the implementation of the Company’s risk management work, including

providing necessary documents and samples, identify major risks related to the
department, and determine major risk countermeasures;

2nd Line Business Supervision and Administration Departments

e Provide and supplement expertise, play a supportive and supervisory role, help
continuously implement and improve the risk management work; Analyze and report
on the accuracy and effectiveness of risk management;
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3rd Line Internal Audit Level

e Independently inspect and supervise risk management activities conducted by the
Business Departments and the Risk Management Level, and evaluate whether the
Company’s risk management mechanism is implemented effectively and efficiently;

Conduct annual comprehensive risk assessments, based on the risk assessment
results, define the major risk factors and relevant response responsibilities, organize
and guide relevant departments in making response plans for major risks, and follow
up on the implementation of the plans;

e Urge departments or agencies to rectify problems discovered during the auditing and
risk assessment process and monitor the ongoing status of the rectification work;

e  Report the auditing and risk assessment results to the Audit Committee of the
Company.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Statement

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system, as well as ensuring a
review of the system’s effectiveness. The Board designated the Internal Auditing Department to perform the internal
auditing function and granted it full independent responsibility and authority. The internal auditors audited the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system every half year according to the
approved auditing scope and in accordance with the provisions in D.2 of the Corporate Governance Code, and no
material deficiency was found.

Based on audits by the Internal Auditing Department, the Board believes that the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring system is adequate, trustworthy, and effective. However, one must recognize that the Company’s
risk management and internal monitoring framework can only manage rather than completely eliminate risks that may
affect the Company’s ability to accomplish its business objectives. Therefore, it provides a reasonable but not an
absolute guarantee for the avoidance of material misstatement or loss.

With a view to identifying, handling, and disseminating inside information in compliance with the SFO, procedures,
including pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by designated members of management,
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and employees,
identification of projects by code name, and dissemination of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-know
basis, have been implemented by the Group to guard against possible mishandling of inside information within the
Group.

General

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the Company’s financial statements for each financial
period to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair, and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 221 to 228 of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman
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The Board presents the annual report of the Company for 2022 and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company was a pure-play 8-inch and 12-inch wafer foundry as at the end of 2022, with its long-term focus on
the development and application of “8-inch + 12-inch” differentiated specialty technologies, including Embedded/
Standalone Non-Volatile Memory, Power Discrete, Analog & Power Management, Logic & RF, providing wafer
manufacturing services to its customers. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial
Statements (Pages 237 to 238).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Revenue Analysis

Revenue of Hua Hong Semiconductor for 2022 was US$2,475.5 million, representing a significant increase of 51.8%
compared to the previous year. As at the end of 2022, the Company has been profitable for 48 consecutive quarters.
The good performance for the year was mainly due to the continuous optimization of product mix and capacity
expansion of the Company. Despite significant changes in the global semiconductor market environment in 2022,
the Company adjusted its production line arrangements promptly to meet the market demand and carried out active
expansion in automobiles, industrial control, data centers, new energy generation, and new energy application, thus
achieving rapid growth. Due to the gradual implementation of the Company’s “8-inch +12-inch” strategy, the 12-inch
production platform was continuously expanded and supported by the market. With diversified support of advanced
“Specialty IC + Power Discrete” specialized process technology, product quality and performance were widely
recognized by the market. The Company also maintained good results in the traditional consumer market. In 2022,
the Company maintained its business growth in terms of Embedded/Stand-alone memory, discrete, and analog & PM
platforms, which will continue to create value for shareholders and the market in 2023.

Revenue by Service

YoY YoY
2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change
US$’000 %  US$000 % US$000 %
Semiconductor wafers 2,376,659 96.0% 1,561,846 95.8% 814,813 52.2%
Others 98,829 4.0% 68,908 4.2% 29,921 43.4%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%
e In 2022, 96.0% of our revenue was generated from the sale of semiconductor wafers.
Revenue by Customer

YoY YoY
2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change
US$’000 % US$000 % US$000 %

Systems and fabless
companies 2,267,446 91.6% 1,496,782 91.8% 770,664 51.5%

Integrated device

manufacturers (IDMs) 208,042 8.4% 133,972 8.2% 74,070 55.3%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

e QOur revenue from systems and fabless companies accounted for 91.6%.
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Revenue by Geography

YoY YoY

2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change

USs$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

China 1,811,269 73.2% 1,205,149 73.9% 606,120 50.3%
North America 297,683 12.0% 159,281 9.8% 138,402 86.9%
Other Asia 210,610 8.5% 169,227 10.4% 41,383 24.5%
Europe 114,728 4.6% 70,627 4.3% 44101 62.4%
Japan 41,198 1.7% 26,470 1.6% 14.728 55.6%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

° In 2022, North America was our fastest-growing market by revenue, with a year-on-year increase of 86.9% in
revenue.

Revenue by Technology Type

YoY YoY

2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change

US$’000 %  US$'000 % US$000 %

Embedded Non-Volatile Memory (eNVM) 767,568 31.0% 459,104 28.2% 308,464 67.2%
Standalone Non-Volatile Memory (sSNVM) 208,171 8.4% 88,796 5.4% 119,375 134.4%
Discrete 774,638 31.3% 557,893 34.2% 216,745 38.9%
Logic & RF 274,384 11.1% 272,053 16.7% 2,331 0.9%
Analog & Power Management (PM) 448,648 18.1% 250,466 15.4% 198,182 79.1%
Others 2,079 0.1% 2,442 0.1% (363)  (14.9%)
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

° In 2022, eNVM technology continued to grow, with continuous and outstanding growth in the results for MCU
products.

e In 2022, there was a year-on-year increase of 38.9% in revenue from Discrete, which remained the Company’s
largest business segment.
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Revenue by Technology Node

YoY YoY

2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change

Us$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

55nm & 65nm 355,161 14.3% 157,854 9.7% 197,307 125.0%
90nm & 95nm 505,233 20.4% 280,235 17.2% 224,998 80.3%
0.11pm & 0.13um 426,387 17.2% 302,920 18.6% 123,467 40.8%
0.15um & 0.18um 206,733 8.4% 164,260 10.1% 42,473 25.9%
0.25um 15,027 0.6% 22,926 1.4% (7,899) (34.5)%
>0.35um 966,947 39.1% 702,559 43.0% 264,388 37.6%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

e Revenue from 55nm & 65nm technology nodes increased sharply, with a year-on-year increase of 125.0%.

Revenue by End Market

YoY YoY

2022 2022 2021 2021 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

Consumer Electronics 1,599,116 64.6% 1,039,325 63.7% 559,791 53.9%
Industrial & Automotive Electronics 550,342 22.2% 316,194 19.4% 234,148 74.1%
Communications 248,033 10.0% 218,946 13.4% 29,087 13.3%
Computing 77,997 3.2% 56,289 3.5% 21,708 38.6%
Total 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

e All end markets recorded strong growth in revenue in 2022, particularly for Industrial & Automotive Electronics in
74.1% growth.
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Capacity and Capacity Utilization

Fab (In thousands of wafers per month) 2022 2021 YoY Change
Fab 1 65 65 -
Fab 2 60 60 -
Fab 3 53 58 -
Total monthly 8-inch wafer capacity 178 178 -
Fab 7 (12-inch wafer capacity) 65 60 B
Capacity utilization (8-inch wafer equivalent) 107.4% 107.5% (0.1)%

e In 2022, capacity utilization (8-inch wafer equivalent) was 107.4%.

Wafer Shipments
In thousands of wafers 2022 2021 YoY Change

Wafer shipments (8-inch wafer equivalent) 4,087 3,328 22.8%

° In 2022, there was a year-on-year increase of 22.8% in the Company’s wafer shipments.

Research and Development

Hua Hong Semiconductor is committed to research and development (R&D), innovation, and optimization of
differentiated technologies, with a focus on eNVM, sNVM, Discrete, analog & PM, and logic & RF. It continues to
provide customers with well-featured process technologies and services that meet market demand. In 2022, Hua Hong
Semiconductor continued to expand the construction of the “8-inch + 12-inch” production platforms and enriched the
advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” process capability through expansion of the 12-inch production platform.

The technology platform related to eNVM remained one of the main sources of revenue for Hua Hong Semiconductor
in 2022 and was mainly used for smart card IC and MCU. In terms of smart cards, shipments of smart card products
produced using the 90nm embedded flash memory technology, with independent intellectual property rights, remained
stable; the 55nm process was successfully mass-produced; and competitiveness of the eNVM platform remained
at a high level. In terms of MCU, 12-inch embedded flash memory MCUs were mass-produced, and increased
production capacity ensured double-digit growth in both shipments and sales of MCUs for the Company in 2022.
The Company has a rich combination of embedded flash memory processes as well as a good market reputation.
The industry-leading 0.11um and independently-developed 90nm low power and ultra-low leakage embedded flash
memory technology platforms, remained highly recognized in the market and were widely used in general MCU,
Type-C interface control IC, touch control IC, smart meter control IC, and highly reliable Automotive Electronics,
etc. Meanwhile, shipments using the 55nm high-speed MCU embedded flash memory technology platform, with
independent intellectual property rights, increased rapidly. This further improved the richness and the competitiveness
of the process platform and gradually enhanced the ability to provide manufacturing services to customers through
differentiated processes.
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In 2022, continuous growth of new energy power generation and new energy applications, such as electric vehicles,
and the gradual increase in market share of power devices for household appliances, communications, and other
industries, will continue to promote growth of the Company’s power discrete technology platform for a long period of
time. Specifically, the insulated gate bipolar transistor (IGBT) technology platform continued to perform excellently,
with rapid growth for eight consecutive years. The three-digit percentage growth in sales and production of IGBT in the
12-inch fab has greatly eased the problem of capacity constraints. After optimization for large current, high reliability,
small pitch size, etc., IGBT technology showed strong competitiveness in electric vehicle inverters and new energy
power generation. The Company made achievements in 12-inch Super Junction Metal Oxide Semiconductor Field
Effect Transistor (MOSFET) with completion of the production capacity ramp-up and a three-digit growth in annual
shipments. With regard to the specialty new-generation Deep-Trench technology, the Company accumulated valuable
mass production experience and a good reputation among customers, as the technology was widely used in data
center power supplies, charging piles, and new energy on-board chargers (OBCs) for new energy vehicles. In terms
of the overall power device process platform, the Company will carry out development towards smaller pitch size and
lower on-resistance, expand its presence in the automotive electronics market, continuously meet the demand of the
end market, and provide customers with higher quality products and OEM services.

In terms of the BCD (Bipolar-CMOS-DMOS) process platform, the Company continued to achieve strong growth in
2022, with double-digit growth in revenue. The process scope covered low-medium, high, and ultra-high voltage
products. Specifically, the Company achieved rapid production ramp-up of the 12-inch medium-low voltage 90 nm
BCD process platform, which was successfully applied to digital power supplies, digital audio power amplifiers, and
other market segments. In the analog power and motor driver IC applications, using the 8-inch 0.18um and above
medium-low voltage BCD process platforms, the Company maintained double-digit growth, achieving continuous
improvement in market recognition and a technical level matching the industry-leading indicators. In the high and
ultra-high voltage sectors, the Company has a 600-700V BCD process platform for application in lighting control as
well as industrial and household motor driver chips. The process and reliability were continuously improved to meet
future market demand. With changes in automotive electronics architecture and using our advantageous embedded
flash memory and power device technology, the Company developed various integrated BCD processes to meet the
continuous demand for highly integrated and intelligent automotive power management IC.

In addition to the above main technology platforms, Hua Hong Semiconductor continued to expand into new
differentiated technology fields. With greater demands on the volume consumed and performance required for
semiconductor products in smart home devices, wearable hardware, Automotive Electronics, etc., the Company
continuously strengthened research and development of radio frequency, standard memory, and other technology
platforms, which paid off in 2022. In terms of patents, it applied for 654 patents throughout the year and was granted a
total of over 4,100 Chinese and U.S. authorised invention patents. The Company is committed to continuous innovation
and providing customers with a rich selection of specialty technology platforms and extensive IP support.

2022 was a year full of both opportunities and challenges. Despite multiple challenges, the Company achieved all
its production, research, and development targets. As HHGrace persisted in and practiced the advanced “Specialty
IC + Power Discrete” process technology programs for a long time, the Company has maintained steady growth
in results despite significant change in the traditional consumer market. Looking forward to the future, there will be
rapid growth in the application of new energy in the world as well as demand for semiconductors in automobiles
and other industries. The Company’s process research and development will be rapidly oriented towards relevant
fields. In the long run, with the continuous increase in proportion of semiconductors in end-user system products and
further penetration of digitalization and informatization into daily production and life, there will certainly be a long-term
positive trend in global demand for semiconductor components. In 2023, the Company will further expand the phase-|
production capacity in Wuxi and start the phase-Il production capacity construction plan in time to provide the market
with more extensive process capability and production capacity support.
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Outlook

Looking forward to 2023, there will be many uncertainties in the global economic recovery. According to the forecast
by an authoritative institution, the global GDP growth rate is expected to drop to 1.7% in 2023, and the GDP growth
rate of China is expected to increase to 5%. The slowdown in global economic growth and the decline in traditional
consumer demand may become a common challenge for the semiconductor industry in the new year. Despite the
decline in overseas market demand and the accelerated transformation and upgrading of domestic market demand,
Hua Hong Semiconductor actively made plan for emerging new markets including electric vehicles and new energy,
accelerated its activities to meet new these market demands, and maintained the sustained and healthy development
of its business in alignment with the market trends. The Company will further improve competitiveness of the 12-inch
production platform. More abundant and advanced specialty technology, with long-term and continuous strategic
cooperation, including mutual trust with customers, will become the key engine to maintain growth of the Company
in the new year. In terms of production capacity, in order to better meet the long-term demand of the semiconductor
market, the Company will give full support to the “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy, maintain optimization of the existing
8-inch platform, continue capacity expansion of phase-| for the 12-inch platform, and in due course start construction
of the phase-Il production capacity expansion in Wuxi. In terms of products and technical promotion, all fabs of the
Company have been recognized under the IATF16949 quality system. In 2023, the Company will continue to improve
its automotive electronics product lines and seize the market opportunity due to the explosive increase in demand
for semiconductor components in the local automobile market supply chain. The Company will continue to improve
its specialized process technology capabilities, particularly for the embedded flash memory and power discrete
technology platform, with a view to maintain its dominant position and contribute to the Company’s long-term and
sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2022 2021 Change
US$’000 US$'000
Revenue 2,475,488 1,630,754 51.8 %
Cost of sales (1,631,832) (1,179,156) 38.4 %
Gross profit 843,656 451,598 86.8 %
Other income and gains 70,986 60,758 16.8 %
Fair value gain on an investment property 78 183 (57.4)%
Selling and distribution expenses (12,464) (10,673) 16.8 %
Administrative expenses (266,666) (198,920) 341 %
Other expenses (111,360) (165) 67,390.9 %
Finance costs (40,331) (13,226) 204.9 %
Share of profit of associates 12,171 6,765 79.9 %
Profit before tax 496,070 296,320 67.4 %
Income tax expense (89,499) (65,349) 37.0 %
Profit for the year 406,571 230,971 76.0 %
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 449,912 261,476 721 %
Non-controlling interests (43,341) (30,505) 421 %
Revenue

Revenue was US$2,475.5 million, an all-time high and an increase of 51.8% over the prior year, due to increased wafer
shipments and improved average selling price.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales was US$1,631.8 million, an increase of 38.4% over 2021, primarily due to increased wafer shipments and
increased depreciation costs.

Gross profit
Gross profit was US$843.7 million, an increase of 86.8% compared to 2021, mainly due to improved average selling
price and product mix, partially offset by increased depreciation costs.

Other income and gains
Other income and gains were US$71.0 million, an increase of 16.8% compared to 2021, primarily due to increased
government subsidies and interest income.

Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses were US$12.5 million, an increase of 16.8% from 2021, primarily due to increased
labor expenses.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses were US$266.7 million, an increase of 34.1% from 2021, primarily due to decreased
government grants for research and development and increased labor expenses.

Other expenses
Other expenses were US$111.4 million, compared to US$0.2 million in 2021, largely due to foreign exchange loss
versus foreign exchange gain in the previous year.
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Finance costs
Finance costs were US$40.3 million, an increase of 204.9% from 2021, primarily due to increased bank borrowings.

Share of profit of associates
Share of profit of associates was US$12.2 million, an increase of 79.9% from 2021, due to increased profit realized by
the associates.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense was US$89.5 million, an increase of 37.0% compared to 2021, primarily due to increased taxable
profit.

Profit for the year

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, profit for the year increased to US$406.6 million, from
US$231.0 million in 2021. Net profit margin was 16.4%, compared to 14.2% in 2021.

FINANCIAL STATUS

31 December 31 December

2022 2021 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3,367,716 3,116,501 81 %
Investment property 169,363 184,883 (8.4)%
Right-of-use assets 78,425 75,331 41 %
Investments in associates 130,721 122,040 7.1 %
Equity instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income 178,632 257,788 (30.7)%
Other non-current assets 54,794 54,364 0.8 %
Total non-current assets 3,979,651 3,810,907 4.4 %
Current assets
Inventories 578,060 432 917 335 %
Trade and notes receivables 291,856 181,042 61.2 %
Due from related parties 13,006 6,910 88.2 %
Other current assets 182,996 157,935 15.9 %
Restricted and time deposits 1,042 2,248 (53.6)%
Cash and cash equivalents 2,008,765 1,610,140 24.8 %
Total current assets 3,075,725 2,391,192 28.6 %
Current liabilities
Trade payables 236,999 194,385 21.9 %
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 426,756 195,024 118.8 %
Due to related parties 6,096 7,501 (18.7)%
Government grants 37,714 66,837 (43.6)%
Other current liabilities 674,851 616,654 9.4 %
Total current liabilities 1,382,416 1,080,401 28.0 %
Net current assets 1,693,309 1,310,791 29.2 %
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,481,580 1,395,279 6.2 %
Lease liabilities 14,644 16,137 (9.3)%
Deferred tax liabilities 41,268 25,735 60.4 %
Total non-current liabilities 1,537,492 1,437,151 7.0 %

Net assets 4,135,468 3,684,547 122 %
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Explanation of items with fluctuation over 10% from 31 December 2021 to 31 December 2022

Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income decreased from US$257.8 million to
US$178.6 million, primarily due to decrease of fair value and a disposal of equity instruments.

Inventories
Inventories increased from US$432.9 million to US$578.1 million, primarily due to increased customer demand.

Trade and notes receivables
Trade and notes receivables increased from US$181.0 million to US$291.9 million, mainly due to increased revenue.

Due from related parties
Due from related parties increased from US$6.9 million to US$13.0 million, primarily due to increased receivables from
certain of our related parties.

Other current assets
Other current assets increased from US$157.9 million to US$183.0 million, primarily due to increased properties under
development.

Restricted and time deposits
Restricted and time deposits decreased from US$2.2 million to US$1.0 million, primarily due to decreased pledged
deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents increased from US$1,610.1 million to US$2,008.8 million, mainly due to reasons stated in
the cash flow analysis below.

Trade payables
Trade payables increased from US$194.4 million to US$237.0 million, primarily due to increased purchase of materials.

Due to related parties
Due to related parties decreased from US$7.5 million to US$6.1 million, primarily due to decreased trade payables
from certain of our related parties.

Government grants
Government grants decreased from US$66.8 million to US$37.7 million, primarily due to decreased receipts of
government funding.
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Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Total interest-bearing bank borrowings increased from US$1,590.3 million to US$1,908.3 million, due to increased

drawdowns of bank borrowings.

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities increased from US$25.7 million to US$41.3 million, primarily due to increased withholding tax

accrued for dividend distribution.

CASH FLOW
2022 2021 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 750,865 518,471 448 %
Net cash flows used in investing activities (930,156) (863,059) 7.8 %
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 672,177 1,014,640 (33.8)%
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 492,886 670,052 (26.4)%
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,610,140 922,786 745 %
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (94,261) 17,302 (644.8)%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,008,765 1,610,140 24.8 %

Net cash flows generated from operating activities
Net cash flows generated from operating activities were US$750.9 million, an increase of 44.8% from 2021, mainly due
to increased revenue, partially offset by increased payments for materials, maintenance and payrolls.

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities were US$930.2 million, primarily attributed to (i) US$996.2 million for capital
investments, (ii) US$6.7 million for investment in an associate, offset by receipts of (i) US$38.4 million of government
grants, (i) US$28.5 million of interest income, (iii) US$5.7 million of disposal of an equity instrument, and (iv) US$0.1
million of disposal of fixed assets.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were US$672.2 million, including (i) US$514.6 million of proceeds
from bank borrowings, (ii) US$392.0 million of capital contribution from non-controlling interests, (iii) US$11.1 million
of government grants for interest expenses, and (iv) US$6.2 million of proceeds from issue of shares, offset by (i)
US$199.7 million of repayments of bank borrowings, (ii) US$47.3 million of interest payments, (i) US$3.2 million
payment of principal portion of lease payments, (iv) US$0.8 million payments of listing fee, and (v) US$0.8 million
payment of restricted deposits.

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, cash and cash equivalents increased from US$1,610.1 million
as of 31 December 2021 to US$2,008.8 million as of 31 December 2022.
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FINANCIAL RISKS

Interest rate risk

Our exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. Our policy is to manage interest rate risk using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

As at 31 December 2022, if the interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been US$14.5 million lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

We have transactional currency exposures, arising primarily from sales or purchases by our significant subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China in US$ rather than the subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. During the year,
approximately 27% of our sales were denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the subsidiary
making the sale, whilst 71% of costs of sales were denominated in the subsidiary’s functional currency.

In addition, we have currency exposures from interest-bearing bank borrowings, held by our subsidiary operating in
Mainland China. As at 31 December 2022, interest-bearing bank borrowings with a carrying amount of US$1,775.8
million are dominated in United States dollars, other than the subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, if the US dollar had strengthened or weakened against the RMB by 5 percent, with all other
variables held constant, our profit before tax for the year would have been approximately US$60.5 million lower or
higher.

Credit risk

We trade only with recognized and creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is our policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and our exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets is: the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
amounts due from related parties, and restricted and time deposits included in the consolidated statement of financial
position. We have no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

To meet liquidity requirements in the short and long term, our policy is to monitor regularly the current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that we maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions.

Capital management
Our primary objectives of capital management are to safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios to support our business and maximize shareholders’ value.

We manage our capital structure and make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To do this, we may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new shares. We are not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies, or processes for
managing capital during the year.
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Gearing Ratio

Details of the gearing ratio are set out in note 38 to the Financial Statements.

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the state of affairs as at that date are set out in the
Financial Statements on pages 229 to 232 of this report.

Final Dividends

In order to better cater to market demand, enhance the Company’s market position and core competitiveness in the
wafer foundry industry and cope with the changing market environment, the Company is maintaining a stable, prudent,
and responsible policy for our shareholders. Based on the requirements for a sustainable operation and long-term
development, the Board does not recommend payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil). The Company will retain sufficient cash to continue its investment activities, in order to maximize benefits for our
shareholders.

Dividend Policy

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the requirements of law, it has been decided that the Company
will pay dividends to the Shareholders for the year of 2015 and onwards if the Group is profitable, the operations
environment is stable, and there is no significant investment made by the Group. It is intended that the average of
dividends paid in three consecutive years will be no less than 30% of the average distributable net profit of these three
years. The remaining net profit will be used for the development and operations of the Group.

This dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any amount for any given period. In the event that the Board recommends a dividend, the form and amount
will depend on the assessment by the Directors of the factors affecting the Group from time to time.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no distributable reserves available for distribution to our shareholders.
Bank Loans

The particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in note 26 to the Financial Statements.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group’s assets. Please
refer to note 26 to the Financial Statements for further details.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
on page 348. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of additions and other changes during the year ended 31 December 2022 in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment property of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the Financial Statements.

In addition, details of the investment property are set out below:

Gross Floor Area

Location Type of Use Term of Lease Group’s Interest (sgq.m.)
Portions of 9 buildings Industrial use Held under a land 100% 91,563.11
No. 818 Guo Shou Jing Road use right for a term

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park expiring on 8 March 2051

Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

Significant Events After the Reporting Period

There is no significant subsequent event undertaken by the Group after 31 December 2022.



42 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ##

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EasErE NG o 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE ks

Share Capital and Share Option Scheme

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
30 to the Financial Statements. These movements include the automatic inclusion of the amount standing to the share
premium account into the share capital as from 3 March 2014, in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the
New Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the no-par value regime.

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 1 September 2015. A summary of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

Participants:

Maximum entitlement of each Participant:

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised:

The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the Share Option and
the period within which payments or calls
must be made or loans for such
purposes must be paid:

Number of options available for grant as at
1 January 2022:

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
provide incentives to the Participants (defined below), to provide them
with the opportunity to obtain Shares of the Company, and to link their
interests closely to the operating results and share performance of the
Company, with the view to increasing the value of the Company.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Participants”)
include (1) existing Executive and Non-Executive Directors of any
member of the Group; or (2) senior management and key managerial
and technical personnel having a direct impact on the results of
operations and sustainable development of any member of the Group,
subject always to any limits and restrictions specified in the Share
Option Scheme, but shall not include any Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

If the total number of Shares allotted and which may fall to be allotted
upon exercise of all the share options (“Share Options”) granted
and to be granted (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
Share Options) to a Participant in any 12-month period in aggregate
exceeds 1% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time,
no further grant of Share Options shall be given to such Participant.
Share Options may be granted to a Participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period only with the approval
of the Shareholders at a general meeting. No Share Option shall be
granted to any person who holds over 5% of Shares which carry
voting rights on the Grant Date (as defined in the Share Option
Scheme), unless such grant is approved by shareholders at the
general meeting.

Two years unless otherwise stated in the grant notice of the Share
Option.

HK$1.00 is to be paid by each grantee as consideration for the grant
of Share Option within 28 days from the date of proposed offer.

93,944,356

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
seven (7) years commencing on the date of adoption. It has therefore
expired on 1 September 2022. No further options could be granted,
and none has been granted, under the Share Option Scheme from
that date.
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As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
23,438,871 shares, representing approximately 1.79% of the total number of shares in issue.

Share Options Granted under the Share Option Scheme

On 4 September 2015, the Company granted 30,250,000 share options (the “2015 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
30,250,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the 2015
Options are as follows:

Date of grant: 4 September 2015

Exercise price of options granted: HK$6.912

Number of options granted: 30,250,000 (representing 2.31% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022).

Validity period of the options: From 4 September 2015 to 3 September 2022 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive.
Vesting period of the options: One third of the options shall vest on each of 4 September 2017, 4 September

2018, and 4 September 2019.

The exercise price of HK$6.912 per Share represents a premium of 0% over the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$6.87 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (i)
the average closing price of HK$6.912 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the closing price of HK$6.800 per Share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the grant date.

On 24 December 2018, the Company granted 34,500,000 share options (the “2018 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
34,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the 2018
Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 24 December 2018

Exercise price of options granted: HK$15.056

Number of options granted: 34,500,000 (representing 2.64% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022)

Validity period of the options: From 24 December 2018 to 23 December 2025 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive
Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of the Company (together

with Directors), one fourth of the 2018 Options shall vest on each of 24 December
2020, 24 December 2021, 24 December 2022, and 24 December 2023; for the
other employees of the Company, one third of the 2018 Options shall vest on each
of 24 December 2020, 24 December 2021, and 24 December 2022

The exercise price of HK$15.056 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$14.440 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (i) the average closing
price of HK$15.056 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$14.380 per Share as stated
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in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the grant date; and (iv) the
nominal value of the share.

On 29 March 2019, the Company granted 500,000 share options (the “March 2019 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to one individual under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the March 2019
Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 29 March 2019
Exercise price of options granted: HK$18.400

Number of options granted: 500,000 (representing 0.04% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022)

Validity period of the options: From 29 March 2019 to 28 March 2026 (seven (7) years), both dates inclusive

Vesting period of the options: One fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 12 August 2022,
29 March 2023, and 29 March 2024

The exercise price of HK$18.400 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$18.400 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average closing
price of HK$18.176 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$18.220 per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the grant date; and (iv) the
nominal value of the share.

On 23 December 2019, the Company granted 2,482,000 share options (the “December 2019 Options”) to subscribe
for a total of 2,482,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details
of the December 2019 Options are as follows:

Date of Grant: 23 December 2019

Exercise price of options granted: HK$17.952

Number of options granted: 2,482,000 (representing 0.19% of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022)

Validity period of the options: From 23 December 2019 to 22 December 2026 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive
Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of Hua Hong Wuxi, one

fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 23 December 2022,
23 December 2023, and 23 December 2024; for the other employees of Hua
Hong Wuxi, one third of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 23
December 2022, and 23 December 2023

The exercise price of HK$17.952 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$17.260 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (i) the average closing
price of HK$17.952 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$17.200 per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the grant date; and (iv) the
nominal value of the share.
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Among the March 2019 Options, 500,000 share options were granted to the Directors of the Company, subject to their
acceptance.

Details of the movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Name or category of participants

Director
Number of share options Mr. Junjun Tang Other employees Total
Granted at 4 September 2015 - 29,262,000 - - 30,250,000
Granted at 24 December 2018 - - 33,820,000 - 34,500,000
Granted at 29 March 2019 500,000 - - - 500,000
Granted at 23 December 2019 - - - 2,482,000 2,482,000
Cancelled during the year 2015 - -130,000 - - -130,000
Cancelled during the year 2016 - -1,458,000 - - -1,458,000
Cancelled during the year 2017 - -1,353,399 - - -1,353,399
Cancelled during the year 2018 - -754,595 - - -754,595
Cancelled during the year 2019 - -58,000 -1,035,000 -36,000 -1,729,000
Cancelled during the year 2020 - - -993,904 -84,000 -1,276,904
Cancelled during the year 2021 -62,500 - -5,751,868 -592,993 -6,407,361
Exercised during the period - 4,738,332 847,614 59,209 5,645,155
Cancelled during the period - - -530,077 -73,483 -603,560
Lapsed during the period: - - -13,651 -500 -14,151
Qutstanding at 1 January 2022 437,500 4,738,332 22,781,065 1,744,840 29,701,737
QOutstanding at 31 December 2022 437,500 - 21,389,723 1,611,648 23,438,871
Veesting period of share options: From 29 March  From 4 September ~ From 24 December ~ From 23 December
2019 t0 28 March 2015 to 3 September 2018 to 23 December 2019 to 22 December
2026 2022 2025 2026
Exercise period of share options From 29 March ~ From 4 September ~ From 24 December  From 23 December
202110 28 March 2017 to 3 September 2020 to 23 December 2021 to 22 December
2026 2022 2025 2026
Exercise price of share options HK$18.400 HK$6.912 HK$15.056 HK$17.952
Weighted average closing price of
the shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options
were exercised HK$28.29 HK$30.71 HK$30.89

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not adopted any other share option scheme during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 233 to 234 of this report.



46 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ji e
SH2

ARAT o 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE k&

Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions
The Group disclosed in the prospectus dated 3 October 2014 the continuing connected transactions with, amongst
others, Shanghai Huali, Huahong Real Estate and Huajin Property Management. Certain details of such transactions
are summarized in the table below. With respect to such transactions, the Company had applied for and the Stock
Exchange had granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement (as the case may be). Details of such continuing connected transactions of the
Group together with certain other continuing connected transactions conducted during 2022 are set out as follows:

Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction ~ Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2022 Caps 2022
(1) 1 January 2022 Huahong Group (as Huahong Group is a substantial The Company's sale of semiconductor US§17,447,000  US$30,036,000
purchaser) shareholder of the Company. products to Huahong Group, its
subsidiaries and associates, including
The Company (as seller) Hongri and Huahong Zealcore are Hongri, Huahong Zealcore and ICRD,
owned 51% and 93.02% owned by pursuant to the Huahong Group
Huahong Group, respectively. Framework Agreement.
ICRD was regarded by Huahong Group
as its subsidiary during 2022.
) 1January 2022 Huahong Group (as seller)  Huahong Group is a substantial The Company’s purchase of wafers and US§19,247,000  US$25,920,000
shareholder of the Company. chemicals from Huahong Group, its
The Company (as purchaser) subsidiaries and associates, including
Hongri and Huahong Zealcore are Hongri and Huahong Zealcore, pursuant
owned 51% and 93.02% owned by to the Huahong Group Framework
Huahong Group, respectively. Agreement.
(3) 1January 202 Huahong Group (as sevice  Huahong Group is a substantial Provision of (i) foundry services — US$89,000  US$5,179,000
provider) shareholder of the Company. by Shanghai Huali and (i) general
supporting services by Jitong pursuant
The Company (as recipient of - Shanghai Huali is 53.79% owned by to the Huahong Group Framework
service) Huahong Group. Agreement.
Huahong Group controls the majority of
Jitong's board composition.
(4 2 March 2022 SITRI (as purchaser) SITRI'is 80% held by and a subsidiary Sales agreement between the Company — US$344,000  US$1,500,000

The Company (as seller)

of SAIL, the Company's substantial
shareholder.

(as seller) and SITRI (as purchaser) in
relation to the sale of wafers and other
semiconductor products to SITRI.
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Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction  Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2022 Caps 2022
(5) 1 January 2021 HHGrace (as service Hua Hong Wuxi is a non-wholly Service agreement between HHGraceRMB145,000,000 RMB145,000,000
provider) owned subsidliary which is held as to (as service provider) and Hua Hong (approx. (approx.
approximately 20.58% by China IC Wuxi (as recipient of services) in relation US$21,529,000)  US$21,529,000)
Hua Hong Wuxi (as recipient  Fund, a substantial shareholder of the to the provision of corporate services by
of service) Company. HHGrace to Hua Hong Wux.
Accordingly, Hua Hong Wuxi is a
connected subsidiary of the Company.

(6) 25 February 2010 Shanghai Huali (as lessee) ~ Shanghai Huali is 53.79% owned Lease agreement between Shanghai RMB95,809,000 RMB107,000,000
(together with by Huahong Group, a substantial Huali (as lessee) and the Company (as (approx. (approx.
the supplemental ~ The Company (as lessor) shareholder of the Company. lessor) in relation to the factory premise US$14,254,000)  US$16,041,000)
agreements dated situated at Hill 2, 13th street, Zhangjiang
10 June 2011 and Hi-Tech park, Pudong New Area,

25 July 2014) Shanghai, PRC leased by the Company
to Shanghai Huali for their 300mm wafer
production line. The total gross floor area
leased was 96,099.2 square meers.

(7 10 January 2013 Huahong Real Estate (as Huahong Real Estate is a wholly-owned Lease agreement between Huahong RMB11,504,000  RMB12,000,000
(together with lessor) subsidiary of Huahong Technology Real Estate (as lessor) and the Company (approx. (approx.
a supplemental Development, a company 50% held (as lessee) in relation to the dormitory US$1,696,000)"  US$1,799,000)
agreement dated  The Company (as lessee) by and consolidated with Huahong premises situated at Hua Hong
10 June 2014) Group, a substantial shareholder of the  Innovation Park, Nong 2777, Jinxiu Road

Company, and 50% held by HHGrace, East, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, PRC

a wholly-owned subsidiary of the (“Dormitory Premises”) rented by the

Company. Company from Huahong Real Estate for

use as staff quarters for the Company's

employees. The total gross floor area

rented was 17,412.87 square meters.

8) 1 January 2021 Huajin Property Management  Huajin Property Management is a Property management agreement RMB2445000  RMB4,000,000
(as property manager) wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong between Huajin Property Management (approx. (approx.
Technology Development, a company  (as property manager) and the Company ~ US$362,000)  US$600,000)

The Company (as lessee)

50% held by and consolidated
with Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and 50%
held by HHGrace, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

(as lessee) in relation to the engagement
of Huajin Property Management by the
Group to provide property management
services for the Dormitory Premises.
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Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction  Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2022 Caps 2022
9) 7 September 2022 Huahong Real Estate (as Huahong Real Estate is a wholly-owned  Lease agreement between Huahong RMB1,622,000  RMB1,800,000
lessor) subsidiary of Huahong Technology Real Estate (as lessor) and the Company (approx. (approx.
Development, a company 50% held (as lessee) in relation to the dormitory  US$229,000) US$270,000)
The Company (as lessee) by and consolidated with Huahong premises situated at Hua Hong
Group, a substantial shareholder of the  Innovation Park, Nong 2777, Jinxiu Road
Company, and 50% held by HHGrace, East, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, PRC
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the (*Additional Dormitory Premises”) rented
Company. by the Company from Huahong Real
Estate for use as staff quarters for the
Company's employees. The total gross
floor area rented was 7,726.32 square
meters.
(10) 7 September 2022 Huajin Property Management  Huajin Property Management is a Property management agreement  RMB268,000 RMB450,000
(as property manager) wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong between Huajin Property Management (approx. (approx.
Technology Development, a company (as property manager) and the Company ~ US$38,000) US8$67,000)
The Company (as lessee) 50% held by and consolidated (as lessee) in relation to the engagement
with Huahong Group, a substantial of Huajin Property Management to
shareholder of the Company, and 50% provide property management services
held by HHGrace, a wholly-owned for the Additional Dormitory Premises.
subsidiary of the Company.
Notes:
(1) The Group entered into a twenty-year lease with respect to certain dormitory premises from Huahong Real Estate before the

adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16. Thus, the Group are not required to re-comply with the notifiable
or connected transaction Rules. The amount of rent payable by the Group under the lease is US$1,696,000 per year. As at
31 December 2022, the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were US$12,229,000 and US$14,772,000,
respectively.



2022 FEE R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 o T kEe AR A E] HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 49

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The price and terms of the continuing connected transactions as described above were determined in accordance
with the pricing policies and guidelines as set out in the relevant announcements of the Company. The Board (including
the Independent Non-Executive Directors) has reviewed the continuing connected transactions as described above
and confirmed that such transactions did in fact continue in 2022:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions of 2022:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s Board;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention
that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the relevant annual caps disclosed in the relevant announcement(s) with respect to each of the disclosed
continuing connected transactions.

Connected Transactions
The Capital Injection Agreement

On 29 June 2022, the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin, China IC Fund, China IC Fund Il and Hua Hong
Wuxi entered into the Capital Injection Agreement pursuant to which it is agreed that the registered capital of Hua
Hong Wuxi shall increase from US$1,800 million to approximately US$2,536.85 million, where each of the Company,
HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin and China IC Fund Il shall contribute approximately US$177.78 million, US$230.22
million, US$160 million and US$232 million in cash, respectively as capital injection into Hua Hong Wuxi. Upon
completion of the capital injection, Hua Hong Wuxi remains a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company held as to
approximately 22.22%, 28.78%, 20.00%, 20.58% and 8.42% by the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin, China
IC Fund and China IC Fund I, respectively.

Hua Hong Wuxi is a connected subsidiary of the Company given it was held as to approximately 29% by China
IC Fund, a substantial shareholder of the Company, prior to the capital injection. Further, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin
is a connected person at the subsidiary level because it holds 20% of Hua Hong Wuxi as the latter’s substantial
shareholder. Accordingly, each of Hua Hong Wuxi and China IC Fund is a connected person of the Company, and the
transactions contemplated under the Capital Injection Agreement constitute connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Capital Injection Agreement was approved by the Shareholders at the EGM of the Company on 29 August 2022.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 June 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 9
August 2022 for further details of the Capital Injection Agreement.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the related party transactions entered into
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed
in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions” in this annual report, the
other related party transactions disclosed in note 35 were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt
from reporting, announcement, and shareholder approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Performance of the Equity Investments

The table below sets out the breakdown of the performance with respect to the Equity Investments during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Shanghai Huali QST Shanghai Awinic
(USD’000) (USD’000) (USD’000)
[nitial investment cost 229,133 1,704 6,290
Book value at the beginning
of the year 241,242 2,236 14,310
Redemption - - (5,707)
Changes in fair value (48,601) (28) (5,079)
Exchange realignment (18,471) (188) (1,082)
Book value at the end of the year 174,170 2,020 2,442
Dividends received - - -
Gain on disposals - - 1,943
Subscribed capital contribution/
number of shares held RMB1,400,000,000 10,377,050 178,000
Percentage of equity interest held 6.3428% 0.6220% 0.1072%
Size compared to the total
assets of the Company 2.5% 0.0% 0.0%

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed of 350,000 shares of Shanghai Awinic, amounting
US$5,707,000. Decrease in the fair value of the Company’s equity investment in Shanghai Huali, QST, and Shanghai
Awinic were US$48,601,000, US$28,000, and US$5,079,000 respectively.

Shanghai Huali was established in 2010. As an industry-leading IC wafer foundry company, Shanghai Huali has
advanced process technologies and offers comprehensive solutions. It is devoted to providing one-stop wafer foundry
technical services for process technology nodes from 65/55nm to 28/22nm for design companies, IDM companies,
and other system companies. Shanghai Huali has two 12-inch fully-automated wafer fabs in China.

During the financial year of 2022, the book value of the Company’s equity investment in Shanghai Huali decreased
by US$67,072,000, including a decrease of US$48,601,000 in the fair value and a foreign currency statement loss
of around US$18,471,000. Accordingly, the Board is of the view that the performance of Shanghai Huali during the
financial year of 2022 has been in line with its expectations.
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QST was founded in September 2012 and has a robust IP portfolio, with over 83 patents issued. QST is a leading
sensor platform company engaged in the development and marketing of Innovative MEMS sensors and solutions to
simplify advanced perception, measurement, and control in consumer, automotive, and industrial applications.

During the financial year of 2022, the book value of the Company’s equity investment in QST decreased by
US$216,000, including a decrease of US$28,000 in the fair value and a foreign currency statement loss of around
US$188,000. As the business of QST is still in its early development stage, the Board is of the view that the
performance and strategic planning of QST during 2022 have been consistent with its expectations.

Shanghai Awinic, founded in June 2008, is a high-tech company focusing on high-quality and high-performance IC
design of mixed signal, analog, and RF for mobile phone, Al, Internet of Things, automotive electronics, wearables,
and consumer electronics. Shanghai Awinic is a listed company on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

During the financial year of 2022, the Company disposed of 350,000 shares of Shanghai Awinic. The fair
value decreased by US$5,079,000 and there was a foreign currency statement loss of around US$1,082,000.
Notwithstanding the disposal, the Board considers its investment in Shanghai Awinic as part of a long-term strategic
investment, which will see the Group and Shanghai Awinic collaborate in areas such as development of Analog, BCD
(including 12-inch 90nm), eFlash, Power Device, RF and IC technologies, and expansion of production capacity, with
a view to providing more competitive products with higher performance and quality to customers. The Board is of the
view that the performance of Shanghai Awinic during the financial year of 2022 has been in line with its expectation.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the accounting policy of investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9, applicable since 1 January 2018) as contained in the annual report of the Company for the

year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company expects the future prospects of the aforementioned investments to be largely in line with that over the
past year. No significant changes in investment strategy or source of funding are expected for the coming year.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 11 May 2023.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the eligibility of Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 5 May 2023
Closure of register of members 8 May to 11 May 2023 (both dates inclusive)
Record date 11 May 2023

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, unregistered holders of shares should
ensure all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than the aforementioned latest time.
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts
The Directors of the Company during the year and as of the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman)
Mr. Junjun Tang (President)

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Guodong Sun

Ms. Jing Wang

Mr. Jun Ye

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye

Each of the Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to re-nomination
and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless his/her appointment has been early terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.

Mr. Guodong Sun, Mr. Jun Ye and Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang will retire by rotation from office as Directors at the
Annual General Meeting, and Mr. Guodong Sun, Mr. Jun Ye and Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the general meeting has a service contract which is terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the existing Independent Non-
Executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
Profiles of Directors and Senior Management of the Company are set out on pages 12 to 18 of this report.

Remuneration of the Highest Paid Individuals and Directors and Senior Management
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively.
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Interests of the Directors and the Chief Executive in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors or the Chief Executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register kept under section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules.

Number of underlying Approximate

shares held in long percentage

Name of Director Capacity position™ of interests
Mr. Junjun Tang Beneficial owner 437,500 0.03%

Note:

(1) Long position in the underlying shares of the Company under share options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Interests of Directors in a Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors of the Group had any interests in a business which competes, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Company or the Group.

Interests of Directors in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

On 29 June 2022, the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin, China IC Fund, China IC Fund Il and Hua Hong
Wuxi entered into the Capital Injection Agreement. Mr. Guodong Sun, a non-executive Director of the Company, is the
managing director of Sino IC Capital Co., Ltd., the fund manager of China IC Fund and China IC Fund Il. Therefore,
he was considered to have a material interest in the Capital Injection Agreement. Please refer to the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions — Connected Transactions — The Capital Injection
Agreement” for further details of the Capital Injection Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director has or had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2022 or at any
time during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has devised its own code of conduct regarding Directors dealing in the Company’s securities (the
“Company Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made to all the
Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Company Code and the Model Code
throughout 2022.

Indemnity and Insurance

The Company provides directors and officers liabilities (D&O) insurance for the Directors and Officers. The D&O
insurance covers day-to-day management liability and is renewed every year.
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Director(s) of the Subsidiaries

The names of Directors who have served on the boards of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2022, or during the period from the end of the year 2022 to the date of this report, were as follows:

Name of the Subsidiary Place of Incorporation Name of the Director(s)
Grace Cayman Cayman Islands Mr. Suxin Zhang

Mr. Jun Ye
HHGrace Shanghai, PRC Mr. Suxin Zhang

Mr. Junjun Tang

Ms. Jing Wang

Mr. Yuchuan Ma

Mr. Takayuki Morita

Mr. Jun Ye

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye

Hua Hong Wukxi Wuxi, PRC Mr. Suxin Zhang
Mr. Jun Wei
Mr. Junjun Tang
Mr. Guodong Sun
Ms. Jing Wang
Ms. Qi Chen'
Mr. Xin Jin
Mr. Xiaoming Zhu?

Huahong Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. Wuxi, PRC Mr. Weiping Zhou
Huahong Semiconductor Manufacturing (Wuxi) Wuxi, PRC Mr. Suxin Zhang
Co., Ltd.

Global Synergy Technology Limited Hong Kong, PRC Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. CA, USA Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan Ms. Maki Nakamura
Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

Notes:

(1) Ms. Qi Chen’s appointment as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 13 January 2023.

(2) Mr. Xiaoming Zhu's resignation as a director of Hua Hong Wuxi was registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority on 13 January 2023.
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, persons other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, having interests of 5% or
more or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Group, were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of

aggregate

interests in

Number of issued share

Substantial shareholders Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital*

Shanghai Hua Hong International, Inc. Legal and beneficial owner 347,605,650 26.60%

(“Hua Hong International”)®

Huahong Group® Interest in a controlled 347,605,650 26.60%
corporation

Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Legal and beneficial owner 160,545,541® 12.29%

(“Sino-Alliance International”)

Sino-Alliance International Interest in a controlled 28,415,606 217%
corporation

SAIL Interest in a controlled 188,961,147M® 14.46%
corporation

Xinxin (Hong Kong) Capital Co., Limited Legal and beneficial owner 178,705,925 13.67%

Xun Xin (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. Interest in a controlled 178,705,925 13.67%
corporation

China IC Fund Interest in a controlled 178,705,925 13.67%
corporation

Notes:

(1) Long positions in the shares of the Company.

(2) Hua Hong International is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong Group.

(3) Including 3,084 shares held in escrow by Sino-Alliance International pursuant to an escrow arrangement.

(4) SAIL indirectly held interests in the Company through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Sino-Alliance International.

* The percentages are calculated based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2022, i.e.,
1,306,836,740 shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any of the Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2022, no other person or corporation other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 were rights to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries, or

fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases attributable to the Group’s top five suppliers combined were

less than 30% of total purchases, and the turnover attributable to the Group’s top five customers combined was less
than 30% of total turnover.

Emolument Policy

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 6,753 employees. The Group recruits and promotes individuals
based on their merit and development potential. The emolument policy for employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications, and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s

operating results and individual performance. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis are set out in note 8
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

For the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities.

Right of First Refusal

There are no provisions for right of first refusal under the Company'’s articles of association, or the laws of Hong Kong,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.
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Environmental and Social Responsibilities

Environmental, social, and governance factors have been deeply integrated into the Company’s strategy, management,
and long-term development goal and have been involved in the entire process of our business operations. The
Company firmly believes that the effective management of environmental, social, and governance initiatives, which
mutually influence each other, can promote the long-term development of our business, and help create and share
value for all stakeholders.

Detailed information on the environmental, social, and governance practices adopted by the Company in 2022 is set
out in the 2022 Environmental, Social, and Governance Report.

The Company is committed to reducing the negative impact of its operations on the environment through green
products and green production, thereby providing customers with more environment-friendly products. In active
response to the “Dual Carbon” goal, the Company continued to increase investment in energy conservation and
emission reduction and set energy use and greenhouse gas reduction targets to strengthen its ability to address
climate change risk.

In 2022, the Company actively carried out special transformation of safety and environmental protection technology,
and all of its factories were certified by the ISO14001 environmental management system. Moreover, the Company has
made significant progress in the research and development of technologies in the field of new energy. The seventh
generation IGB technology has been successfully developed and applied in mass production and has been deployed
to mainstream new energy vehicles and photovoltaic power generation, providing solid technical support for the
development of green products in the whole value chain.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company is committed to promoting the construction of a sustainable value
chain. In 2022, the Company set an additional goal for ESG management with respect to a sustainable supply chain,
i.e. “a due diligence rate of 100% of suppliers’ conflict minerals and a utilization rate of 100% of compliant minerals”,
so as to strengthen the management of suppliers’ conflict minerals and build up a harmonious industrial ecosystem.

Compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First
Refusal

Huahong Group, SAIL, and INESA, being the then controlling shareholders of the Company, entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) dated 23 September 2014, details of which have been set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”
of the Company’s prospectus dated 3 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”). In addition, Huahong Group and SAIL also
entered into a deed of right of first refusal (the “Deed of Right of First Refusal”’) dated 10 June 2014, details of which
have been set out in the paragraph headed “Right of First Refusal” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus. The Company has reviewed the written declaration from each of the controlling
shareholders mentioned above on their compliance with their undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and
the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) have been complied with by the relevant
parties.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float
under the Listing Rules.

Auditors
A resolution will be submitted at the AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman

30 March 2023
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The Company adheres to the core values of “showing loyalty to and love for the motherland, always keeping the
promise, being diligent and dedicated, and always fulfilling the mission”, insists on the concept of “openness,
innovation and cooperation”, actively promotes industrial exchanges and cooperation, and responds to the
expectations of stakeholders, including customers, employees and investors with substantive actions, so as to jointly
achieve sustainable development.

The Company makes efforts to implement the environment-friendly and sustainable development concept and
comprehensively improves the performance level of its environmental, social, and governance (ESG) responsibility by
providing green products and promoting the application of green technologies.

The Company has a top-down environmental, social, and governance (ESG) structure, under which the Board
undertakes the ESG responsibilities:

a) to direct the formulation of ESG management policies and strategies of the Company and ensure that they are up
to date, relevant, and in compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

b) to direct the identification and determination of the importance of significant ESG issues of the Company;
c) to supervise the setting and implementation of the Company’s ESG goals, including: setting ESG management
performance goals of the Company; monitoring the progress in achieving the goals; and advising on actions

required to achieve the goals;

d) to review and approve the Company’s annual Environmental, Social, and Governance Report and other ESG
related disclosures.

The management and practical progress of ESG issues in this report were considered and approved at the third
meeting of the Board of Directors held in March 2023.
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1 ESG Management System

1.1 ESG Management Structure and Strategies

Based on the corporate vision of “Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global Customers”, the
Company established a top-down ESG management structure, continues to improve the management system,
encourages innovation-driven development and fosters innovative talents, and strives to reduce the impact of business
operation on the environment. We also make efforts to improve the supply chain performance and promote the joint

creation of corporate business value and social value.

The Board, as the highest decision-making body for the Company’s ESG management, is responsible for supervising
the formulation and implementation of ESG goals, guiding and reviewing ESG management strategies and policies,
properly managing the ESG risks that the Company may suffer and taking ultimate responsibility for such risks. The
Board establishes an inter-departmental ESG working group. Under the authorization of the Board, the ESG working
group assists in the implementation of ESG management and regularly reports to the Board on the progress of ESG
key performance indicators, so as to promote the realization of the Company’s ESG management targets.

ESG Management Structure

Decision-making Level

Board of Directors
Management Level

Implementation Level

ESG Working Group

ain | b

General Compliance Internal
Affairs  Department Audit
Department Department

)
&&=

General
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The Company has integrated ESG management into its products, business operations, and corporate
development, and formed a complete ESG management strategy covering the four aspects of “Responsibility

» oo

for Employees”,
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Responsibility for the Industry
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Responsibility for People’s Livelihood”, and “Responsibility for
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ESG Management Strategies

“Heart Felt” Value for Employees Empowering the Future for Global Customers

Responsibility
for the Industry

Responsibility
® Respect for the Value of Employees for Employees

7 {3

® Providing Quality Products

¢ Caring about the Growth of Employees ® Guaranteeing Rights & Interests of Customers
® Protecting Occupational Health ® Booming Industrial Economy

Continuous
Innovation
Empowering the
Future for Global
Customers
“Prosperous” Environment for Society Responsibility “New” Profits for Shareholders
for People’s
® Promoting Green Development Livelihood

Responsibility
for Investors ® Development through Innovation

¢ Utilizing Resources Efficiently ® Consolidate Operations with Integrity

L

® Jointly Promoting Social Harmony ® Sharing the Benefits of China’s Growth
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1.2 Goals and Development of ESG Management

The Company has set goals for water use efficiency, energy use efficiency, GHG emissions, and waste reduction,
based on the development of its business and its ESG performance in operation. The Board of Directors reviews the
ESG performance and the achievement of ESG performance goals of the Company for the previous year on an annual
basis and discloses the results in the ESG report, so as to promote the achievement of ESG performance goals.

In 2022, the Company increased the management targets on the topic of “sustainable supply chain” and clearly set

the due diligence targets for conflict minerals to intensify its management of conflict minerals.

ESG Management Targets and Progress in 2022

Aspect

Target

Progress in 2022

Water resources
management

Energy consumption
management

GHG emissions
management

Waste discharge
management

Sustainable supply
chain management!

The water consumed per unit product (m?
per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will decrease by
12% as compared with 2015

Comprehensive energy consumption per
unit product (MWh per 8-inch wafer) in
2030 will decrease by 7% as compared
with 2015

GHG emissions per unit product (tCO,e
per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will decrease by
12% as compared with 2015

Under the philosophy of lean
manufacturing management, the
Company will take reduction measures
to continuously reduce the hazardous
waste produced per unit product and the
non-hazardous waste produced per unit
product

The due diligence rate on suppliers of
conflict minerals will reach 100%, and the
utilization rate of compliant minerals will
reach 100%

Target achieved ahead of schedule

The water consumed per unit product in 2022
was 2.46m?3 per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by
23% as compared with 2015

Target achieved ahead of schedule
Comprehensive energy consumption per unit
product in 2022 was 0.25 MWh per 8-inch
wafer, decreasing by 33% as compared with
2015

Target achieved ahead of schedule

GHG emissions per unit product in 2022 was
0.12 tCO,e per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by
52% as compared with 2015

Target achieved

e The hazardous waste produced per unit
product in 2022 was 4.88 kg per 8-inch
wafer, decreasing by 2% as compared
with 2021

e The non-hazardous waste produced
per unit product in 2022 was 2.36 kg
per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by 8% as
compared with 2021

Target achieved

e Have conducted due diligence on
suppliers of “conflict minerals” , with a
coverage rate of 100%, and completed
the latest version of the investigation
report on conflict minerals and extended
minerals

e According to due diligence, all suppliers
are found to use compliant raw materials,
with the utilization rate of compliant
minerals up to 100%

1 The sustainable supply chain management target is a newly added target in 2022
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Social Recognitions in 2022

No.

Honors

@ N O OB

11

National

2022 National May Day Labor Award Certificate

2022 China IC Design Achievement Award: China Semiconductor Special Contribution Award for 20
Years

2021 Excellent (Process) Solution Award for High-Reliability MCUs

Shanghai

2022 Shanghai Worker Pioneer

2022 Shanghai March 8 Red Flag Collective

Shanghai “13th Five-Year Plan” Advanced Collective for Energy Conservation

Quality and Technology Award of Shanghai Association for Quality

2021 Outstanding Contribution Award for Scientific and Technological Innovation in Pudong New Area
Jiangsu Province

Jiangsu May Day Labor Award Certificate

Jiangsu Worker Pioneer

Wuxi Worker Pioneer
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1.3 Involvement of Stakeholders

Based on the business and operational characteristics of our Company and leveraging the experience and practices
in industry at home and abroad, Hua Hong Semiconductor has determined the following to be our stakeholders: our
shareholders, customers, employees, government agencies and regulators, partners, communities, and the public, and
actively communicates with all of these stakeholders via various channels and methods, including websites, media,

meetings, reports, and social activities.

Communications and Issues of Concern of Stakeholders

Key stakeholders

Description

Issues concerned

Communications and
responses

Shareholders and
senior management

Customers

Employees

Government and
regulators

Partners

Communities and
the public

Domestic and foreign
investors holding equity

and debt investments in

our Company, and senior
management members of the
Company

IDMs and fabless
semiconductor companies

Our employees and contract
personnel who serve our
Company on a continuous
basis

Manufacturing, tax,
environmental protection,
security and other
departments, local
governments, SFC and other
governmental or regulatory
authorities

Suppliers, research
institutions, industry
associations, etc.

Communities in which we
operate, the public and
media, etc.

Compliant operation, risk
management, anti-corruption,
customer relationship
management, water resource
management

Data security and privacy
protection, product quality
and safety, customer
relationship management,
R&D innovation

Employee interests and
welfares, employee health
and safety, employee
development and training

Compliant operation,
green products, emissions
management and energy
management

Industry development,
product quality and safety,
customer relationship
management, R&D
innovation, sustainable supply
chain management

Green products, emissions
management, community and
public benefit

Shareholders’ meetings,
financial reports, performance
reports, results road shows,
etc.

Product exhibitions, customer
research, technical seminars,
B2B (such as E-tapeout
systems, WIP report and WAT
report, etc.), customer service
hotlines, and customer
satisfaction surveys, etc.

Employee activities, employee
representatives congress,
intranet, employee trainings,
self-service systems,
employee manuals, internal
publications, etc.

On-site visit, policy
enforcement, information
disclosure, etc.

Public tender conferences,
strategic cooperation
negotiations, exchanges and
visits, etc.

Community activities,
employee volunteer activities,
public welfare activities,
social cause campaigns, etc.
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In accordance with the Environmental, Social, and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Sustainability Reporting Standards of Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”), the
Company identified 19 substantial issues in 2022 based on the concerns of internal and external stakeholders, policy
research, and peer benchmark analysis.

Identification &

screening

~

In accordance with
the ESG Guide and
the GRI
Sustainability
Reporting
Standards, conduct
in-depth
interpretation on
laws, regulations
and policies,
industry policies,
corporate strategies
and operation
directions, and the
Company’s ESG
concepts and
policies

ubIH

sieployayels 0] souepodu)

Analysis Process of Substantive Issues

Assessment arid
ranking

~

Based on the
research findings of
domestic and
overseas peer
companies and
expert opinions, the
Company conducts
comprehensive
analysis and ranking
on the importance of
material issues, and
develop the Matrix
of Material ESG
Issues

J

Matrix of Substantive Issues

* Employee development and training
* Responsible marketing

* Community and social welfare

* Risk management

® Industry development

Product quality and safety
Water resources utilization
Green products
R&D innovation

Energy management

Customer relationship management

Anti-corruption
Compliance management
Emissions management
Climate change mitigation and adaptation
Employee health and safety
Employee interests and benefits

Reporting

~

Highly substantive
issues will be mainly
disclosed in the
report according to
the ranking results
of issues

Sustainable supply chain management

Information security and privacy protection

Low

Importance to the Company
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Instructions on Adjustment of Issues

Issues Explanation Form of Adjustment Notes
Responsible The Company ensures the New issue This adjustment more
marketing authenticity and accuracy comprehensively responds to

Water resources
management

Energy
management

R&D innovation

Sustainable supply
chain management

of the product information
provided to customers/
consumers and never
misleads, exaggerates,
or defrauds customers/
consumers during the
marketing process

The type of water resources Restatement
utilized by the Company and
its utilization management,
resource conservation, etc.,
including data disclosure
related to management
methods and resource
utilization

The type of energy utilized Restatement
by the Company and its

utilization management,

energy conservation, etc.,

including data disclosure

related to management

methods and energy

utilization

The Company’s development  Restatement
and management in the field
of scientific and technological
innovation, including
management and planning for
R&D innovation and tracking
progress of products under
development

Supplier classification, Restatement
environmental and social

risk management and green

procurement, including data

disclosure related to supplier

statistics, risk assessment,

etc.

the disclosure requirements in
the ESG Guide of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

This adjustment is more in
line with standard industry
nomenclature and the
Company’s ESG goals and
strategies

This adjustment is more in
line with standard industry
nomenclature and the
Company’s ESG goals and
strategies

This adjustment is more in
line with standard industry
nomenclature and the

Company’s ESG strategies

This adjustment is more in
line with standard industry
nomenclature
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Issues Explanation Form of Adjustment Notes
Information security The Company regulates Restatement =
and privacy data processing activities
protection and ensures data security,
including management
methods, actions, etc.
Customer The Company’s management Restatement -
relationship system and measures related
management to customer relationship,

such as customer service,
customer complaint and
handling, and customer
education, including data
disclosure related to customer
satisfaction, customer service
and complaint

2 Environmental Responsibilities

Main Progress in 2022

Measures Achievements

A total of 49 special technical transformation projects
related to safety and environmental protection

An investment of RMB17.59 million in safety and
environmental protection

Technical transformation related to safety and
environmental protection

Formulate the “energy conservation project plan of
3000 tons of standard coal”, covering measures for
replacement of equipment with high energy efficiency
but low energy consumption, technical transformation,
etc.

Economic benefit of RMB7.13 million from energy
saving and emission reduction

Reduction of natural gas consumption by 344.4
thousand m?®

Reduction of electricity consumption by 412.66 kWh

Reduction of carbon emissions by 2,487.21 tons

2.1 Environmental Management System

The Company adheres to the philosophy of environmental friendliness and sustainable development, strictly abides by
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations, and has revised
the Exhaust Gas Emission Management Policy, the Related Party Management Procedure, the Radiation Equipment
Management Procedure, the Waste Management Procedure, the Management Regulations for Water Use, the
Resource and Energy Management Procedure, etc. pursuant to the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System. It
has also built an environmental management system covering the whole life cycle and has improved its environmental
management level by continuously optimizing environmental management measures.

In addition, the Company actively promotes energy conservation and emission reduction and reduces the impact
of production on the environment by constructing green buildings, reducing the energy and resource consumption
during operation. In 2022, the Company invested RMB17.59 million in special transformation projects of safety and
environmental protection technologies, with a total of 49 optimization and transformation projects involved.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company has paid the taxes and fees related to environmental protection in full, and
all factories have passed the ISO 14001 System certification, and no violation against the environmental protection
laws and regulations has occurred to the Company.

Certification in Relation to Environmental Responsibilities of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Name of
Certification Coverage

ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental Management System All factories

“Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design” (LEED v4) Gold Award ~ Hua Hong Wuxi

Two-Star Green Building Design Label Certificate Hua Hong Wuxi
wcgw“ QC 080000 Hazardous Substance Process Management System All factories
QC 080000

The Company’s EHS Department is responsible for coordinating its environmental management system, including
formulation of management regulations, performance analysis and evaluation with respect to energy and resource use,
emissions management, etc. It also assists external agencies in the audit and testing of the Company’s environmental
management system. Furthermore, the Company uses the safety management auditing and tracking system to sort
out and list the nonconforming items against the environmental protection regulations found in daily management, then
follow up and record the subsequent rectifications through the regular reminder function of the system.
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Main Resources Used and Management Regulations

Main Energy and Resources

Management Regulations

Energy

Water sources

Raw materials

Electric power, heat, natural gas, and a
small amount of gasoline and diesel

Municipal water supply

Silicon slice, quartz, target material,
gas, and chemicals

Resource and Energy Management Procedure
Management Regulations for Water, Electricity, Steam
and Gas Metering

Management Regulations for Water, Electricity, Steam
and Gas Metering

Management Regulations for Water Use

Standard Operating Procedures for Industrial Water
Supply System, etc.

CSR & RBA Statement for Suppliers

Control Policy for Service Life of Raw Materials

Risk Identification and Countermeasures for Key
Materials

Risk Analysis Form for Key Materials

Management Specification of the Materials
Management Department for Storage of Chemicals and
Gases, etc.
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Overview on Environmental Management Performance

Water Resources

Total water consumed

of which: Water from municipal water supply
Wastewater reused

Water consumed per unit product

Volume of recycled water

18,010,226 m?®
10,284,063 m?®
7,726,163 m®

2.46 m?® per 8-inch wafer
107,163,560 m®

Energy

Total electricity consumed

Electricity consumed per unit product
Natural gas consumed

Natural gas consumed per unit product

954,667 MWh

228 kWh per 8-inch wafer
10,530,287 m?®

2.52 m® per 8-inch wafer

Packaging Materials

Total packaging materials used for finished products
Total packaging materials recycled for finished products

313.32 tons
53.94 tons

Other Raw Materials

Silicon slice, quartz, target material, gas, chemicals and other raw materials for production

4

o)

Supplier environment

and soical »

management

Product R&D and

production »

operation

Green products with

low power
consumption

\4

Build a responsible value chain
and comprehensively evaluate
and manage the environmental
and social risks of suppliers

Implement full-life cycle
environmental management
covering processes from design
and production to disposal, so
as to continuously reduce the
environmental impact of the
products

The Company’s green products
are widely used in clean energy,
new light source LED, etc., thus
contributing to global energy
conservation
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Air Emissions

Total hazardous waste 20,385 tons
Hazardous waste produced per unit product 4.88 kg per 8-inch wafer
Total non-hazardous waste 9,864 tons
Non-hazardous waste produced per unit product 2.36 kg per 8-inch wafer
Waste
Total air emissions 23,910.24 million m?®
Nitrogen oxide (NO,) emissions 32,650 kg
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions 3,546 kg
Greenhouse Gas
GHG emissions 497,938 tCO.e
GHG emissions per unit product 0.12tCO,e per 8-inch wafer
Wastewater
Total wastewater discharge 8.32 million m?®

Green Culture

The Company continuously promotes the environmental protection concept, regularly holds environmental management
sharing sessions, and organizes each production plant to share excellent environmental management cases and
measures at the sharing sessions, so as to strengthen employees’ awareness of environmental protection and the
economical use of office resources and energy.

Practice in Green Culture

Saving paper around the Implementing office informatization to reduce paper consumption.
office e Making efforts to promote the use of recycled paper, including for printing
business cards of employees, to support recycling.

Saving electricity e Turning off the power supply when leaving work or for a long time.
e Reasonably setting air conditioning temperature above 26 T in summer and
below 20T in winter.

Saving water e Developing employees’ awareness of saving water and posting water saving tips.
Waste disposal e (Classifying domestic waste in each factory into 4 categories, namely dry, wet,
recyclable and harmful waste, and putting up posters for waste classification to

raise employees’ awareness.

Commuting e Encouraging employees to commute by public transport.
e Using new energy vehicles as shuttle buses for the Company.

2.2 Energy Management

Energy consumed by the Company is mainly electric power, heat, natural gas, and a small amount of gasoline and
diesel. The Company strictly complies with the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws, regulations and relevant provisions, sets the energy conservation management goals, and formulates various
rules, including the Resource and Energy Management Procedure, the Management Regulations for Water, Electricity,
Steam and Gas Metering, etc. The Company continues to optimize and improve its energy management system, and
constantly enhance the energy efficiency by carrying out various energy-saving technical transformation projects and
by using energy-saving equipment.
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Energy Management System

Philosophy Goal Policy Measures
e Carry out source e By 2030, the * Resource and * Carrying out
control and Company’ s Energy Management technical
continuous comprehensive Procedure transformation for
improvement energy consumption e Management energy-saving
while satisfying per unit product will Regulations for Water | ® Regularly engaging
and improving decrease by 7% Use third-party agencies
productivity, and compared with 2015 * Management to conduct energy
reduce the impact Regulations for audits of the
on the environment Water, Electricity, Company
while reducing Steam and Gas e Organizing energy-
production costs Metering saving publicity
and implementation
activities and post

energy-saving signs

To ensure the stable supply of electricity and smooth production, the Company developed the Emergency Plan for
Emergency Unloading, the Emergency Plan for Emergency Power Cut and the On-site Treatment Plan of the Power
Department for Power Cut and carried out emergency plan training and emergency drills in fabs on a regular basis.
The power supply is guaranteed through daily inspection, special system investigation, and emergency drills.

The Company has actively carried out a series of energy-saving publicity activities, and upheld the energy-saving and
low-carbon concept, including sharing existing energy-saving action cases, popularizing relevant laws and regulations,
etc. to enhance the energy-saving awareness of all employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company responded to the “One Percent” Energy Conservation and Carbon
Reduction Initiative in Shanghai Industrial and Communication Industry of Shanghai Municipal Economic and
Informatization Commission, and formulated the “energy conservation project plan of 3000 tons of standard coal”,
covering measures such as the replacement of equipment with poor energy efficiency and high energy consumption,
transforming the process to use equipment with better energy efficiency and lower energy consumption, technical
transformation, waste heat recovery, etc. The Company has also carried out internal and external energy consumption
audits to better sort out and analyze the Company’s energy consumption, enhance its management level and achieve
the goal of energy conservation and efficiency increase.
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Energy Saving Work and Achievements in 2022

Fabs Measures Annual Reduction in Energy Consumption
Fab 1 e To replace the old refrigeration 618,000 kWh
machine with new ones to save Annual reduction in electricity consumption
energy and reduce consumption
Fab 2 e To optimize product flow and reduce 11,700 m?®
usage of pure water and natural gas Annual reduction in natural gas consumption
6,048 tons
Annual reduction in pure water consumption
Fab 3 e  DUPS replacement and renovation 2,562,300 kWh
project in Fab 3 Annual reduction in electricity consumption
Fab 7 e NORD Flash Cell New Process 1,890,000 kWh
Project Annual reduction in electricity consumption

16,000 tons of water

Annual reduction in water consumption
8,000 tons of wastewater

Annual reduction in wastewater discharge

2.3 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation

The Company recognizes that climate change mitigation is of great significance to enterprises and the world. For this
purpose, the Company formulates the Carbon Trading Management Regulations for achieve carbon emission reduction
in response to China’s “30 - 60" carbon peaking and carbon neutrality goals. The Company has also regularly carried
out carbon emission verification in applicable production factories, continuously improved energy use efficiency in
production and operation, developed products with low-energy consumption, and assisted in the realization of China’s
carbon peaking and carbon neutrality goals.

The Company’s GHG emissions mainly come from direct GHG emissions from the use of natural gas and indirect GHG
emissions from outsourced electricity. The Company carries out GHG emission reduction work from the management
level and the technical level to reduce the carbon emissions generated in its operation activities, thereby lessening the
impact on climate change.
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Major Sources of GHG Emissions

Type of GHG Source

Scope 1 Consumption of natural gas of the Company, gasoline for self-owned vehicles and diesel
for self-owned vehicles

Scope 2 GHG emissions generated by the consumption of outsourced electricity and steam of the
Company

The Company is a key GHG emission entity, with production bases in Shanghai and Wuxi. During the Reporting Period,
the Company conducted a third-party carbon emission audit on all factories in the Shanghai Production Base to ensure
carbon compliance.

Countermeasures against Climate Change

Aspect Content

Management e Establish emergency contingency plans and organize emergency drills and trainings
on a regular basis
e Timely follow up relevant laws and regulations and the government’'s new
requirements, and develop relevant improvement plans to meet the new requirements
e Carry out GHG verification, carbon inventory and other work

Technology e Construct and maintain emergency equipment, replace with efficient and energy-
saving equipment, etc.
e Use green energy, high-efficiency and energy-saving equipment, etc. to enhance
energy efficiency and reduce carbon footprint

Product e Use green technology and green raw materials to reduce the generation of harmful
substances and reduce the impact on the environment
e Develop products with lower power consumption and higher efficiency to enhance
energy efficiency of the industry and reduce carbon emissions

Green Products

Green products refer to safe, environment-friendly and high-quality products manufactured in the closed-loop process
of product design, manufacturing, use, scrapping and reuse, during which the green concept is always considered.
Green products are also characterized by low resource and energy consumption, low pollutant emissions, low toxicity
and less harm, easy recycling, treatment and reuse. Based on the environmental footprint throughout the whole life
cycle of a product, the Company actively develops green products, and continuously reduces their impact on the
environment through green procurement, technology improvement and other measures. Meanwhile, the Company’s
green products are widely applied in many industries, which can help reduce their impact on the environment.
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Environmental Management for the Full Life Cycle of Products

Product Production

Choose production
equipment with
low energy
consumption and
high performance

Implement water
recovery projects to
improve the overall
recycling rate of
water

Implement green
procurement

=

Product Transportation
® Recycle and reuse

product packaging
materials to reduce
the consumption

of packaging
materials and waste
generation

End-user Products

* By helping

customers produce
low energy
consumption
products, reduce
the environmental
impact of the use of
end-user electronic
products

@

Disposal

e The wafers

produced by the
Company are
monitored for
harmful substances,
which means

that the end-user
electronic products
manufactured by
using the wafers
have less impact on
the environment after
disposal

Recyclable waste

is handed over to
qualified third parties
for recycling

Currently, the Company’s products have been widely applied to the fields of industrial frequency conversion, smart
grid, new energy vehicles, PV and wind power generation, new light source LED, etc. The Company continues to
optimize the energy efficiency of its compound semiconductor power devices, develop silicon-based power devices
with higher energy efficiency, and develop new integrated technical solutions such as BCD600V Highside and HiPower
to provide environment-friendly solutions for variable frequency household appliances and new energy vehicles,
thereby reducing the environmental impact for end users.
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Actions for Contribution to Global Climate Change Mitigation
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2.4 Sustainable Water Management

The Company sets water management goals and formulates water management strategies in strict accordance with
the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China. It also introduces higher-efficiency equipment and processes,
continuously optimizes water resources management measures, and enhances its water consumption efficiency.

Water Management Target
Water consumed per unit product (m®8-inch wafers) in 2030 will decrease by 12% as compared with 2015.

Water used by the Company comes from the municipal water supply to a large extent, in addition to a smaller
amount of recycled water and air conditioning condensate from the pure water manufacturing process. The Company
constantly monitors the risk of water resources in areas where we operate through the “Aqueduct Water Risk Atlas”,
an external tool from the World Resources Institute (WRI). We analyze the rationality of water consumption for the
production and operation of our fabs and the possible impact of water intake, and formulate effective measures to
reduce risks and ensure that water resources can support the Company’s sustainable development.

WRI Risk Monitoring Results and Countermeasures of the Company

Water risk monitoring e Type of physical risks: Water consumption risk, drought, decline of groundwater water
indicators level, etc.
e Condition of physical risks: Coastal erosion, untreated water
e |aws, regulations and reputation risks: Quality of drinking water, sanitary conditions,
etc.

Monitoring results e Medium-risk area: Wuxi Fab
e High-risk area: Shanghai Fab

Countermeasures e Relying on water monitoring sites for each fab, the Company has conducted water
balance tests on a regular basis to calculate the process water, recycled water,
wastewater, and domestic water of each fab

e The Company records the flow, volume and recycling of water resources, so as to
analyze whether there is any abnormal utilization of water resources and predict the
reasonable allocation of water resources among water-consuming units

e Build green buildings, upgrade or replace equipment with high water consumption, and
enhance water consumption efficiency

e Expand the sources of water resources, recycle air-conditioning condensate, organic
wastewater, etc., and refine the recycled water into industrial water

e Carry out water-saving awareness publicity activities, and post water-saving signs

The Company has continuously improved the lean management of water resources, formulated management
regulations such as the Standard Operating Procedures for Industrial Water Supply System and the Disposal
Procedures for Abnormal Tap Water Supply, established sound ledger management mechanism to regularly conduct
statistics, analysis and improvement on water consumption. While meeting the reasonable water demand, the
Company makes efforts to save water resources and maintain sustainable water balance. By taking measures such as
water-saving publicity activities, the Company has reduced water consumption in all aspects and continuously reduced
water consumption in production systems and process systems. In addition, the Company is committed to taking
water-saving measures such as water-saving technological transformation and wastewater recycling in production and
operation, and constantly improving efficiency in the use of water resources in all fabs.
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Water Consumed Per Unit Product in Recent Three Years

o9 2.89

2.8
2.7
2.6
2.5
2.4
2.3
2.2
2.1

Water consumed per unit product
Unit: m® per 8-inch wafer

2020 2021 2022

Year

During the Reporting Period, the Company won the second prize of the 2022 Shanghai Industrial Water Reuse and
Comprehensive Rainwater Utilization Award.

Water Resources Management Work and Achievements in 2022

Actions Measures Achievements

° Recycling of ° Lightly contaminated cleaning water containing Recycled water:
process cleaning inorganic acid and organic matters discharged 7,575 mé/day
water from production shall be collected separately by

pipeline and delivered to the transit tank. If the
water quality is unqualified, it shall be discharged
to the industrial wastewater system; if the water
quality is qualified, it shall be recycled to the pure
water system for secondary use after treatment
with activated carbon and anion resin, so as to
reduce the tap water consumption and wastewater

treatment.

° Recycling of ° Primary RO concentrated water will be produced Recycled water:
primary RO in the ultra-pure water reverse osmosis treatment 2,300 mé/day
concentrated water system, and will be recycled.

o Recycling of o Condensed water from air conditioning system Recycled water: 440
condensed water will be recycled and used in cooling tower and for ~ m?3/day

exhaust gas washing.

Moreover, in the Supplier Questionnaires, the Company requires the major suppliers to disclose information on
sustainable management of water resources use, including water consumption statistics for production and operation,
water-saving measures, water-saving goals of the suppliers, etc., so as to continuously reduce the water footprint of
products. During the Reporting Period, the Company carried out actions related to water resource management and
performance surveys on silicon wafer suppliers, with the coverage ratio of 100%.
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2.5 Emissions Management

In order to meet the emission standards and reduce the impact on environment, the Company has standardized the
management of air emissions, wastewater and waste discharge in strict accordance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Soil Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, as well as other laws and regulations and relevant provisions. During the Reporting Period, no incident of
excessive or illegal discharge of pollutants has occurred to the Company, nor has any litigation case arising from the
above incidents occurred.

Air Emission Discharge Management

The Company strictly complies with national and local discharge requirements such as the Discharge Standards of
Pollutants for Semiconductor Industry (DB31/374-2006). The Company has formulated improved testing plans and
management measures for the air emissions discharged during production, including sulfuric acid mist, hydrogen
chloride (HCI), nitric oxide (NOx), ammonia (NH,), and volatile organic compounds (VOCs). The Company has further
developed testing plans for major air emissions according to the production situation and regularly carried out testing
and evaluation to ensure the compliance of air emissions.

Air Emissions Management

Type Treatment Method

Air Emissions Acid air emission Up-to-standard discharge after removing most of the
components through pretreatment and centralized treatment
of the washing tower

Alkaline air emission (mainly Purification through a washing tower

ammonia gas)

Organic air emission Purification through activated carbon adsorption, or
combustion after concentration

Air Emissions containing dust Removal through a dust-extraction unit

(mainly small particulates of silicon

dioxide)

The Company has standardized the requirements on online monitoring and management of organic waste gas,
improved the on-site supervision capacity of its fabs; The Company’s waste gas treatment facilities are maintained at a
higher level of treatment efficiency through annual overhaul and other measures.

In addition, the Company optimized and improved the treatment technology of its organic waste gas treatment system,
enhanced the treatment efficiency of the system, and reduced the emission of organic waste gas.
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Waste Management

The Company maintains consistently high standards and strict requirements in the implementation of the waste
management system. The Company has formulated the Waste Management Procedure, the Code of Practice for
Industrial Waste Management and other management regulations to standardize waste management operations and
recorded and managed waste treatment through the unified environmental protection management system of the
government to ensure all transportation records are traceable and controllable.

Hazardous wastes generated in the Company’s production and operation activities include waste acid and waste
isopropanol. The Company has authorized a qualified third-party company for treatment of hazardous wastes, mainly
by means of incineration, physical-chemical treatment, and recycling. Non-hazardous solid waste was recycled by the
Company or submitted to a qualified third-party agency for collection and treatment to improve the utilization efficiency.

Waste Management Measures

In-house waste management Outsourced recycling and reuse Reused for other industrial purpose

* Raw materials are recycled in the e Submitted to a qualified third- e Wastes are recovered, recycled
fabs, such as raw materials for party company for recycling and and reused for other industrial
production and office supplies, to disposal purpose

delay raw materials from becoming

waste
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Classification and Treatment Methods of Waste

Categories Treatment Method

Non-hazardous waste Domestic waste and kitchen garbage Entrusting the environmental sanitation
departments in the places where
we operate for unified disposal on a
regular basis

Such as sludge Landfilling
Hazardous waste Such as waste acid, waste isopropanol, and Recycling
waste phosphoric acid
Such as waste glass bottles, 200L chemical Physical-chemical treatment

barrels, and waste liquid from laboratory

Such as cleaning cloths, plastic bottles, organic Incineration
waste liquid, waste activated carbon, waste

resin, and arsenic-containing waste

The Company has established a waste discharge management system, and reduced the impact on the environment
through technological transformation and reuse of waste based on the concept of “reduction from the source” and
“circular economy”. Since 2017, the Company has carried out work to reduce the discharge of various hazardous
wastes every year to constantly reduce the impact of hazardous waste emissions on the environment.

In 2022, Hua Hong Fab 3 built and put into use an ammonia-nitrogen treatment tank for innocuous treatment of
ammonia-containing waste. Waste sulfuric acid generated in the treatment process was delivered to titanium dioxide
manufacturers for recycling and reuse, so as to enhance the utilization efficiency of resources.

Wastewater Discharge Management

The Company strictly complies with the Discharge Standard of Water Pollutants for Electronic Industry (GB39731-2020),
the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard (DB31/199-2018), the Waste Water Quality Standards for Discharge to
Municipal Sewers (GBT 31962-2015) — Grade B Standard, and formulates the Management System for Drainage and
Waste. The Company also reduces the generation of wastewater by continuously optimizing manufacturing processes
and wastewater recovery.

In terms of pollution discharge and information disclosure, the Company carried out online monitoring and
management of wastewater, with relevant data of Shanghai Fab disclosed on the environmental information disclosure

platform, thus improving transparency of environmental information for the Company.

Wastewater Discharge Management

Categories Treatment Method

Wastewater pH, COD, ammonia nitrogen, fluorine ion, etc. Discharged through a pipeline into
a designated urban sewage pipe
network after treatment and meeting
relevant standards

In 2022, the Shanghai Fab self-monitored the soil and groundwater in its fabs according to the requirements of the
Technical Guide for Self-Monitoring of Soil and Groundwater for Industrial Enterprises (HJ1209) issued by the Shanghai
Municipal Bureau of Ecology and Environment, and prepared a complete soil and groundwater monitoring report,
ensuring that the wastewater discharge complies with the laws, regulations and relevant standards.
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3 Employee-Related Responsibilities

3.1 Rights and Benefits of Employees

Rights and Interests of Employees

The Company strictly complies with laws and regulations including the Labor Law of the PRC and the Law on
Employment Contracts of the PRC. We insist on fair employment, implement the principle of equal pay for equal work,
and ensure that employees are not discriminated against or treated differently based on non-work factors including
age, gender, place of birth, religious belief, marital status, or disability. We prohibit the employment of child labor or
forced labor.

The Company has formulated relevant management regulations, including the Employment Procedures and the
Management Procedures for Trainees. The Company strictly checks the identity information of employees and never
employs adolescents under the age of 16. As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had 6,760 regular
employees. As at the end of the Reporting Period, it has neither infringed the rights and interests of its employees, nor
been subject to complaints or penalties by a regulatory authority.

Overview on Employee Rights and Interests

Democratic

Recruitment and Remuneration

Working Hours and

Dismissal Vacation System Participation
* Recruitment: e The Company * A standard working e Establishing labor
Adhering to provides hours system union, employee

the principle of competitive is adopted. A congress, etc.
fairness, equity and salaries for comprehensive or to ensure the
openness; employees, which flexible working democratic

Dismissal: The
Company and
employees

go through
the dismissal
procedure
according to
relevant laws,
regulations, and
the Dismissal
Management
Procedure.

are higher than
the minimum wage
in the place of
operation.

hours system is
adopted for certain
positions with the
approval of the
government labor
and personnel
authorities;

Based on holidays
and festivals
specified by the
government,
supplementary
annual leaves

are provided for
employees.

participation of
employees in
the Company’ s
decision-making.
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Employee Communication

An unblocked communication channel is favorable to the establishment of harmonious labor relations. The Company
is committed to building and improving employee communication and feedback mechanisms and has formulated the
Employee Communication Rules and encouraged the multi-way communication between the Company and employees,
between officers and subordinate officers, and among employees through the creation of multiple communication
channels.

In May 2022, the Company held a symposium for young employees with the theme of “Devoting to forging a new
journey in the new era”. The Company’s leaders, the Chairman of the Trade Union and many young front-line
employees attended the symposium and shared their work experience and feelings, which enhanced the cohesion
among employees.

Employee Diversity

Hua Hong attaches great importance to the diversity of employees, formulates relevant regulations and procedures,
and continues to create an open, inclusive, respectful and diverse employment environment. We respect the lifestyle of
all kinds of employees and try to provide them with convenient conditions to meet their living habits. The Company is
also committed to creating better office and service facilities for employees and improving their happiness.

Measures for Creating a Good Working Environment

Office
[ )
.).\;a e An air purification system is installed to improve office air quality;
\H/
e  Green space is increased in office areas.
Diet
* e  There are staff canteens and coffee shops in factory zones;

e Establishing a food safety supervision team, adopting the mode of centralized purchasing of
food materials and qualified supplier management, and inviting employees and department
representatives to carry out supervision;

e  Publishing the canteen food cooking guideline to manage balanced nutrition, oil and salt control, for
the employees’ diet in the canteens.
Accommodation
I.- e Construction of dormitory with private bathrooms, 24-hour supply of hot water, and WIFI network,

etc.;

e The dormitory area has a library, computer room, snooker room, laundry, TV room, HIVE BOX, and
other facilities.

Travel
e  Providing all employees with travel allowance;

e Providing free commuter bus services between the park, subway stations, and the dormitory;

e  Creating a commuting route for employees living in the transit-challenged areas and arranging
commuter bus services for departments which need to have such services on weekends.
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In terms of care for female employees, we care for the welfare and development of female employees, by organizing
a special physical examination every year, continuously improving human-based management of lactating employees,
and providing relevant service facilities to ensure convenience for pregnant employees and lactating employees at
work.

Employees by gender Employees by age
Over 50
2%

Under 30

30-50 44%
54%

= Male Female = Under 30 30-50 Over 50

In addition, the Company established the Employee Assistance Mechanism, under which we provide assistance for
needy employees at special festivals such as Spring Festival, Labor Day, and Mid-Autumn Festival, in addition to
routine expression of sympathy and solicitude to injured or families of diseased employees; and we give timely care
and support to employees who suffer a significant misfortune and help them overcome their plight as soon as possible
through multiple forms of assistance including donation, support, care, and nursing.

3.2 Employee Health and Safety

The Company attaches great importance to occupational health and safety of employees, and strictly complies with the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, the Production Safety Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances, as well as other laws, regulations
and provisions. The Company has established a complete occupational health and safety system that meets the safety
goal of “zero accident for production safety”, defining the occupational health and safety policy, so as to provide
employees with a good working environment and ensure their occupational health.
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Occupational Health and Safety Management System

Occupational Health and Safety Management Policy
The Company strictly complies with safety, health, and environmental protection regulations; makes efforts for clean production; carries ouf
continuous improvement; creates a safe, healthy, and comfortable working environment for employees; and strenuously pursues the highest

goal of “zero accidents” and sustainable operation, becoming a model corporate citizen in the world.

System e The Company has established the Safe Management e Emergency response to hazards/environmental
Construction Production Committee; implemented the Factors factors;

Committee’ s Safe Production Responsibility e Special equipment and posts;

System; and implemented the Regular Safety e Chemicals management;

Meeting System; e Occupational health monitoring and Protection.

e All employees at all levels are required to
sign the Safety Responsibility Letter, so as to
implement the Safe Production Responsibility
System for the staff.

Internal Audit, e Safety technology transformation; Construction e Safety awareness and safety training;
Inspection e Establishing a dual prevention work of Safety e Emergency drills.

and Hazard mechanism of hierarchical control of Culture

Identification safety risks and management or hazard

identification.

Safe Production

Improving the Establishment of Systems

The Company pays great attention to safety assurance of employees in the production process, strictly abides by
the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, and formulates the Implementation Measures for the
Production Safety Responsibility System of the Production Safety Committee. We also establish the safe production
management committee and the weekly production safety meeting system to ensure the stable operation of the
Company’s safe production system. In accordance with the requirements of the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Company optimizes various management systems for production safety, consolidates safety
responsibilities, intensifies the dual control system, strengthens the emergency response mechanism, ensures safety
investment, and facilitates the construction of corporate safety culture.

In 2022, the Company actively implemented the standardization, systematization and intelligent construction of safety
work, and optimized the production safety responsibility system of all employees. In accordance with the principle of
“one post with one responsibility” and “whoever takes charge and uses shall take the responsibility”, the Company
has compiled a Safety Responsibility Letter covering all staff with “General Terms + Functional Departments +
Business Departments” by combining the post functions. 100% of our employees have signed the Letter. Meanwhile,
our contractors are required to sign the “Letter of Commitment on Safety and Environmental Protection”, so as to
make every department and every employee take their respective responsibility, and optimize the production safety
responsibility system of all employees.

In addition, the Company improved systematic procedure management based on its operation experience, established
and perfected safety management systems such as safety accident/incident/hidden danger troubleshooting and
tracking system, special equipment registration system, equipment terminal infrared detection and recording
system, etc., and keep data records to ensure the implementation of corrective measures, thereby standardizing the
implementation of procedures and enhancing the Company’s safety management efficiency and safety operation level.

So far, all production bases of the Company in Shanghai and Wuxi have passed the certification of I1ISO 45001
International Occupational Health and Safety Management System.
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Name of Production Base ISO 45001 Certification Term of Validity
Hua Hong Shanghai Production Base Certified 18 April 2024
Hua Hong Wuxi Production Base Certified 18 April 2024

Construction of Production Safety Culture

In order to carry out the construction of production safety culture and strengthen the staff's awareness of safety culture,
the Company organized a series of special activities such as “Production Safety Month”, “Safety & Health Cup”, “Fire
Protection Month”, and conducted carried out activities such as production safety publicity, education and training, as
well as safety knowledge and skills competition. Various safety publicity and demonstration activities have effectively
enhanced the safety awareness and safety knowledge reserve of employees, and promoted all staff to fulfill their safety

commitments and responsibilities.

Actions for Construction of Production Safety Culture in 2022

Action Name Content and Effect
Strengthening safety e Carry out diversified trainings on various safety themes, such as “new employee
training safety, work resumption safety, production safety standardization, fire fighting skills,

occupational health, emergency management system, public security and prevention
of telecom fraud, and restaurant & traffic safety”, to ensure the 100% participation
rate in safety education and training, the 100% certificate holding rate for all
employees, with approximately 24,423 trainees.

e Organize all staff to participate in the national online contest on knowledge about the
“New Safety Law”, and constantly enhance the staff’s safety awareness and ability.

Enhancing emergency e Each production base has organized and implemented more than 70 comprehensive
response capability and special emergency plan drills and more than 1,000 on-site emergency response
trainings, with a training rate of 100%.

e Complete the expert review and filing of production safety emergency plans,
establish and improve the normative documents such as rapid emergency response
procedures to abnormal conditions for production base, and organize weekly
training, quarterly practice, and annual competition.

e Hold ERT personal skills competition and ERT fire fighting skills competition, and
build an emergency management system communication platform by carrying out
activities.

e Organize and carry out the “Fire Protection Month” fire knowledge display board
publicity, fire fighting skill trainings, evacuation and escape drills for all staff, and
enhance the staff's safety awareness and emergency response ability.

Selecting excellent e (Conduct annual evaluation on excellent safety and technical skills, and organize
cases learning and exchange activities.
e Carry out evaluation on typical accidents and hidden dangers, with a total of 24
excellent cases awarded.
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Safety Risk Prevention Facilities and Measures for Employees

@

[
Fire fighting facilities Alarming and monitoring system Emergency measures
e Establishing the complete fire e  Our clean workshops e Establish an emergency
fighting system and automatic are equipped with toxic, rescue team and formulate
alarming system. hazardous and flammable emergency response plans
gas alarming system, liquid for different disasters; and
leakage detector and ultra- regularly organize special
high sensitivity smoke disaster prevention drills and
detector. rectify any problem found in a

timely manner.

Chemical Safety Management

With regard to safety protection of chemicals, the Company has formulated a number of management policies and
operation procedures, including the Chemicals Management Procedure, the Chemical Substance Review Procedure,
the Special Emergency Plan for Chemical Leakage, the Inspection and Registration System for Chemicals Coming In
and Out of the Warehouse, the Management Measures for Chemical Turn-on, etc..

Hazardous Chemicals Used in the Manufacturing of Hua Hong Semiconductor Chips

Type Name

Flammable liquid Isopropanol, photoresist and diesel

Oxidants and organic peroxides Hydrogen peroxide

Toxic chemicals Phosphine and fluorine

Corrosive chemicals Sulfuric acid, hydrochloric acid, hydrofluoric acid, phosphoric acid, mixed acid,

ammonia water and sodium hydroxide
Compressed and liquefied gas Hydrogen, methane, silane, nitrogen, oxygen, argon, helium, ammonia and chlorine

The Company has established a factory chemical review committee to comprehensively evaluate the environmental
protection and safety qualifications and risk prevention and control capabilities of chemical suppliers in advance the
Company adopts the chemical substance management system to manage the use, storage and disposal of chemicals,
control the maximum storage of chemicals, and dynamically monitor their use and consumption. In addition, the
Company makes efforts to eliminate on-site hazard sources and reduce safety risks from the source by giving priority
to the use of new technologies and by replacing toxic and flammable hazardous chemicals with non-toxic chemicals.
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Hua Hong Hazardous Chemicals Management Procedure

The purchase and
marketing personnel
of chemicals shall
work with qualification
certificates, and ask
for chemical safety
specifications and
chemical safety labels
when purchasing
hazardous chemicals.

Transportation and

Storage

Vehicles transporting
hazardous chemicals
shall be used for
special purpose to
prevent the chemicals
from "running out,
spilling, dripping or
leaking";

Chemicals shall be
separated, classified
and stored by

their performance,
managed by special
personnel and
regularly inspected.

Use and Disposal

Hazardous chemicals
shall be used in strict
accordance with

the safe operation
procedures;

Hazardous chemicals
that need to be
disposed of shall be
collected by special
personnel, sent to the
Company's hazardous
waste warehouse,
and then delivered to
the hazardous waste
disposal agency for

centralized disposal.

- J - J - J

Employee Health

Management of Occupational Hazard Factors

In order to provide occupational health protection for employees, the Company identifies occupational hazard factors
of employees and formulates corresponding countermeasures in strict accordance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases and other laws and regulations. The Company’s
job positions involving occupational hazard factors mainly include ion implantation, diffusion, etching, chemical
mechanical grinding, power gasification and other positions involving equipment operation.

Identification of Occupational Hazard Factors of Employees and Countermeasures

Job Positions with

Occupational Hazards Occupational Hazard Factors Countermeasures

lon implantation, diffusion, etching, Fluorine and its inorganic compounds, ® The equipment in the clean room
chemical mechanical grinding, power hydrofluoric acid, hydrochloric acid, is automatically operated in the
gasification and other positions nitric acid, sulfuric acid, phosphoric closed space, and is equipped
involving equipment operation acid, ammonia water, hydrogen with closed process exhaust

peroxide, arsenic and its compounds, system
phosphorus and its compounds,
isopropanol, etc. e Provide employees with personal

protective articles and emergency
response devices, and regularly
check such articles and devices to
ensure their effectiveness

In addition, the Company engages external organizations to test the occupational hazards in its production
environment every year, so as to ensure that the occupational exposure limits for harmful factors are not exceeded
in the production environment, and the Company informs all employees of the test results. In 2022, the Company has
replaced the toxic methanol used for wastewater treatment in its factories with non-toxic 25% food-grade glucose
solution, thereby continuously reducing the occupational hazard exposure risk of employees.
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Improvement of Employee Health

The Company provides an annual health check-up for all employees, including multiple cancer screenings and other
items, and establishes employee health records to systematically track the changes in employees’ health status. The
Company carries out various activities to promote healthy lifestyle to employees, such as health lectures on the theme
of “How to stay away from the risk of “hypertension, hyperlipemia and hyperglycemia”, “Guidelines for People Infected
with COVID-19 at Home” and “Prevention of facial paralysis in alternate seasons”, to encourage the employees to live

and work in a healthy way.
3.3 Employee Development and Training

Employee Training

The Company has established a sound employee education and training system, and formulated the Operating
Procedure of Internal Training System Review, the Education and Training Procedure and department-level training
procedures, which are constantly adjusted according to the strategic development and employee needs, to meet the
all-round and multi-level training needs of employees in different positions.

The Company has established training facilities (special training rooms and equipment), learning and sharing platforms
(including online training registration management platform, training material and position-specific question bank and
multimedia learning courseware, etc.), and where necessary, uses external resources for ensuring employees learning
and development.

In 2022, the Company continuously carried out “Special Training Camp for Newly-hired Recent College Graduates”
training program, and in addition to the refining and concentration of professional theory and practical training into
three major series of courses, namely “new era”, “new revelation” and “new talents”, it further offers courses regarding
corporate culture and political literacy, and organizes visits to bases of Chinese revolution, which helped its new

employees quickly integrate into the team and meet the challenges of their future work with full enthusiasm.

Employee System

Trainees Training Contents 2022 Performance

Role recognition, self-management,
management of others, and working
Grass-roots managers management

Develop management skills of front- Percentage of employees
line shift and team leaders, cultivate trained: 100%
a front-line management team with
high quality and high business ability,
and lay a solid foundation for the
Front-line managers Company’s management

Career quality, corporate culture,
introduction to special skills and other
Newly-employed university students  courses e Average training hours per
Courses about theory and practical employee: 123.7 hours
training of the semiconductor
Front-line employees manufacturing module
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Career Development

The Company has clear and transparent promotion channels for employees, regularly evaluates employee performance
and provides employees with feedback on individual performance and offers personal career development plans
for the development of employees. According to industrial characteristics, the Company has set three professional
categories, namely, management, technology and functional support and has established corresponding job training.
Employees may continuously develop their careers in a single professional title category according to their own
specialties, potential, and desires. Moreover, they are able to shift from technology to management.

In addition, the Company has formulated the Implementation Measures for Academic Education Subsidy, which
encourages employees to improve their professional and technical knowledge and provides 16 employees with on-
the-job academic education subsidies in 2022, so as to promote work performance and efficiency improvement, and
continuously train high-quality talent that meets the current and future needs of the Company, thus further improving its
comprehensive competitiveness.

As of the end of the reporting period, the overall employee turnover rate of the Company was 12%. Specifically, the
employee turnover rates by gender, age and region are as follows.

Employee Turnover Rate of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2022

Category Turnover rate (%)
Male employees 12.83

Female employees 9.74

Employees aged below 30 18.34

Employees aged 30 to 50 7.23

Employees aged above 50 0.65

Employees in mainland China 12

Employees from overseas 0

4 Products and Services

4.1 Product R&D and Innovation

Construction of an Innovative Technology R&D System

R&D and innovation are the critical basis for promoting the continuous upgrading of products and ensuring the
sustainable development of the Company. In the process of product R&D and innovation, Hua Hong abides by the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Progress of Science and Technology, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Science and Technology Progress and the requirements of other laws and regulations, constantly develops
and upgrades new technologies, and leads the development of wafer manufacturing process and chip design by
focusing on its corporate vision of “Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global Customers”.

In order to stimulate employees’ motivation to invest in innovation and R&D, the Company has established the Value
Engineering (VE) proposal system to support employees’ exploration into their potential and contribution to product
innovation through standardized application process, review and reward procedures. The system involves the reduction
of raw materials and energy consumption, human resources optimization and production capacity improvement, as
well as process and procedure optimization, which can support the improvement and innovative development of all
business modules of the Company. All employees in the management, technology, quality control, manufacturing
engineering and other relevant support departments can participate in the quantitative review, recognition and reward
activities of VE proposals via this system.



90 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZES[-: &2 AR AT » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &

2022 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

In addition, the Company attaches great importance to scientific research innovation and open cooperation, and has
established the first workstation of academicians and experts and the first science and technology association of
enterprises in the IC industry in Shanghai. Through the introduction of experts, project cooperation, talent training,
academic exchange and other approaches, the Company strives to build an industry-university-research technology
innovation system, so as to promote the transformation of scientific and technological achievements into productive
forces.

Seizing the Clean Energy Opportunity

With the accelerated adjustment of the global energy structure, promoting the use of clean energy has become the
focus of development for more and more enterprises. Hua Hong has actively seized the opportunity of clean energy
and applied the main process platforms in different application fields to facilitate the development of green products in
the downstream value chain.

Hua Hong has accumulated substantial technology and experience in the manufacturing process of upstream
components in the new energy application field, such as new energy power generation, etc., which can effectively
support its energy transformation and development. Currently, the semiconductor components for new energy, which
are already at the international advanced level, will further explore into the technology and reliability of the 8-inch wafer
production platform, and gradually transformed to the 12-inch process platform. Hua Hong focuses on development of
the “8-inch + 12-inch wafer” production platform, vigorously implements the core development strategy of advanced
“Specialty IC + Power Discrete” product mix, and fully supports the high-quality supply capacity of localized
components in the new energy infrastructure and application fields. Hua Hong power discrete devices and non-volatile
memory processes play an important role in supporting the development of products in the new energy application
fields, such as new energy vehicles, energy-saving household appliances, etc.

Products for Supporting Clean Energy Development

Discrete Non-volatile Memory Process

Power discrete is an important device for Non-volatile memory process is widely

new energy power generation and new
energy applications. For example, a large
number of IGBTs, MOSFETs and other
devices are required for PV and wind power

used in chip applications such as MCUs
and ASICs, and these chips are also widely
applied to new energy end-user application,
such as electric tools, electric two-wheelers,

generation equipment, electric vehicles and electric vehicles, etc.

electric two-wheelers.

. J . J
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The Company has accumulated a large
number of customers in this field, and
has maintained good partnership with
leading enterprises in the field for a long
time to conduct in-depth development and
cooperation together. So far, the revenue
of power discrete devices has taken up a
significant part of the Company’ s revenue.

According to IC Insights, the automotive
market accounts for more than 30% of the
global MCU consumption market. All of Hua
Hong’ s fabs have passed the IATF 16949
certification for automotive industry, making
important contributions to supporting
the local manufacturing of automotive
semiconductors.

\ J
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In 2022, the Company made significant progress in research and development of technologies applied in the field of
new energy, helping accelerate the transformation progress of the global clean energy.

Development Progress of Technologies Boosting New Energy Transformation in 2022

The seventh generation IGBT technology has been successfully developed and put into mass
production. It has been widely used in mainstream new energy vehicles and PV power generation field.

The new super-junction technology has been developed and has been applied to the electric vehicle
charging pile and on-board charger (OBC) solutions. Compared with the original super-junction
technology, the optimized solution has reduced the process steps by 25%, and lowered the energy
consumption by about 10% on average, further improving the effect of energy conservation and
emission reduction.

In the future, the Company will further promote the development of silicon-based power devices capable of achieving
higher energy efficiency, and initiate the development of compound semiconductor power devices characterized
by high power density and low energy consumption, so as to provide continuously optimized solutions for products
applied to the clean energy sector, such as variable frequency household appliances, new energy vehicles, and to
further improve energy efficiency.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Company advocates independent innovation and respect for intellectual property rights, particularly in the
research and development of application-specific integrated circuits, including intelligent chips and information
security chips. The Company strictly complies with the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Copyright
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, and formulates the internal management regulations, such as the Management Regulations for Intellectual
Property, to strengthen the protection and management of the Company'’s intellectual property rights.

The Company has actively filed applications for patents and investigated responsibility for any potential breaches of
intellectual property rights. At the same time, we promise that we will never infringe upon the intellectual property rights
of any enterprise or individual, and will keep confidential all technological information regarding products of upstream
and downstream partners. To reduce the risk of claims of infringement of third-party intellectual property rights against
our manufacturing of semiconductor devices or end-user products, we conduct reputational and potential risk audit on
customers before accepting product orders, and we have entered into several technology licensing agreements with
major technical companies.

Patent Applications in 2022

Number of
Type of Patents Patents (Items)
Total number of patents applied for in the year 654
Total number of patents approved in the year 331

Total number of Chinese and U.S. invention patents obtained 4,139




92 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZES[-: &2 AR AT » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &

2022 ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

4.2 Product Quality and Safety

Quality Management System

The Company strictly complies with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality and other quality
laws and regulations, and has formulated the Quality Manual, Code of Practice for Quality Objective Management and
other rules. The Company carries out quality management work pursuant to these law, regulations and rules. So far,
all the production bases of Hua Hong have successfully passed the ISO 9001 Quality Management System and the
IATF 16949 QMS certification for the automotive industry. The Company implements a synthesized quality management
model covering five comprehensive modules of quality system and customer satisfaction, supplier management and
raw material analysis, quality assurance, reliability assurance, and failure analysis.

Name of Production Base Certification Term of Validity

Hua Hong Shanghai ISO 9001 Quality Management System 21 May 2024
Production Base IATF 16949 Quality Management System for Automotive Industry 21 May 2024

Hua Hong Wuxi Production  ISO 9001 Quality Management System 11 November 2025
Base IATF 16949 Quality Management System for Automotive Industry 29 December 2023

In accordance with the policies, the Company carries out quality management. The Company shall comprehensively
implement excellent performance management, and deeply promote the integration of industrialization and
informatization. Actively fulfilling corporate social responsibility, the Company strictly adheres to Zero Defects concept
and ensures the delivery of green and high-quality products in a timely order, to continuously provide competitive
services. Besides, the Company is supposed to fully meet customer requirements and unremittingly improve customer
satisfaction, so as to achieve mutual benefits and a win-win situation.

Whole-Process Quality Assurance Measures

~

Qua“ty Pursue excellent quality by multiple management systems, such as
assurance personnel management, equipment management, supply chain management,
by multiple environment management, system management, process management, and
customer quality control.

systems

/

Real-time With these reliable management systems, we are able to achieve real-time
| ! monitoring and testing over our entire product cycles from product R&D to
monltorlng production and after-sales feedback; carry out failure analysis on anomalies
and that may arise during the production and application processes; dig out the

prevention nature of problems; and work out corresponding corrective and preventive
measures.
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During the daily quality management process, the Company holds various daily management meetings to ensure the
product quality meets expectations according to the requirements of the overall quality system, such as materials
review meetings, change management committee meetings, production meetings and weekly safety meetings. In
the meantime, the Company regularly organizes monthly quality and safety meetings to report relevant work to the
management, so as to ensure timely communication about and resolution to product quality problems. In 2022, the
Company carried out the project quality evaluation activities of “Zero Defect of Characteristic Processes and High-
quality Development of Hua Hong”. As at the end of the year, 186 department-level projects were reviewed and
completed, with the on-time completion rate up to 100%.

Product Safety Assurance

In terms of product safety assurance, the Company has established a hazardous substance management system,
formulated the Hazardous Substances Management Procedure and the three-level management system to effectively
control the hazardous substances in products.

Hazardous Substance Control System

Process Measures

Product R&D The Company incorporates the management of hazardous substances into the product
R&D process to reduce the risk of using hazardous substances from the source.

Raw materials testing Suppliers are required to provide the product test report for hazardous substances, sign
the Letter of Commitment on Not Using Hazardous Substances to ensure the safety of
raw materials.

Regular inspection by A third-party organization is entrusted to carry out testing in accordance with the
a third-party agency Directive on Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical
and Electronic Equipment Regulations (“RoHS”) and the Regulation concerning the
Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals ("REACH”) on a

yearly basis to ensure product quality.

Management of Nonconforming Products

For nonconforming products, the Company has formulated the management policy of Nonconforming Product Control
Procedure, and has established an optimal product recall system. Our customers may return to us within the warranty
period any nonconforming products which do not comply with the prescribed functions or fail to meet the management
requirements for hazardous substances. As at 2022, the failure rate of the Company’s products on the end-user side
was less than one in a billion.
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4.3 Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests

Customer Service Management

The Company focuses on customer experience, and based on the philosophy of “providing customers with more
convenient and safer services”, it has established an impeccable customer service system, including the three
aspects of customer communication, customer complaint and customer satisfaction, so as to continuously enhance its
customer service capabilities.

Customer Service System

Coo O 77 TN & =

™) & T
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Customer Communication Customer Complaint Customer Satisfaction Survey

e  Adopt multiple methods o Establish customer complaint e Carry out satisfaction surveys
of communication with channels and formulate the on a sampling basis annually
customers, including Customer Complaint Handling and formulate an improvement
customer survey, regular Procedure, handle and feed plan according to the survey
quarterly/annual business back customer complaints in a results.
reviews, technical seminar timely manner.
and training.

To better satisfy customer service requirements, the Company formulates an annual work plan for customer services
and conducts relevant work according to the plan. In addition, the Company implements product introduction,
negotiation with customers on their special requirements, customer review and other workflows online and offline
synchronously, so as to achieve more sufficient and more efficient communication to meet customer expectations.

The Company attaches great importance to customers’ complaint and feedback, and has formulated the Customer
Complaint Handling Rules to standardize customer complaint handling and the implementation of corrective and
preventative measures. Customers may make a complaint and give feedback to the Company through e-mail, hotline,
letter, fax, and other channels. During the Reporting Period, the Company did not receive any complaints from
customers.
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Customer Complaint Handling Procedure

within 24 hours after the occurrence of a complaint and

D
\\ give a preliminary reply.

Investigation into Failure Causes

Complaints requiring product failure analysis will
be submitted to relevant departments for handling.
Corrective and preventive measures will be proposed
according to the investigation results and a reply will be
given to customers.

Occurrence of a Complaint
Normally, communicate and confirm with the customer

Prevention and Correction
‘ Supervise the implementation of corrective and
preventive measures by relevant departments, and

.a. verify the correction results by regularly sorting out and
U analyzing relevant information fed back by customers.

The Company conducts customer satisfaction surveys on a regular basis. In 2022, the Company carried out a
customer satisfaction survey in the form of questionnaire to collect customer opinions. The average score of customer
satisfaction in the questionnaire was 8.86 (full score: 10 points). The management of the Company reviews the annual
satisfaction survey results, organizes the difference analysis and implements improvement measures, and feeds
corresponding improvement measures and results back to customers.

Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Company attaches importance to its information security and the protection of customer privacy. It carries out
information security protection work in strict accordance with the Cyber Security Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Cryptography Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulation on the Administration of Commercial
Cipher Codes, and other laws, regulations and provisions. Meanwhile, the Company has developed and implemented
information security management rules such as the Information Security System Manual and the Statement
of Applicability (SOA), and conducts management on network security, computer security, encryption control
management, user access control, regular backup, etc. to ensure the legal compliance of data processing security
and customer privacy protection.

The Company establishes the Information Security Committee, which is fully responsible for the information security
protection work of the Company. The Company has established an Information Security Management System (ISMS),
which controls information security risks from information asset management, personnel security, physical control, logic
control, and other aspects to ensure information security and is ISO 27001 certified (valid until February 2025).
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ISMS Structure

As the top manager of ISMS, take overall control on
information management.

President

I |t is composed of management representatives
and department heads to study and approve the
Company’ s supervision rules and regulations
on information security and to supervise the duty

performance of relevant departments.

Information Security
Committee

) ) With its members from the Information Technology
Informat_lon Security Department, Quality and Reliability Assurance
Working Group Department, Compliance Department, etc. of the

Company, it is responsible for the establishment,
implementation and daily operation of the ISMS.

During the stable operation process of ISMS, the Company effectively protects customer information and privacy
security by carrying out information security management training and review and by adopting the latest security
protection technology and other measures, which, on the other hand, provides the Company with safer and more
efficient information management services.

Information Security Management Measures

Regularly review the information security management system to identify possible risks and ensure smooth
operation of information security management

Carry out information security training and guidance to enhance employees’ awareness of information
security

Establish information security incident handling procedure to handle security incidents in a timely
manner

Maintain the machine room regularly to guarantee the normal operation of the equipment in the
machine room and ensure information security

Adopt the latest information security protection technology to prevent data leakage

In 2022, the Company carried out a series of trainings in relation to information security protection in various production
and operation bases to strengthen employees’ awareness and ability concerning information security protection, and
improve the Company’s overall information security protection level.
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Information Security Protection Training in 2022

Theme Coverage Participants
ISMS Training 2022Q1 5,741
ISMS Training 2022Q2 6,180
ISMS Training 2022Q3 5,018

Employees of Hua Hong Shanghai & Wuxi

Confidentiality and Information Security Production Bases

Compliance Training 6,400
Quality Month Activity — Information Security
Awareness Training for Senior Executives 108

Responsible Marketing

It is Hua Hong’s responsibility to customers to carry out responsible marketing and ensure the integrity, accuracy and
authenticity of marketing information. The Company strictly abides by the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations, implements the product
label management pursuant to relevant procedures, and runs the compliance awareness throughout the whole process
of business development and contract management, in an effort to eliminate the possibility of improper marketing due
to subjective factors.

No incidents of violations concerning the use of labels and promotional information occurred within the Company
during the Reporting Period.

5 Responsible Business Operation

5.1 Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Creating a Responsible Supply Chain

Creating a responsible supply chain is an important strategy for long-term development of the Company. The Company
has established an excellent supply chain management system, and formulated the Social Responsibility Requirements
for Suppliers and the Supplier Risk Identification, Planning and Control Management Procedure in accordance with
the Code of Conduct of the Responsible Business Alliance (RBA), so as to conduct comprehensive management on
suppliers.

Major Suppliers of Hua Hong

Quantity
Type of Suppliers (Suppliers)
Silicon wafer 21
Chemicals 91
Gas 48

Good supplier cooperation is the foundation for the Company to ensure stable production and operation. The
Company has established a supplier management system covering supplier selection and access, supplier review and
evaluation, support for supplier growth and supplier elimination.
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Supplier Management System

Supplier Management

Actions

Supplier selection and
access

The Company formulated the Social Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers

in accordance with the RBA, and put forward requirements for suppliers in five
aspects: labor, health and safety, environmental protection, business ethics and
management system;

Suppliers with outstanding performance in terms of environment, labor and ethics
will be preferred in supply and procurement;

In addition to requiring all cooperating suppliers to comply with the Social
Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers, the Company also requires its upstream
suppliers to recognize and manage in accordance with the Social Responsibility
Requirements for Suppliers.

Supplier review and
evaluation

The Company has formulated the Supplier Risk Identification, Planning and
Control Management Procedure to carry out comprehensive evaluation and control
on the environmental and social risks of suppliers every year, so as to identify

the environmental and social risks of suppliers, and formulate corresponding
countermeasures;

Suppliers with major violation records are required to carry out a third-party risk
audit in terms of their social responsibilities and provide the certificate of passing
the audit, or they may be disqualified as suppliers;

The Company’s anti-corruption policy covers all suppliers, requiring them to comply
with anti-corruption requirements and confirming the compliance at the time of
annual evaluation.

Support for supplier
growth

The Company carries out regular publicity trainings on the theme of “CSR “ and
“RBA Code of Conduct” for suppliers every year, including environment, labor,
ethics, etc;

The supplier training program carried out in 2022 covered suppliers of silicon
wafer, chemicals, gas, target materials and other categories.

Supplier elimination

The Company urges the suppliers with poor performance in terms of environment,
labor and ethics to rectify and confirm that their rectification meets the requirements.
Suppliers who fail to meet the rectification requirements will be disqualified.
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Overview of the Social Responsibility Requirements for Suppliers of Hua Hong Semiconductor

"‘ e Free choice of occupation e Salaries and benefits
e Youth employees * Humane treatment e Free association
Labor e Working hours ¢ Non-discrimination
e QOccupational safety e Hygiene management e Public health, canteen, and
w=ll85 o Emergency plan o Physically demanding work dormitories
Occupation «  (Occupational injuries and diseases »  Machine-related protection e Communication of health and safety
and Health
e e Environment-related permits and
I__—,@ reports e Solid waste e Management of water resources
e Preventing pollution and saving e Air emissions e Energy consumption and
Environmental resources e Material restrictions greenhouse gas emissions

Protection ® Hazardous substances

e Operation with integrity * Intglleotual prope.rty fights e Responsible procurement of
e No illegitimate interests * Fairirade, advertisement, and minerals
Business o |nformation disclosure competiti(.)n. o o Privacy
Integrity e Confidentiality on identities
®
._T_l e Duties and responsibilities of ¢ Performance indicators with e Employee feedback, participation,
; ; ; management implementation plans and measures and complaints
Management e |egal and customer requirements e  Training * Review and assessment
System Risk assessment and management e  Communication e Corrective measures

The Company is committed to supporting the growth of suppliers and boosting the development of the domestic chip
industry. In 2022, the Company cooperated with Zhonghuan Advanced Semiconductor Materials Co., Ltd. (“Zhonghuan
Advanced Semiconductor”), a silicon wafer supplier, in taking the joint development and growth action to jointly
promote the improvement of quality management and product quality through mutual solidarity and cooperation.
The Company and the quality and technical members of Zhonghua Advanced Semiconductor formed a key team to
conduct pre-management in the daily production process of Zhonghua Advanced Semiconductor, and to facilitate
the establishment of production process management and control systems such as management system, fault
detection and control system, statistical process management system, etc. suitable for the semiconductor industry in
Zhonghuan. In the meantime, the Company carried out special audits to assist Zhonghuan Advanced Semiconductor
in improving its management process. For key quality control points, we helped Zhonghua Advanced Semiconductor
to implement the requirements of the semiconductor industry, carry out independent continuous improvement
activities, and constantly enhance its quality management awareness. Furthermore, a series of actions of Zhonghua
Advanced Semiconductor have also been applied to the management of its upstream suppliers to facilitate the sound
development of the semiconductor industry supply chain.
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Responsible Minerals Management

“Conflict Minerals” are obtained by local armed militias by way of long-time forced labor, child labor, and damaging
the environment and ecology. Such metals are also the main capital source of illegal armed organizations. According
to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and research reports of certain international
nongovernmental organizations, such minerals are likely to be used for electronic and electrical products, such as
mobile phones and computers, in ICT industries.

Metal mineral resources such as gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), tin (Sn) and cobalt (Co) will be involved
in the Company’s production and operation process. The Company is aware of the risk of significant negative
impacts from mining, trading, processing and exporting minerals in conflict-affected and high-risk areas. In order to
effectively reduce the Company'’s risk in relation to conflict minerals, the Company has formulated the Conflict Minerals
Management Policy in accordance with the Responsible Minerals Initiative (RMI). In addition to self-management, the
Company also requires all suppliers to promise not to purchase “conflict minerals” in conflict-affected and high-risk
areas, so as to ensure the effective management of responsible minerals.

OQ Hua Hong Conflict Minerals Management Policy

The Company takes global social and environmental responsibility as our goal and carries out green procurement

and has promised to undertake the following responsibilities in its metal supply chain:

1. We undertake to assume social and environmental responsibilities.

2. Suppliers whose raw materials contain gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), and tin (Sn) are required to
purchase materials according to the Responsible Minerals Policy, while suppliers whose raw materials contain
cobalt (Co) are required to disclose the smelters of cobalt.

3. We undertake to cause our suppliers to provide the declaration that they do not use gold (Au), tantalum (Ta),
tungsten (W), tin (Sn), and cobalt (Co) from “conflict minerals”, and to carry out an investigation into conflict
minerals, and complete the Conflict Minerals Reporting Template (CMRT) and the Extended Minerals Reporting
Template (EMRT) under the Responsible Minerals Initiative (RMI).

All gold and tin used by the Company in its production process are from China; 75% of the tungsten used comes
from China and 25% from Japan; One third of the cobalt used comes from China, one third from Japan and one third
from Europe. During the Reporting Period, none of the gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W) or tin (Sn) used by the
Company was from the regions with armed conflict.

Types and Sources of Minerals Used

Gold (Au) and tin (Sn) Tungsten (W) Cobalt (Co)

y
&=

m China m China®= Japan m China = Japan= Europe
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The Company has conducted due diligence on the responsible mineral supply chain of suppliers involving minerals
and requires suppliers to disclose information on sources of minerals and smeltery, so as to ensure that our suppliers
comply with the Company’s management policies for conflict minerals. In 2022, a total of 8 suppliers were involved in
the due diligence, covering 100% of suppliers that are involved in “conflict minerals”. In the due diligence audit this
year, no major issues concerning child labor, inhuman treatment, forced labor, armed conflict, ecological damage, etc.
were found; among which, the suppliers who do not use conflict minerals account for 100% as verified by the third-
party organization.

5.2 Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery

The Company is committed to the development of a business ethics culture and has formulated the Undertaking
System on Anti-Corruption and Business Ethics, the Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Policy, and other internal
management regulations, explicitly specifying that companies having business dealings with the Company (including
all suppliers) shall sign the Undertaking Against Commercial Bribery and that all the relevant internal personnel shall
sign the Undertaking on Business Ethics.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-bribery Policy of Hua Hong Semiconductor

All employees (including part-time employees), senior management, and Board members are required to abide
by relevant laws and regulations practice and behave with integrity, diligence, and self-discipline. Corruption and
bribery in all forms are prohibited, including:

prohibiting commercial bribery and maintaining fair competition order;

prohibiting seeking for illegitimate benefits through taking advantage of influence in position and work; never
violating financial management and operation regulations, or seeking personal gain in the name of the Company;
prohibiting practicing fraud to undermine the legitimate interests and reputation of the Company;

prohibiting any receipt of presents, cash gifts, securities and finances that

may cause a negative influence on work.

The Company carries out audits on anti-corruption and business ethics on a regular basis. In 2022, the Company has
completed audits of internal management on anti-corruption and business ethics, and found no violation. In addition,
the Company is committed to creating a sound business ethics culture by regularly introducing warning articles and
cases in internal publications and providing training activities on anti-corruption and business ethics for all employees.
On 15 September 2022, the Company held the 2022 Business Ethics Education Conference, and carried out a special
training on the theme of “Knowledge on Anti-Corruption Party Conduct and Business Ethics” for all key positions and
related personnel.

The Company sets up smooth whistle-blowing channels, and provides defined whistle-blowing channels, including
E-mail, hotline and mailbox, to encourage employees to make real-name or anonymous complaints and whistle-
blowing. The Company comprehensively handles whistle-blowing calls and letters at any time to achieve early
detection, resolution and control, as well as appropriate treatment.

The Company establishes a standardized whistle-blowing case treatment procedure, and carries out the whistle-
blowing procedure, classified acceptance, investigation and treatment work. In addition, the Company takes measures
to protect whistleblowers, and all information related to whistleblowers will be kept strictly confidential. The Company
protects the employees or external personnel from unfair treatment such as dismissal, demotion, suspension,
intimidation, harassment or any other form of retaliation for whistle-blowing through legal channels.
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Business Ethics Supervision and Whistle-blowing Case Handling Procedures

RiEnge el pememel Complete the investigation and

Immediately record any or establish a special team B S i A e
individual whistleblowing to understand the situation, : L Al [
time limit, draw preliminary conclusions

case received. carry out an investigation,
and report to management.

and obtain evidence.

Hold a special meeting to review the
Give feedback to the « contents of the whistle-blowing case
whistleblower. and investigation results, and

come up with a solution.

During the Reporting Period, no corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or money-laundering event has occurred to the
Company, nor has any litigation case arising from the above events occurred.

5.3 Risk Management

The Company continuously improves its risk management organization system, and optimizes its internal control
system. Since 2016, the Company has established procedures for risk management through the Internal Audit
Department, which issued the “Rules about Comprehensive Control of Risks” and carried out related projects. It
continuously improves the risk maps, and upgrades relevant policies and processes, so as to effectively enhance its
comprehensive risk management capabilities.

In 2022, the Company comprehensively prevented and supervised its internal and external risks based on the
“three-line model” of risk management, taking into account the principle of comprehensiveness and importance.
The Company carried out an annual comprehensive risk assessment covering Shanghai and Wuxi, interviewed
management with regard to risks through risk questionnaires, identified major risk areas, and formed an annual risk
management report. Each business line collected and reported the respective risk events for the record quarterly or
irregularly. In addition, the Company carried out risk management training, and discussed risk events among various
business lines and at the corporate level.

Key Operational Risks and Countermeasures

Risk Category Risk Factor Countermeasures

Strategy Strategic planning The Company formulated strategic objectives from top to
bottom and appropriately deconstructed and implemented
such objectives in specific business models of corporate
operation, to ensure the accomplishment of strategic

objectives.
External economic and The Company can always maintain a high growth momentum
policy impact through reasonable adjustment of product structure and
gradual substitution with domestic products.
Operation Talent reserve and We set up the talent resume database, carried out a talent
development inventory, continuously explored recruitment channels,

optimized the salary structure, and improved the supporting
welfare policies to comprehensively enhance the Company’s
attraction and employee satisfaction.
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Risk Category

Risk Factor

Countermeasures

Supply chain

The Company enhances its right to speak in the industry
chain through its technological advantages, signs medium

— and long-term strategic agreements with suppliers, sets a
safe inventory level for each production material, regularly
reviews the rationality of the safe inventory level, makes timely
adjustments according to market changes, and continuously
evaluates suppliers’ capacity and product quality to ensure
stability of the supply chain.

Information security

The Company has established its information security
framework and management policy; implements the risk
evaluation procedure for information security every year; and
continuously monitors all kinds of key information through
data protection system (DLP), so as to maintain the optimal
interests of the Company, its shareholders, its customers, its
suppliers and its employees.

Research and development The Company improves the R&D project management

system, conducts comprehensive monitoring on R&D project
initiation, implementation, and post-evaluation, enhances the
ability of project managers, and develops new products with
commercial value continuously in a timely manner.

Exchange fluctuations

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are settled
in the same foreign currency whenever possible to reduce
the need for foreign currency exchange, thus reducing risks
arising from exchange rate fluctuations.

Environment and
Safety

Environment

We design management procedures based on our observation,
assessment, and control of environmental factors and list major
environmental factors.

Safety check

Safety checks focusing on troubleshooting and fault diagnosis
are carried out continuously and regularly.

Occupational health

We have developed the goals, indicators, and program
management forms for our environmental and occupational
health and safety programs, in accordance with the Company’s
established goals, indicators, and program management
procedures for health, safety, and environment (“HSE”).
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5.4 Protection of Investors’ Rights and Interests

As a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company strictly complies
with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the
Takeovers Code and the Code on Share Repurchases, and sets up a professional working group to carry out investor
relationship management and to strengthen the communication between the Company and investors. The Company
has also established channels for the Company’s management to receive suggestions from investors, so as to
continuously improve the corporate governance level, and effectively protect the legitimate rights and interests of
investors.

While carrying out investor relationship management, the Company communicates with the capital market through
multiple channels about the Company’s business operation and management status, financial position, product
technology, major issues and other information, based on the principle of “equal treatment of all investors”, the
requirement on “compliance information disclosure” and the standard of “honest and trustworthy operation and
interactive communication”. The Company also proactively discloses information related to the Company concerned by
investors, and fully protects the legitimate rights and interests of investors.

Investor Communication Channel

General
meeting of
shareholders

NDR road Regular
show report

Investor
Communication
Official website Channel
and WeChat
account of the
Company

Direct
hotline of
investors

Online/offline
communication
meeting

Special Email
for investors

In 2022, the Company held one annual general meeting and two special general meetings of shareholders, at which
resolutions were passed by voting. Meanwhile, all shareholders of the Company were invited to participate in the
above meetings, including all small — and medium-sized investors of the Company. Furthermore, the Company held
four performance exchange meetings during the Reporting Period, with a total of 1,303 participants.
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6 Industry and Community

6.1 Industry Development

The Company actively participated in the industry co-development activities to facilitate the high-quality development
of the IC industry and to help Shanghai build an ecological highland for the IC industry. During the Reporting period,
the Company has participated in the drafting of one industry standard and the review of five industry standards, and
actively attended in the industry summit to jointly promote the high-quality development of the industry.

6.2 Community and Charity

In order to enhance the safety awareness of community residents, the Company has provided the “First Aid Course for
Accidents” in the community where the headquarters operates, including First Aid knowledge and cardiopulmonary
resuscitation, for five years.

The Company is enthusiastic in public welfare undertaking, and persists in organizing voluntary blood donation every
year. In addition, the Company has organized employees to regularly visit the elderly in the community nursing home
every year, to chitchat, make wontons, and carry out activities, so as to entertain and care for the elderly. During the
COVID-19, the Company has actively participated in the volunteer services, helped maintain the order on the spot, and
delivered residents’ living materials for quarantined buildings. The Company has received many letters of appreciation
for its contribution to the community’s anti-pandemic work.

Volunteer Service Highlights Performance in 2022

Actively participated in community epidemic nucleic A total of 4,198 employees participated in volunteer
acid testing volunteer service service

Actively participated in the Company’s internal epidemic A total of 89 employees, with 1,098 hours of service in
prevention and control aggregate




106 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #i1-@&8HE A 7] « 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE3iE

2022 ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT

7 Appendix
71 Quantitative Performance
Environment
Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Emissions
Total air emissions 10,000 m® 1,773,740 2,319,307 2,391,024
Nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions Kg 19,688 36,857 32,650
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions Kg 338 2,239 3,546
Total wastewater discharge 10,000 m® 603 704 832
GHG emissions' Ton of CO, equivalent 448,614 713,649 497,938
Of which: Direct GHG emissions Ton of CO, equivalent 18,135 24,803 24,877
Indirect GHG emissions? Ton of CO, equivalent 430,479 697,899 473,060
Ton of CO, equivalent/8-
GHG emissions per unit output inch wafers 0.23 0.20 0.12
Total hazardous waste Ton 9,262 17,363 20,385
Hazardous waste produced per unit
output Kg/8-inch wafers 3.96 4.96 4.88
Total non-hazardous waste® Ton 6,143 8,981 9,864
Non-hazardous waste produced per unit
output Kg/8-inch wafers 2.67 2.57 2.36
Use of Resources
Total electricity consumed MWh 720,840 867,682 954,667
Electricity consumed per unit product kWh/8-inch wafers S1i3) 248 228
Natural gas consumed m? 10,312,006 11,456,569 10,530,287
Natural gas consumed per unit product — m?38-inch wafers 4.49 3.27 2.52
Total water consumed* m? 9,907,631 15,707,212 18,010,226
Of which: Water from municipal water
supply m? 7,035,272 8,928,040 10,284,063
Wastewater reused® m? 2,872,359 6,788,287 7,726,163
Water consumed per unit product® ms/8-inch wafers 2.89 2.55 2.46
Recycled/reused water m? 4,042,020 86,119,337 107,163,560
Total packaging materials used for the
shipment of finished products Ton 128 253.5 3138.32
Packaging materials used for the
shipment of per unit finished product  Kg/8-inch wafers 0.06 0.07 0.07
Recycled packaging materials used for
the shipment of finished products Ton 22 48.5 54.0
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Notes:

1

GHG emissions are calculated in accordance with the GB/T 32150 General Guideline for Calculation and Reporting of GHG
Emissions from Industrial Enterprises and the GB/T 32151 Requirements on Calculation and Reporting of GHG Emissions
published by the Standardization Administration of China.

In 2022, the indirect GHG emissions in Shanghai and Wuxi production bases were calculated according to the Guidelines for
Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions in Shanghai (Trial) (Hu Fa Gai Huan Zi [2012] No. 180) and the Notice
on the 2023-2025 Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emission Reporting Management in Power Generation Industry, respectively,
among which, Shanghai production base uses a default value of electricity emission factor of 4.2tCO,/104kWh, and Wuxi
production base uses the national average grid emission factor of 0.5703tCO,/MWh when calculating.

Non-hazardous waste is sludge produced in wastewater treatment.

Total water consumption = water consumption from municipal water supply + wastewater reuse.

In 2022, the Company revised the amount of wastewater recycled in 2021, and the total amount of water consumption in 2021
was revised accordingly. The data in relation to wastewater recycled and total water consumption for 2021 set out in this report

shall prevail.

In calculation, water consumed per unit product only includes water from the municipal water supply.
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Employment and Labor Practice

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Employment
Total number of employees Person 5,682 6,084 6,760
Including: Number of male employees Person 4164 4,426 4932
Number of female employees Person 1,518 1,658 1,828
Number of employees working under a
labor contract with the employer Person 5,682 6,084 6,760

Number of employees working under
a labor contract with a labor dispatch

company Person 113 85 81
Part-time employees Person 0 0 0
Number of employees aged under 30 Person 2,542 2,676 2,983
Number of employees aged between 30
and 50 Person 3,018 3,271 3,624
Number of employees aged above 50 Person 122 137 153
Number of employees from Mainland China Person 5,673 6,075 6,751
Number of foreign employees Person 9 9 9
Health and Safety
Occupational disease incidence % 0 0 0
Number of work-related fatalities Person 0 0 0
Percentage of work-related fatalities % 0 0 0
Lost days due to work injury Day 235 367 83
Employee Training
Average training hours completed per employee Hour 100.1 119.9 122.2
Including: Average training hours completed per non-
management employee Hour 101.4 121.5 123.7
Average training hours completed per
management member Hour 18.3 23.5 26.5
Average training hours completed per
female employee Hour 96.8 123.8 124.3
Average training hours completed per
male employee Hour 101.3 118.5 121.4
Percentage of employees trained % 100 100 100
Including: The percentage of non-management
employees trained % 100 100 100
Percentage of management member
trained % 100 100 100
Percentage of female employees trained % 100 100 100

Percentage of male employees trained % 100 100 100
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Product Responsibility and Customer Service

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Product Responsibility and Customer Service
Product return rate % 0.07 0.05 0.11
Percentage of products sold subject to recalls for

safety and health reasons % 0 0 0

Customer Service
Number of complaints received in relation to products

and services Case 8 0 0
Percentage of customer complaints resolved % 100 / /

Supply Chain Management

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Supply Chain Management
Total number of suppliers Supplier 535 545 550
Total number of local suppliers Supplier 399 410 413
Total number of foreign suppliers Supplier 133 136 138
Number of suppliers assessed’ Supplier 110 115 112
Number of suppliers subject to rectification Supplier 0 0 0
Percentage of raw and auxiliary material suppliers

signing the Environmental Protection Undertaking Y% 100 100 100
Percentage of raw materials purchased from local

suppliers 2 % 28 29 31

Notes:

1 The number of suppliers which were assessed by the Company in terms of labor, health and safety, environment, and business
ethics.

2 Raw materials purchased include silicon slices, quartz, target materials, gases, chemicals, and other raw materials for
production.
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Anti-corruption

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Anti-corruption
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt

practices brought against the issuer or its

employees during the reporting period Case 0 0 0

Community Investment

Performance Indicators Unit 2020 2021 2022
Community Investment
Number of employees participating in volunteer

services Person 449 1,324 4,189
Total hours of volunteer activities Hour 450 1,986 6,283

a) List of Regulations and Relevant Policies Observed by the Company

Fields

Names of Laws and Regulations

Environmental Responsibility

Environmental
Protection

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, Urban and Rural Planning Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Marine Environment Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, etc.

Product Responsibility

Product and

Cyber Security Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Cryptography Law of the People’ s

Service Republic of China, Accounting Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Regulation on the
Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes, Company Law of the People’ s Republic of China,
Constitution of the People’ s Republic of China, Law of the People’ s Republic of China on
Product Quality, Customs Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Metrology Law of the People’ s
Republic of China, Foreign Trade Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Regulation concerning the Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals ( “REACH" ), Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment (WEEE), Restriction of Hazardous Substances ( “RoHS” ), etc.
Intellectual Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Property Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, etc.
Protection
Responsibility for Employees
Employee Law of the People’s Republic of China on Employment Contracts, Law of the People’s Republic of
Employment China on Protection of Women'’s Rights and Interests, Employment Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, Civil Code of the
People’s Republic of China, Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Measures for the Administration of Health Insurance, Measures for
Application for and Payment of Unemployment Insurance Money, etc.
Occupational Law of the People’ s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
Health and Production Safety Law of the People’ s Republic of China, Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Safety Insurances, etc.

During the Reporting Period, no violation against the above-mentioned laws, regulations and relevant provisions has
occurred to the Company, nor has any litigation case arising from the above events occurred.
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b) Benchmarking Index

Part B: Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Mandatory Disclosure ltems Section in the Report
Governance Structure ESG Management System
Reporting Principles Preparation of the Report
Reporting Boundary Preparation of the Report

Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Section

Subject Area A. Environmental
Aspect A1. Emissions

General Disclosure A1 Emissions Management
KPI A1.1 Key Quantitative Performance Statement
KPI A1.2 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
KPI A1.3 Quantitative Performance
KPI A1.4 Quantitative Performance
KPI A1.5 ESG Management Strategy
KPI A1.6 Emissions Management
Aspect A2. Use of Resources
General Disclosure A2 Energy Management
Water Resources Management
KPI A2.1 Energy Management
KPI A2.2 Water Resources Management
KPI A2.3 Energy Management
KPI A2.4 Water Resources Management
KPI A2.5 Quantitative Performance
Aspect A3. Environment and Natural Resources
General Disclosure A3 Energy Management
Water Resources Management
KPI A3.1 Energy Management

Water Resources Management

Aspect A4. Coping with Climate Change
General Disclosure A4 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
KPI A4.1 Quantitative Performance
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Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Disclosure Section

Subject Area B. Social Employment and Labour Practices

Aspect B1. Employment
General Disclosure B1
KPI B1.1

KPI B1.2

Employee Interests and Benefits
Quantitative Performance
Quantitative Performance

Aspect B2. Health and Safety
General Disclosure B2

KPI B2.1

KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

Employee Health and Safety
Quantitative Performance
Quantitative Performance
Quantitative Performance

Aspect B3. Development and Training
General Disclosure B3

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

Employee Development and Training
Quantitative Performance
Quantitative Performance

Aspect B4. Labor Standards
General Disclosure B4

KPI B4.1

KPI B4.2

Employee Interests and Benefits
Employee Interests and Benefits
No Violation

Subject Area B. Social Operating Practices
Aspect B5. Supply Chain Management
General Disclosure B5

KPI B5.1

KPI B5.2

Sustainable Supply Chain Management
Quantitative Performance
Supply Chain Management

Aspect B6. Product Responsibility
General Disclosure B6

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests

Quantitative Performance

Quantitative Performance

Customer Service Management

Customer Service Management
Information Security and Privacy Protection

Aspect B7. Anti-corruption
General Disclosure B7

KPI B7.1

KPI B7.2

Anti-corruption
Quantitative Performance
Anti-corruption

Aspect B8. Community Investment
General Disclosure B8

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

Voluntary Service and Public Charity
Voluntary Service and Public Charity
Quantitative Performance
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c) Glossary of Proper Terms and Abbreviations

Proper Terms and Abbreviations

Definition

Tapeout

WIP (Working In Progress)

WAT (Wafer Acceptance Test)

CDA (Compressed Dry Air)

MAU (Make-up Air Unit)

BCD (Bipolar-CMOS-DMOS)

ERT (Emergency Response Team)

IGBT (Insulated Gate Bipolar
Transistor)

MOSEFT (Metal-Oxide-Semiconductor
Field-Effect Transistor)

MCU (Microcontroller Unit)

ASIC (Application Specific Integrated
Circuit)

OBC (On Board Charger)

PMIC (Power Management IC)

BMS (Battery Management System)

With the original meaning of “off the line”, it refers to the final step of
integrated circuit (IC) or printed circuit board (PCB) design, namely,
delivery for manufacturing.

Also known as workshop production management, it refers to the work-
in-process area of the work center, which provides the storage space of
raw materials, finished products and semi-finished products for the work
center.

It refers to the test of special test key, which monitors whether each
process is normal and stable through electrical parameters.

It refers to Compressed Dry Air.

It refers to a fresh air unit, a kind of air conditioning equipment that
provides fresh air.

It is a monolithic integrated process technology, which can produce
Bipolar, CMOS and DMOS devices on the same chip.

It refers to the emergency response team, or the response team in
emergency.

It refers to Insulated Gate Bipolar Transistor, which is a composite fully-
controlled voltage-driven power semiconductor device composed of
BJT (Bipolar Junction Transistor) and MOS (Insulated Gate Field Effect
Transistor).

It refers to Metal-Oxide-Semiconductor Field-Effect Transistor, known as
MOSFET.

It is a microcontroller unit, also known as single-chip microcomputer or
single-chip computer. It reduces the frequency and specification of the
central processing unit appropriately, and integrates peripheral interfaces
such as memory, counter, USB, A/D converter, UART, PLC, DMA, and
even LCD drive circuit on a single chip to form a chip-level computer for
different combination control for different applications.

It refers to the Application Specific Integrated Circuit, which is an
integrated circuit designed and manufactured in response to the
requirements of specific users and specific electronic systems.

It refers to the on-board charger fixed on the electric vehicle.

Also know as Power Management IC, it is an application specific
integrated circuit, with its function to manage the power supply of the
master system.

It refers to the battery management system, mainly used to carry out
intelligent management and maintenance of each battery cell, prevent
overcharge and over discharge of the battery, extend the service life and
monitor the status of the battery.
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d) Preparation of the Report

In the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited 2022 (the “Report”), key
issues and opportunities of concern to stakeholders are identified through materiality analysis, and the Company’s
actions and achievements in economic, social and environmental aspects are disclosed to various stakeholders.

Scope of the Report
Organizational Scope: The Report covers Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited and its subsidiaries, and is consistent with
the scope of the annual consolidated financial statements of the Company.

Reporting Period: From 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

Basis of the Report
e  Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (effective from January 2022) published by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Source

There are no material changes in the methods of obtaining and calculating the information in the Report, compared
with annual reports for previous years. Data and cases in the Report originate from original records and financial
reports of the Company generated in actual operations. In case of any inconsistency, data in the financial reports shall
prevail. Unless otherwise specified, all the monetary amounts in the Report are denominated in RMB.

Reporting Principles

° Materiality principle. The Company identifies the substantive issues in relation to business operation concerned
by investors and other stakeholders as the focus of this Report. The reporting on substantive issues in this Report
also focuses on the industry characteristics and regional characteristics involved in the Company’s operation. In
the meantime, this Report highlights the ESG matters that may have significant influence on investors and other
stakeholders.

e Quantitative and consistency principle. This Report discloses key quantitative performance indicators and
historical data as much as possible. The statistical and disclosure methods of the same indicator in this Report
are consistent in different reporting periods; Any change, where possible, in the statistical and disclosure methods
shall be fully explained in the notes to the Report, so that the stakeholders can conduct meaningful analysis and
evaluate the quantitative principle for the development trend of the Company’s ESG performance level. The Report
has disclosed the basis of calculating the quantitative ESG KPIs and emissions of the Company. For details, see
Appendix Quantitative Performance to the Report.

e  Balance principle. The Report reflects the objective facts and discloses both positive and negative information
related to the Company impartially. The Company has searched the objects within the scope of this Report
through Shanghai Qingyue Credit Database (data.epmap.org), and did not find any negative events that should
be disclosed but not disclosed during the Reporting Period.
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BERE, AEEEe, MREFTQAMMEF, BRESFSLEUMEEEFRETHW. TFEEREFTSSTHEAME
FNFEHCAMEBETZE[ER, MEBESHMRIIMWEATTD . THEAIE, EFETFSEEREBIIFRNT
EFEMNAE, VERARMESTHENELTSFEARTEL —REHo
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BE_T-_—_F+-_A=1t—"HLFE, BAARPHRHMNZEIRG Kk EAZ 2R RS C A BN AR BZEE LK
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R &5 EERA
—F-= —g-= —E-—F T R4t AL &1t
ES % FET % FET %
FEELE 2,376,659 96.0% 1,561,846 95.8% 814,813 52.2%
Hth 98,829 4.0% 68,908 4.2% 29,921 43.4%
G 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%
. ZEZZF, RA96.0%MEEBARE Y ERABENHEERA
REFERBIDEERA
—E-= —E-= B —T-_—F ilsd-dld Atk B 4b
FER % F=T % FET %
ES UNGCIE I ik /NG 2,267,446 91.6% 1,496,782 91.8% 770,664 51.5%
& e RLER (IDMs) 208,042 8.4% 133,972 8.2% 74,070 55.3%
&t 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

. NEARBEGARMERGH RA QB FEPRENEZRAELI1.6%,
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B fF ZE-C T —F T —F Gilsd:-2le Elsd-dld

FEx % FET % FETT %

H 1,811,269 73.2% 1,205,149 73.9% 606,120 50.3%
bl 297,683 12.0% 159,281 9.8% 138,402 86.9%
o E b g 210,610 8.5% 169,227 10.4% 41,383 24.5%
BUOM & 114,728 4.6% 70,627 4.3% 44.101 62.4%
A& 41,198 1.7% 26,470 1.6% 14.728 55.6%
=X 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

2 FIXERATERIBERRZROTIS, EWELLIERE86.9%.

BEMBRE S EERA

—F-=- t. S - —F T —F Gilsd=d1s Gilsd-d1e

SR % FET % FETT %

BARNIES K ETFEES(NVM) 767,568 31.0% 459,104 28.2% 308,464 67.2%
B A IS KT REZR(SNVM) 208,171 8.4% 88,796 5.4% 119,375 134.4%
DAL 774,638 31.3% 557,893 34.2% 216,745 38.9%
5 EAET 4R 274,384 11.1% 272,053 16.7% 2,331 0.9%
Bt (Analog) L E R E I (PM) 448,648 18.1% 250,466 15.4% 198,182 79.1%
HAb 2,079 0.1% 2,442 0.1% (363) (14.9%)
At 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

T F, RAREZRUEGFRHB[EMARFIE R, ERAMCUERFBERR BNEER K,

“ECF, puRMERELIER38.9%, NRAFE -ARBRE,
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EEEHE

BRIBHHEDEZRA
—E-——F === —E-—F T4 Gilzd:=2(d Ellsd:X(d
FEx % FET % FETT %
55494 M 654K 355,161 14.3% 157,854 9.7% 197,307 125.0%
QOANK I 954K 505,233 20.4% 280,235 17.2% 224,998 80.3%
0.115K 5. 0.13%0K 426,387 17.2% 302,920 18.6% 123,467 40.8%
0.15%K & 0.18fK 206,733 8.4% 164,260 10.1% 42,473 25.9%
0.25fK 15,027 0.6% 22,926 1.4% (7,899) (34.5)%
>0.35%K 966,947 39.1% 702,559 43.0% 264,388 37.6%
=X 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%
. RES5HK L5 RK TEMMB M E W RIERK, RELIBRER125.0%,
REWHHIGE D EZRA
—E-— —E_C T —F B —F Elsg-Lie Elsd-Ile
ES % FET % FETT %
HBET 1,599,116 64.6% 1,039,325 63.7% 559,791 53.9%
TEMAEET 550,342 22.2% 316,194 19.4% 234,148 74.1%
L 248,033 10.0% 218,946 13.4% 29,087 13.3%
e 77,997 3.2% 56,289 3.5% 21,708 38.6%
&5t 2,475,488 100.0% 1,630,754 100.0% 844,734 51.8%

. “ECCHERANERERARERETISHE2RBVFHIER, FRHRTIEMTEETFMHEN741%mK Ko



2022 F[Z#E ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #1882 AR /AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTORLIMITED 145

EEEHE

ERRERNAER
=B THEESEA) —=E—= —E- R &L
HE T — 3R 65 65 =
AT — iR 60 60 —
YT = R 53 53 -
8L~ B AEREART 178 178 =
AT R (1258~ SR EIERE ) 65 60 5
EffAE (E8iTHE) 107.4% 107.5% (0.1)%
. T EEA8ETREERFMAZ107.4%,
HERE
THR&E —=E-= T Gilsd:-2(4
fHiE&E (Yras%E~TaE) 4,087 3,328 22.8%
. - ERRANERERLL EF22.8%,
ol 8¢

EIEREBIPHREELRMTOME. AEFNEL, TEBERARARNESIAUEEHRE. BYAEFIREERH
2. DM (Discrete). E#EE(Analog)MEBEREERE. MZEHE(Logic) B S EZE/LFT, BHEATPREMNETES
KB TERTMRE, —T-—F, EMFERBERAI8ET+120 | EEFAER, RE[FERIC+Power
Discrete | TBMAAR12ETEEFANBEREMESENESE,

BARESREFHEEANRMTEARAREN L SR S FXBLUCRRZ—, TERETERTAMMUES
BMABCHER, SeRATE, AFATABERNIOMNRKRAXNERMAERBE L RERBREERT TRH
5, S5 KRTRIBNBEREE, RAXEZRUEFRHBFERFNRBERSKF. EMREHRETE, 128T8RA
ARFEMCUEAEE, MERNNA, BRT T _FRARAMEHNIERRERHEE. HEREUMER, /7
BARNGFIZEELEE, BEREMS DM, TEREMNO1BOR R D FIE LA Z B0 KEINERBERERA
ARFIZFERFERSOTSRAE, BZREBBEMCU. Type-CEAEGINA . BIZESH. SERERT
. BAREMEAIEETFERL. R, ABETANAERNSHKSEMCURAXNFIEFaHEERER, &
—HSRATRZIEFANTELERRTABRTS, AXPRUERCTREERBNENESER,
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EEEHH

RO F, FRRREERTEERCOREANEDESRENFELR, RE. BALREMTIEERAFNXRES
HhhLEFRES, DAFSE—EARENRRAREARDARANERS USRS TEFAFELER, HThB5MESRT &
BE(GBT)RMTFERBFHERR, BEBE\FRESER, 1286 TIGBTEEIHEHER U HA D LIERHOTK
B, BAMBEERTEEZRRNAR, REXER. /L. MRIFETEZNEBEZT, EEPHEIFEEIN
FFERBEEFERRT TREHBF o RERE1258 T AREXNEBSuper JunctionBR & BAILY+EES
MIEE(MOSFET), IBFSER T ERERY:, 2FHEEER—NHAI LR, EFENH — KR EE(Deep-Trench)
RMBRTEEMNEELRMRINEF O, REETLER. REH. ML REHZTEROBC)BIEZEM, B
BOWXBMHIEFETHE, ARMKEENGRE. EREBEHEIAFERE, MATEEFMHHRE, TERRZmT
LRk, REPHREREENEMERTRE,

AFIBCD(Bipolar-CMOS-DMOS) TEF A — 2~ — FEETHADILE, LLERRSELREILME, TEH
EREREE. SERESEER. ER128TREFOMKBCOTETARE LR, RIBARETER. BF S
B HETIS AN, ERETRETHEDC S EAES, 850 1880KRIA L (EBFBCOTBEFA RSB ELBE
LR, THRTETEIES, RAKTIRERALEE. SEREEESE, A7BHEA600-700kBCOTET
&, ERERBENRTERRAERBHOAEE, TERTEETTHRERE, WERARTHER, MESE
TIRBREEURKRADAEBORARNEADRBATE, AFCHESEERNBCOIE, BERESEE
Ric. BEANSAERERGABR,

BREAEERMFaZIN, FULERDTEHARMNERCRMER. BESERE. IFHEF. TEETEFEA
HYEREGAERMEZRTEHRES, RAFENRTHEA. REAGFRSSFIEYANNE, YE_T__FIWE
CHREH, EFNHTHE, RREFHRFBE4E, R ESHEERAREEINBEB4L 1001, RAEABEFELNLAETFIR
HEENFETEYAEE. BZANIPXHE,

T _FRAMEBERABN—F, MYZERE, ARERATK T E2HEERNERR, SanEIRHIRMERE
EERMITE FEBIC+Power Discrete | TEHARE, EEREEMHEBRARE, ARINARE TRENE
AIRR. REAN, RRFEFREAZERAR, NELEMATXEEFEBHLRERE, QA TEMERREAEH
B ER, RIS, BERRARERTEBSENTHRRS, BFL. GRELE—FTREINARLEERLTE
B, ERFERTHHFROEERRHAGREE, —T-=F, RAHE-TEREH HESL, WERKRSEH
HIEREZRETE, AMBRHENEENTEHES HERSH,
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EEEHG

RE

RE-ZT-_=F, 2REEEHNERFZTRERER, BEHREEI - -_=F2HBERNEEHLB(GDP)ERETE
TBEE1.7%, PFEGDPEEEIIERES%, HEERENE, EHEBETER T AKX A EREELNFEEE
FHERIPKEL, FEI L BRAEEEIING T, AFENRBAALHBEANRET, BRHERBFEMSNES/TE. LR
LR, MREEFOTISHR, BEMSREEFOFERRER, —S2=F, RA12ETEETAKE— PR
BEEBRF N, ENMEE. AEMNFEIBATFRPFENSESIENERGEE, KATFEAREEREFEE
MEBS|E, EfEAE, ARTMNMEFEEMSENRATER, AREBIEL 8T +1258 | BilE, RIFWAESHET
FaBR12ET—HFEEE, WEANMSED _HNERER, ERERMEAFE, Ar2HREREEES
IATF169490E SR X R, —_ T —FHERVHHTEETERS, NEARALREMSHEREY FEETRETNRIE
BHMHHE, ARBFERABEGIERNEN, BIRRAXNTFENESUR[HIRTS, REESHMA, BN
ARRBFHEER,
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EEEHE

EEENwmR DT
Mg RE
—E—-= —E-—F =k )|
FEx FET

SHE A 2,475,488 1,630,754 51.8%
SHERAR (1,631,832) (1,179,156) 38.4%
E7 843,656 451,598 86.8%
HAb A RE 70,986 60,758 16.8%
TEMEN N FER S 78 183 (57.4)%
SHE R DIHE R (12,464) (10,673) 16.8%
ERER (266,666) (198,920) 34.1%
EthER (111,360) (165) 67,390.9%
VB ER (40,331) (13,226) 204.9%
DIEEEE R AR 12,171 6,765 79.9%
BATER 496,070 296,320 67.4%
Frigif =< (89,499) (65,349) 37.0%
F R F 406,571 230,971 76.0%
THALHES.

HAREEA 449,912 261,476 72.1%

IR A (43,341) (30,505) 42.1%
SHEWA

HEWARBIELHS, #24.7558%T, WEFEERS1.8%, JIHNTEREBEILINEFIHHEER LIRS,

HEMAE
HEKAR16.318BFET, W_T_-—FHEKR38.4%, TEHNTERERITEEREMAE,
ER

EMRBATRET, B_F_—FIER86.8%, TEARXNTFIHEER LRMERESEL, FORTEERE AR
HiHo

Haug A R k3
HEMWRAR KR A7 1008 XL, R-ZT - —FHIN16.8%, = Z MR BN EBFIFIE U AL hIFTE

HERDHEH
HENDIHEERB12508%T, BT - —FHEMN16.8%, TEHNATLEREMNFAE,

EEEH
ERBAR2667EFETL, W_T - —FHEMN34.1%, T2HNAEFRBTHE TRIARATLERBEINMAE.

HtER
HBERAI11408%7T, —T-—F /208X, TEMNIMNERE BB _EFEIMNERE UK,
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=

SEHE

BEER

BI5E A A4,0308ET, BT —FIEMN204.9%, EZHRIRTTIEFIGIMATE

PG E D B

DEH A A B R B1,2208 % T, BT = —FHMN79.9%, JHEREE N E) B IR &G AT

e BB

ST 58,9508 % T, BR-T = —F I IM37.0%, T MM FERT RGN

FRBER

FEERRZMEAFET, FREHNHA-E-—FM2.310EETEE4.066BETT, FHNEE16.4%, M_Z_—F5
14.2%

B AR R

—EF —EB-—F ek
t=A=t-B +=A=+—H
FERx FET

FRBEE
M. BEREE 3,367,716 3,116,501 8.1%
WEWE 169,363 184,883 (8.4)%
FREEE 78,425 75,331 4.1%
REEE A RIMRE 130,721 122,040 71%
BERAHEG AR MEEW N ER TR 178,632 257,788 (30.7)%
Hi3Eme&EE 54,794 54,364 0.8%
FRBEEHRE 3,979,651 3,810,907 4.4%
REEE
FE 578,060 432,917 33.5%
B S IEUGRIA R EWEE 291,856 181,042 61.2%
JE s B B 75 R IE 13,006 6,910 88.2%
HibmehEE 182,996 157,935 15.9%
BR#S KOE BIFR 1,042 2,248 (53.6)%
ReMREEED 2,008,765 1,610,140 24.8%
REEELAR 3,075,725 2,391,192 28.6%
REIAE
B S ENFHIR 236,999 194,385 21.9%
ETESRITEN 426,756 195,024 118.8%
FEST AR 77 5E 6,096 7,501 (18.7)%
ISR 37,714 66,837 (43.6)%
HimBaE 674,851 616,654 9.4%
nEBAERAE 1,382,416 1,080,401 28.0%
REEEFHE 1,693,309 1,310,791 29.2%
FRBEE
FTERITIER 1,481,580 1,395,279 6.2%
HEAE 14,644 16,137 (9.3)%
BEIETIEAE 41,268 25,735 60.4%
ERBEBELEE 1,537,492 1,437,151 7.0%
EEFE 4,135,468 3,684,547 12.2%
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EEEHH

R+ A=t-HAECE-_H+ A=+ -HELEDHEB10%NEBNEE

?‘mﬁ?f&%ﬁﬂ\ﬂf&éﬁﬂ&éﬁﬁ%élﬂ
BEERAFEFAEMEERENES T AEHB2578EBE LR E1.78618% L, TEARAFE ML EEZT AR
B,

=&
FEM4329BFETTEE5781BF L, ETEHREFPHIRIEMNATE,

ESRUFERERRE
B S REFIANREKREIRHR1.8108ETEE2.9198%KTT, FE2HNHEWAEINFTE.

FE Uk BR B 5 7R IE
FEUS BB 5 I 6908 £ TIE £ 11,3008 KT, £ E RN E T 7 B EIGRIEIE INFT .

HtvRBEE
HhmeEEM1.5798KTILE1.83018% T, FTEANERTWREMMAE,

EREREMER
ERAE N E BT R R2208 X TR E 1008 %L, FEHRNEERETRD B,

RERREEED
ReRBELFEBYWH16.101EETEE20.088(EE T, FEHN TXRERESTAAZ RE,

ES RN
BHENE IEEE1 944{ERITTIRE2.370(85KTT, ERANMAIREE MR,

FE S BB 5 RO
FERARE 5 SRR 7508 X TURE610BXTT, T2MNE TRE N B S RN TR .

BT BY
BT B H6,6808 X TR ES, 7708XT, TEHNKBIBTHEIE R PIHo.
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EEEHG

FFERITHER
FHERITIE AR R 15,9038 KB E19.08318% 7T, TN RERITEFIE MNAE.

FEEHBRE
BELERIAREM2, 5708 XTI E4,1308 XL, TEHMREA[DIKBRE 2 RINREIH S L A

—E—= —E-—f& o)
EYH FET

KEEBFBIRESREF 5 750,865 518,471 44.8%
REZBMAReREFE (930,156) (863,059) 7.8%
BB EEFSRERE T 672,177 1,014,640 (33.8)%
ReRRSESEYIEMTFE 492,886 670,052 (26.4)%
FURERACEEYD 1,610,140 922,786 74.5%
INEERBSENRE, FHE (94,261) 17,302 (644.8)%
FRASRRAEEEY 2,008,765 1,610,140 24.8%

REZDHRERENEFH
RETHMBRERNEFERTS09EXT, B_F_—FIEMN44.8%, TEAHNHEERAEN, HMOEME . RER
Hro Mg AT,

RETEFTABESRETE

REESARSREFEA302(ExTT, TBHMNI)EARREG2(EETT, (IR —FEt2QARIRE70EET,
U B (YT #Bh3,8408 37T, (iNMBUW A2 850837, (i) HERRIAS70EXET, L(ivVEEBRETEEI0EETH
o

BETHTEREAREFTE

BEEBMERSREFEA6.7228% 7, BIEN)RITERASRIES.14618E 7T, (ii)IEERERTE3.920/8%E T,
(BB FEFMS1,1108 %L, R(iv)EITRMDTEHRIE6208E XL, H(i)EZRITER19,9708%E 7T, (i)F BN
47308 %7, (VXN EEMNKHARLEMNI20EETT, (VXN LETHEMLOEERT, MV)IXNE REFRSOEET
PT84,

BeERBSSEYEINFE
ELIEZENZRAFET, Be kR EBYHEE - F+-_A=+—HH16101BETEEHE T - —F
+=A=+—H#H20.088(EF T,
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EEEHH

Bt 75 L B

A= @b
HPEETSNEEHNER, TRERAEEIHNEFRRITERAE. RMNBRRERETE FHMNEEKES
E ﬁ*lj$ﬂ VI

RoBo—F+=A=+—H0, WREHEMIAL100EH, THERMEERBTE, FRBA®AERL M
1, 4508, J5E B i pOFBRIRRIT AT 8 B L AFHDH R

S R B

BAEERZEEERR, 2FRRIEELERFNPEAMLENTEFRRUETMIEAZFRANNEEEA
REETHNER. RFA, RANHEERTO27% IAETHENFAANNEEEAINERFHE, BItFAR, HE
XA 71% T3AF R R EE E 5 HE,

AN, HAIEmERR B B RITERNINER, ZEFARMAEFTEAMLENTFRRAFA. R-T__F+_-A=+
—R, FREER17.758EX TN BRITEFARITAHE, MIERZFRANNEEE AREE,

RZZE-_—F+-_A=1+—H, WELHAREABEXZES%, MATBEMESEEFTE, BANFERFTRLEF R
DEIEAN416,0508 % TT

ERAR
ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ&1—ﬁﬂm%*ﬁ&@%ﬁ§% REZMOBEK, MAERRERGARZNEFHBBRBERKS
BiFo b9, MRFEHBRFURGHRETTEE, WRMANERERK ITEKO

pi

BANERMEETHREAGEARRNERR: SFEMBHRARANRSMREFEY. BIRUFBERBRER. 5tA
BNFE, HREFEREMEENSREE. BIRHEB T RBEUALERERERFANEEE, RMALBEBFE
EXERRARNEREE,

RBEEER
BANBRAEREERERANARPDESTR, UBRERAVNNREFHRBLRNIZCREBERSEANBEAER
B, NEHEHERPRPESTE,

EXER
BAEAEENEZREAMGENERLRE N MERRIFNERNLR, AXBHRMNEELERBRREBSRAL,

BARBEFNANESD EIELAREARE, Rit, BAXSABKN FRROKE . ARREEEARNKEITHR.
&ﬁTxEﬂ%%MMM§$£Iﬁ@o¢W,EEQﬁMEE\ﬁﬁ%EVMEEHMEO
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EEEHE

EERELR

BEAEL RO BRI B RRM 38,

EE

ARERE-T-—F+- A=+ BULFENEERRNEZBNEBRRRN RS H220F 282 AN B HE.
RE 2

RTEFHBHEMSFTR. BAQXRERERITITRODSHUNZOEF I REHSEOTISRE, AARREAR
. ZlE. HERRABRNEER, URIRAFHERLE. REZRNRA, EFETERMNEE_T__F+ A=+
—BLEEZEARE (ZF=—F. &), ARRAHRFENNRESKFELRELE, /BRI,
HE/%\I—BZ%

ARFREBE-_ZF—AFELE, AAKEERMNE. REREBERVELBEEAREBETRNBAT, RARRBRAE
REFEPIERT, SHRRKERE . SA8EE=FMEKRENFHEHNMERNZ =F I DEFNEHI30%, &
BREOEARASEERREEE,

ERRSERNE THRN, MREBSEEMEEHRRNEAFESRORE . NEZTSZFHRMNERE, REFEAR
SHRERTESTETRPEAEBNREME,

A7 Ik

BE-Z-—F+-A=+—A, FARALBAHIRHEETHSIETRE,

RITERK

AEERE-FT-—F- A=+ ANBTEROMHERNYBRRM E26,

R-ZB-=F+=-A=+—H, AEEETROGRAARBEEEER. SHE—SHE, #2NNBHHRRME6,
MBRE
AEERBERENRFENEAMEAREEARBBHERNEM8E, AHELTHREBRI BRI — 1

Do

ME. BERRE

AEFEETYE. BMEMNRENREMENEE T - —F+-_A=1T—"HUHFENIENEMEH FBEHRMBRER
MizE13 %14,

BEAN, WEMERFBHINMT .

BREEEER
NE RABER AR rEBERER (FHXK)
HPE E TEA® ER-_ZR—F=RA/\BE 100% 91,563.11
SR e T RS
I mRHEE R
SL<FAREE8185%

ONEIETH)— 31
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EEEHH

BEMREXER
AEER T —F+- A=+ ARBEFEEAESANEER,
BAR B AEsT &

ARRBE_T_—_F+-_A=THLFENERAEHFREARNPBHRERMEI0. AT OF=A=ZALRHMQ
ARG ( 5622F ) R115B371k, ELE8BHBREBHHRMNEERNERBIARAS, HBEEEEERDHEH

_%B /7-3\0
RS ([ BRiERT 2 ) ERR_ZE—RFNA —BETHNARRRRSAIASHE, BRIETSINHENT.

BT EImB . BREFENEMERS. RE2EE(ERR TN ) RHHEHE
B, UBREBREEFARERN RGENmEARA R LS RE MK
EBRREEE, EERAARATEE,

2k, BRERE2EE ([ 28E |) 250 AEEEMKE R AINBERRT
FIEAITER, HQUAKEEAKERRNEERENAIHERR
FEEFZENRRAERBURIEEERRMAR Z AL (R FHEAGE
sHEIDIANERREIRARME ), ETREBEEFELIFRTES,

BE2HEENKRDECHE: A ER12(E A BE AR E MAR G RS TR 2 EERE (B
B |, BRCITRE. SEERRITENERRE ) BTREmMAZ2EE
RN ABEERARRAERDHETRAN%, MAFRZ2EE
E—PROBRE, SRRNRERAS LiE, ATAEERA1208A SRR
FEA2EER THEE1%EARBOBERE EXLBEH(EERE
PRl ), EARFAARRTS%IAEMERRERNNOAE, RERR
REBERAE L4, TSR THBRE,

BN TITEATAR B REHE (108 ). 26F ([RIEBBER TRMASBHRE )o

B R TR AN R S M P R AT ) TR B 1.00 BT ARBHEE T ABZER L AMEA28B A, (ERELE
AT RS ER B A S T B R HAR B E,

RZZZZF—F—AAHELNERESE . 93,944,356

BRRESTEI R THIR BRE B AR A RM B MEFE(F. AEER-_F -
NA—BEm. BZARE, BREIETNHTIERLBERELMER
B R

RAImE B, BRETSIR T AMEERITHRN 880/5823,438,8718, HEHITROBENA1.79%,
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EEEHG

BEBRETSRHNERE

R-Z—RAFALANB, ADQRBEBRESZRETEARES0,250,0000 80 ([ —Z—AFHEBIE |), URE

4 330,250,000l AN A A EE K, —E—RAFBRENFBOT.

FITis B B A A1 T 561 6.912/8 7T

iR RS E . 30,250,000 ({5 AR AR HE-_E-_—F+=-A=+—HILE TR,
#2.31% )o

BRI Y A SRR BT RFENANBRE_E-__FAA=ZA(+7)E)IL(BIEY
EmA )

BERS A SR B AR . BREN=SZ—EDIR-_Z—+tFhANB. —T—N\FNANAB

FZZE—NFhLANBERE.
FIRITHEEC.I12BETBRU TEEEHE%: (WREREBHBIAMIFARERTBRERUTES.87ETL,; (I\NBEER
HEHBMAERS BB EERERARFHERNTEC12E T, MiRBERE B —XBSHEARER
sk &R T {E6.8007% I,

RZF-N\F+=-A=+HWABE, AR T@F%h%ﬁﬂﬂ%$ﬂA%ﬁ%5mO%P%h%ﬂf e — \FRERAE ),

AR ﬂﬁm $£34,500,000 A AR L@k, —T— N\FRRENFEOT.

RE B —E-\Ft+ZA-+WA

PR L BB TT R (B - 15.056/8 7T

PR LA R B - 34,500,0007 (A RBBE_T__F+=-A=+—HILEBETRH
#2.64% )

FERAR IR B AR BT \F+-_A-+WALRE-_T-_AF+-_A-+=ZB(L®®)

F)LE(BEERERA)

R SR B HAR . RARARBIRE ( REE )AL RPNEEMS, —T— N\FERE
WUy —BAOIR_ZE_TF+_A_+MA. —T_—F+-_A=
+HBE. 2+ At E_=ZF+_-_A-+WNHR
B, RARFEMEEMS, — T \FEREN=SZ2—EDRIRZ
E-TFA+— ﬂ +EE\:$: F+—A-tWMAR B &+
—“AZ-+mHH

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@wow@ﬁﬁuTxﬁme% (WREL BB ARERAARERETE14.4408 7T, (NAREE
BREASITAEL¥EB B RERMRFYERKITE15.056/87T; (IVREEEHD BB —KBXMEERE
RITRERWTE14.3808 7T, M(iv)RIDBIEE,



156 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZES[-: &2 AR AT » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &

EEEHH

RZZ—NAFZA=+hIB, ARERIEERETEIA— ARE500,0000BERE ([ —T—NF=ZABRE ), ARE

A 500,000 A A B EEEK, —T—NE=ABRENFBOT.

B —E-h&E=A=-+hBE

B BB R 7 T ({8 18.400/8 7T

TR HEE IR B - 500,0000 ({5 A AREHE-—E-——F+-A=+—HIFBE&TRMHH
0.04% )

B IS A 5 SR BE-ZE—NhhE=ZA-F+hhBE_ZE-_R"E=A=-+N\B(E(MF) It
(BEEERB )

BRI 57 B AR . ERENNS Y —BHRR = E-—F+=-_A=-+=H. —_F=-—
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N, RARBEBESLE2REKF,

2022F 5 EZ 2 REET

EIERE BEEE SHEAH
EELEBIEEARIET2022Q1 5,741
FEELZ 2B RIEY2022Q2 6,180
EELZEEERRE2022Q3 I PP EEAMB T 5,018
RE. EE8%2E ﬁ&im 6,400

108

BEARDZSERERELEERTI

RETZH
MRARTEH, RELHESTE. ERNAERFIHEFPEENE R, AREBET(PEARKNEFRE)

(FEARKMBESZLX) TERER, EEMFHEEE I ERBARRTRENT, IHAREREFEXBHRE
AREENEZRETR, BIMBRTIBRIERTE LHM A,

WEHAN, RRERREAREFEETEAREEMELIERNENS,



204  HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #4725 RAF] « 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#is

2022F ERIR. HEREBHE

5 HBEFEE

5.1 HAREMHEEERE

FIEE FHRERE
HEETHERREARREERNEZEK, AFCEY T TENHERETIEER, SN EEHERB(RBA)ZITET
RIEERE, sIE T (HEFLEEEE R HEFRREDREIZHERRER ) SHEHEEEETEZRERE,

I FTEHER
HrEmER HE(R)
S 21
e==rr 91
ey 48

REFNEEFRIERRARELEELREETNER, AREY TREHBAEEREA . HEFEREFN G, XF
HEBKRARHEEBASROOHEEHEERR,

HEBEERA

HEBERERE

EIEITE

HIEmEFEEA

. BEREETHEBBETAENRBANE(RERLEEEEFR), SHEFRLES

T. EARE RREFRE BEERUNEEBRAATHENER,

HRERR. ST, BRITERRRENVEER, ARENRETESELRMA;

. BTEXMBEAENHERET(HRERESEMEENR) A, RABERE LFH
HERRRALKR (HEBLEEMEER) ETEE,

Ak P E e

O HIE (HERRERBLREEHEERR), SFHHERNRE. HeRBETER
MRHEEREE, #RIHEHRERE SRR, WA EHRRHE,

. HNBEREMCHNEER, BXERRF = THeRTRRER, LiRRHEZS
BHFER, EBUEEHERER;

. RARBRBRBEMAHRER, ZRERATERBMENR, TEFENER, B
HEm S RIENETHER.,

. BEHHEREHRRRE CXLSEE [RBATTAER | FNTETEEI, ATE

SRR R FRR. BT, BEEIME,
. 20225 FRMMERBII T EBE TiERH . L2, B, LM FERNHER,
ARk . BERE. ST, BETEXRRTNMENHRER, ARSRERN, TRABIENER

Ko HNTREMBBRERNOHER, SEUREMHREHER,
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2022F BRI, HERECHE

(ZUFERUEBHHEELER) BB

"‘ . BERERE . THEEF
. BEAT N . BT
BT o LiEER o 3R
W] - omze . B R
! . EERARE . BABKEHTIE Ll e EE
B EeIgE ° B EERRR o HER[E o ’
=|, - mEwFTaRs . EmEEY R
I__g o FEFIFRAMENLIEIR o ZEFBERR R Zﬁé/)z;;%mgﬁmggm&
- BENE o« HHIES e e
RIS
T . KBEE . ERBENESREERENG
o SmRIEXFS . ATRH, BEMBE &
mupmm * EEHE * SIHRE o Bk
[ )
= . ERREEER o MARBHEREENEREE « BTRE. 2EMER
S0 o ERMRPEX . s . BT
mmpy ° BRFENERER . BB . WM

RAMHREFREEKR, HERTRITERER, 2022F, AREERHERPRELFERBMEBER AR ( &E
[HRREE ) BERRE T KRBEREKRKTE), BBEHRUEBGHE, KRRECEEENE. EREERM. 47
HARBELDERMAEERKEEL, RATRELAFLEEBRETHEEE, PP REZEEFLFERTENE
BRG. BERAZEGRG. SHEREEARTLIEBRREERRAR., AF, ARHARIFEEZHPETZEERRE,
HYURREEEEN, EPPRAELRFLERTREERNT, DEATFRRFERZEY, THREAEEEERE.
BN, FRELNFITETEREE EFHEANERE, REFESRBITEHBRAHRMER,

RETHEEEHE

[BRBE | RBAEHMAERARAURBNBESTIET BERFEENSTANG, bREIFEREEBNTE
BEHR. RE(ZE - AHRERGSRNERBEEREL) M0 BRIFBFABNTTRSE, HWRBRERARE
WIEE. BENMKMICTEXEARTH, AERSFETERERT.

NEEEEELBIETEF LI E(AU). $B(Ta). IHW). #(Sn). #H(Co)FLBBREZERNER. AARBIEXE
RYENGRBRESEFERERK. X7, BEEELOFEAEEKNEAARZENRAR. SAEMREARZER, 2
AMERIBEA R EBEYETEI(RMNGIE(FRBEEERR ). RAREFEIEIN, AROERMAREHLAARTRER
BARFENSERREN GREE |, BRARZTEEEREE,
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Qﬁ S FRREEERE

HERMEREATHEARMNER, EREEKRE, ARESBHRRTARUTEE:

1. AEREE S ERER T,

2. FBERREUHPEEER(AU). B(Ta). HW). HENWHEEREBREESEBEVMERER, 2REVH 2 E#H(Co)mHt
JRE 72 B 58 £ 0 SRR B TR

3. A EREEHEMRS(AU). $E(Ta). IHW). H(Sn). #H(Co)EBNMER FRBE | B, ETEHREENS
&, KB EEBYETEI(RMI)AIE S & RIEE RS (CMRT) FEREY S (EMRT).

RAEERETEANSNB 2 RETE,; FANIKT5%REFTE, 26%KERAXR,; FANE=22—REFTH, =
DZ—REBAR, Zpz2—REBM. REMA, RAFMEMANE(Au). 8B(Ta). HW). H(Sn)BTREREEFR
&,

BEEARER KRR

&4

=

m = HE = A =R w B = BUM

‘i%
"

REEFEBENHERARAEIBREHERERIEER, EXHERREBRERRAIGRBES, BREERS
EFTRANERBEEIEBR, 2022 EREBABT P NEFIR, BE100%[ FREE | HHER, EAFENER
PEEZT, RERPLET. TABFB. BESH. REFR. FRFESFEAHE; Hd, LE=TRENT
EREREENHEERHLLHIS100%,
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2022F BRI, HERECHE

5.2 RESHEKMER

RABIRARBREXCER, HIET(RBERRENEAGHIRE X RESERBHEER) SAMERHE, HAER
KERRARERPNCEENRRAEHERRZT (RAXBRAHSE ), UERABAEHBARRERE (REKR
EEEE Do

EIERRESRRBEBEBER
ARBFFERT(BRERBET ) SMEEAR. EENEOTETERER, REER, BBER, ZIEATAKN
B HEMRTTR, B
HILREEREITR, GEQTFRIRF,
BN ARG T LR E DRI EE M,
BTERMBERNMERRE, MRABEL. MEARH, TFEER, TREQRSEEEMRITRBE,
TEZARZETENER. B2, AEEFNUBS,

NEEHFRRBREREEERBHETIF, 20225, RATKHEARERASNRBREAFHZBERRIE, K
BREAERRENRR I, ARABNLERZNAXERUESTE, EYABEREPELAERTXENRD, €
HRREMMAEEINRBEREBXBRIFIES, 2022698150, RAAF2L2FRENEHESE, RAEH
REMAREBARRR BERRBEFRREEEMAEE | TENFRE,

AAABBTREGBNBRRE, RHUBM. EF. FHESEWNERRE, BB TRABERKERNTT NETRF
MEBHK, 2HUBKEIRE. KERE, HAIRER. BHR. BEH, 2EEE,
RAEIRBNBREERF, FERRREND BRI, AEVNERETIF, R, QRRRREEHERAETRE,
BRBRANEEHEERRT, BRETIIIIMAETIERERZECETRERMZIRE. BE. EB. BW. &
BEIRPHREREAEMEANRET RO

BREREEREREERF

e ZHEE AT LS EREBRARRAER
S e S wmp m EBEEL = EIF BHOSEH,
T R BERE, T HEREER.

¥

BHEELE, BEER
REEEBA €& NIRATER, BHE
=y

WEHA, REARBERS. BE. DR, BEFARENEMN, ERA LRFASIENFAREE L,
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2022F BRI, HEREBHE

5.3 RERBRER

AT T=RREENESBER, BEURE2ARIRNMBEFHER, B2016F#£, RAalREANILELHRREEIER,
BHEAREEERERFE) THE2ERREREEE, BEX=RKME, MEFHEERE, IERAZEARE
FBEE o

20225, REERRERE] ZGEL [ NWER L, RE2AMNEREENRA, 2EMEYLEBARANAR, B L8

5, BEBRGKEFEITENREERARREAEE ERER, I, 2RABFRRAREREI, BRSEBIRR
SN RN A =0

RATEELRBREEL

[ B2 Bl ERREE R
L BR A% AR B ARE LM TR BR, WETEENOR, FEIEEL
EHABRBIRET, BRI ERAER,
S ERBRTE BBRENERGRHENEINEESNR, BRABIGRRER
BeMIgRE o
g AT FREER BIANTBEBEE. WRATERF. TEHRRBERE. B
FEE. cERERNBER, 2HEFEENRSIAIME TH
2R,
HrEsE BBASRMESREAEXRBAELEE, BHEHRETHRAK

Btk HESEEVHRELZ2ERE, EHENRE2EFE
MAENE, REEMSR(CGETAR; HENLHRERHTEREN
MREREE, MBEZITCHERE, BREERNRT,

FERZE BIYERLEERNEETH, BFEATESLEARNG
B, RBBEERERSOLP)HSEMBESETRHERS
Z, BRAR. KR, 8P, HEBRATE THRENZERFIN
*REo

itk TEMBBEBEERR, HHRNLIA. AT, RIEEIUE
7, RATHBAERE N, HE. RENHAEAREEENHE
ffo

EE R B BRINENR ZEREERRBINERE, BMOHBINENTE,
B BE R B R

RERZZ RIR NRRFIRIRERRR . FFEMEGRERERF, JIHERR

BREEBE,

ZERE SEVFHRRARBHENRERESH R EINLE2RE,

Bk ARREZE2REREEEBRAREENIREERERF, HIE

REBERFELZZAR. HERTREER.
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2022F ERIR. HERER

54 REEEZRE

NAMERBABRAMER LM AR, BEES (LMRRNARHEE R &R E GG )CUREE T RI) A (B 288 <7
A FER, YRUFXRTRNMETREEREEETIF, MBAREREEZMNER, BYAREEERIKRE
ERENORE, THRARQRREKT, ARREREES AR,
RETREEBREENTET, AN FEHEFMAREE | RRA, A AREERE I REXR, UIHETE.
550 | RER, ZREEEAMSBEBARKEEERA. MBRNL. ERZN. EXFHEEEE, YAXHHEE
BREERLUNEARMEREE, TOREREEALHER

REEBBRE

NDRE& )&

BHARER

BmLERT

PN A2
SR E

2022 [E, RAIABAIABREAFTRAGURABRRBFINAS, SRURERANFEABRBIZER, AN, UL
HBERARMAERRELSHE, HABEARMERNMEEE, N, MEBFARRFAR T4XEEI RS, 2ELAAK
3ZH1,303 A0
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2022F ERIR. HEREBHE

6 ITHREHE

6.1 1T%RE
NEEBSETERETEY, DNEKEREXSLEELR, DI LIEREREREXELERD. MEHAAN, HBE
T1BTEZERE RSB R TETETE, TREGR2INTEES, BEFHSTENSESEE,

¥

\
/

6.2 HEHRAG
RTENTRERZEZEH, AREERFEAMELMEMLERRAR (BISHRRE), BRESRE B RO MBS
EAZ.

RABOLBEE, BERSFEMRAREBHMM T, 1, AREHARETTSREMICRELZRERAEFA, &
FERE. BRE. REY, KEAMNXERENE L. RIEHZEHHE, ARBER2ELRIREATIE, HiheE
Bk, REEBTEXERAEYME. ARZRKEBRHENREGE, SEEHNRA ARELRIETFAEHD
ARfo

2022F EHEERBEZHEN

HRRE G2 E R ISR ERE RS R5t4,198 A2 EEFEIRTS
SRERBR2EQTANIREHEIE HBOA, RFHEBRK1,008/
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2022F ERE. HERERRE
B 452
71 E{LEX
IR
BERIEE By 20204 20214 20224
BERR YD

EERBE B E B K 1,773,740 2,319,307 2,391,024
RA/WI(INOX)BEE T 19,688 36,857 32,650
ZRIEBR(SO, ) E T 338 2,239 3,546
REKEERR B E By K 603 704 832
AERBHENE WECO,E & 448,614 713,649 497,938
HA, E&&;'—ﬁﬁ%kﬁﬁz% WECO,E & 18,135 24,803 24,877
MEREREBHNE WECO,E 8 430,479 697,899 473,060
BUESREREHNE WACO,Z & /83T f[E 0.23 0.20 0.12
BEEEVRE A 9,262 17,363 20,385
BUESEEEEVELS T2,/ 85 @E 3.96 4.96 4.88
mEREYRS® A 6,143 8,981 9,864
BNESEEEEVELS Fre /85~ & E 2.67 257 2.36

ERER
BHEE KBS 720,840 867,682 954,667
BUEMAEE FTHRE, 8% RE 313 248 228
RARAE TR 10,312,006 11,456,569 10,530,287
B EMAARRAE Sk, 8E @A 4.49 3.27 252
RkEE K 9,907,631 15,707,212 18,010,226
Hep, RN EEKEKE 37K 7,035,272 8,928,040 10,284,063
&7k [E1 e K 2,872,359 6,788,287 7,726,163
B EMAKES MK 85T &E 2.89 2.55 2.46
18R BRI AKE SR 4,042,020 86,119,337 107,163,560
b ERTABREMENESE i 128 253.5 313.32
Bt ERTAREMRHMEE Fre,/8HT&E 0.06 0.07 0.07
Kt ERTAREMRmEE 4 22 485 54.0
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it

BEREHRARERAST D E MR E R B EERREER (GB/T 32150 LE M AT REHRZEEMBREBE ) & (GB/T
215 TRERBEHNZEEFEE K ),

2022, MEAZREENELS. EHLEEEMSIKRBE(LEMEAESREERZERERESER (AT EHERRE
[2012]1805% )) K { B #EF2023 - 2025 F HBITE L F AT A B NREEEAALIENBAN)FTE. HP, LEEEEM
FRAE DA FHRE E4.21C0,/104kWh, %85 4 B B 5 A 2 B 19 BAIBEE F0.5703tCO,/MWhiE 1T E
BEEEYABKEEELANSES,

F/KBE=TTKRHE KO BKE+EKEAHAKE,

20224, REE2021FEKMMAEEITELE, 2021 FAKAEWMAREITEIE, 2021FEKEAMAKAENARERIER
2;%0

BUEMAKENS IEESSTRIK,
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2022F ERE. HERERRE

VE I8 275 B
BERIEE Bz 20204 20214 20224

ETERE

BT 4% A 5,682 6,084 6,760
Hip, BHEETH A 4,164 4,426 4,932
ZHEETH A 1,518 1,658 1,828
LBEhaRIHIE T A 5,682 6,084 6,760
BISIRED 8 T# A 113 85 81
FEMET A 0 0 0
/NA305E B T A 2,542 2,676 2,983
30-505% 8 T & A 3,018 3,271 3,624
AH505% 8 TE A 122 137 153
ABEETE A 5,673 6,075 6,751
BINE TE A 9 9 9

REHEZ2E
B I FRIRE % 0 0 0
E AT A AL A 0 0 0
ERTHAE L) % 0 0 0
A T{EERTIERE X 235 367 83

BT

2B E T AOEZEIIRR AN 100.1 119.9 122.2
Hep. ELE\I/\i’;ﬁEEJHHTrﬁ AN 101.4 121.5 123.7
BEEEETIAGEIRE AN 18.3 23.5 26.5
ZME T AHEIINR /N 96.8 123.8 124.3
SMEIALEIINE /N 101.3 118.5 121.4
ERETIXIEER % 100 100 100
Hep, %ﬁélanII%%$ % 100 100 100
BEEREEIXIIIE % 100 100 100
ﬁz'liél%ﬂl?%:% % 100 100 100
SHEIXIES % 100 100 100
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2022FERIR. HERER

Edn B TEEPIRE
BERIER B 20204 20214 20224
ERETHREFRE
EmBREX % 0.07 0.05 0.11
B o A % 2 B2 7 ) RE B WA L 15 % 0 0 0
5 F R
BERANER RRBRFEE % 8 0 0
BB R % 100 / /
REREEIE
BERIEE By 20204 20214 20224
HAESRETR
HAER B 2L ER 535 545 550
RN HEREAEH Ex 399 410 413
BIME R 48K EX 133 136 138
EX ARt EmEa ER 110 115 112
EREUAIEEEE ER 0 0 0
REAERER L] CORIRARS )BT % 100 100 100
R EREE AR T L % 28 29 31

1 BARSEE®RTST. @ELE. RIR. BEITENFEOHRERHE,
2 BEHMEHRBEE. R, AR, £ [RB. LERFEERME.
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2022F BRI, HERECHE

RE)T
BERIER By 20204 202145 20224
RES
RERBAHBEITAXEEBEBREVEBENESHA M 0 0 0
RIFMEE
HERE
BERIEE ==L v 20205 20214 20224
HERE
BT 2HEERREHI A A 449 1,324 4,189
TEETHEFEER /|NBE 450 1,986 6,283
a) ATEFHERRAEBEBERIE
EERE EEERER
BIREM
RIFERE (FEARKFTBIRBEFREEINFEARLMBEARRSEIEEX FEARLIMBIHRBREE N PEARL
MBEEFRBEREEANREARLNBREGHNERE)E
EREE
EmERE (PEARKNBBELZ2EANTEARENBEZHEANPEZEARENES AN EAZHERIEH X P
ZEARKMBERARPEAPEARKMBEBEINANPEAREKNBERESAXREARKMNBGEEAN R E
ARKEMBGFEENXFEARKNMBEINE G ENFEARKMBRTEEHFE) B 2R, 5F
&, FFATAIPRHI ( fSFE [ REACH |) &5I5A# . Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE). BRR
HEESFERRBERERELEBEXNDIHIES (HHE RoHS |) &
MEEE (PFEARLNBEZEFNEAPEARKNBZEREXREARKNBEEE) S
R
BTIEEF
BTEE (FPEARENBELHARZEIXFEARINBELESREIN(PEARLNERERE I PEARL
MBELSREEXFEAREIMBREZR X FEAREIMBL AN FEAREIMBAEX BERBREE
PEENKRERB S RBERIEE ) E
BERE (PEAREMBEBRERAGEXFEARIMBEL2EEE X THRRIEH ) E
HZe

BERAR, REAARBER FRREERERLRBERERENREEREN, BARE LRFERSENRBRER L,
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2022FERIR. HERER

b) HERS
BH7: BMERERE
SRR A BEEE
BIARE ESGEREZ
PE R R A HE B
DEE ¥R 5 ] HERELH A

CHa: [ TETRME | R

BE. —-REBERBRANRER REREH

FEHRARR

EBEA1BERY

—MRIETEA HERUE IR

KPI A1.1 R E(LEBEER

KPI A1.2 SRS LR 4R BLE

KPI A1.3 =LER

KPI A1.4 ={LER

KPI A1.5 ESGE B RS

KPI A1.6 PERE 12

BEA2.E5RFEHA

—MRIFFTRAL BRI
KERER

KPI A2.1 BERER

KPI A2.2 KERERR

KPI A2.3 BEIRE IR

KPI A2.4 KERE TR

KPI A2.5 21LER

EBHA3RERRAARER

—MRIREEAS BEIREIE
KERER

KPI A3.1 BERER
KERER

EHEAL.EHRIZEL

—MRIRFEAL RURE R 4R BLE e

KPI A4.1 E1LEM
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. REERERENEER BHEEH
TEGREBHERBREIER
[EEB1./E &
—MRARFEB B Tz RAEH
KPI B1.1 21bEER
KPI B1.2 =yl
EEB2.BEHEZE
—MRI%EEB2 BIfEREHEETSE
KPI B2.1 21LER
KPI B2.2 21LER
KPI B2.3 =LER
EHEB3. 2 & ki3
— MR IEFEBS 8 T REEE
KPI B3.1 EEWR
KPI B3.2 =1biE%
[EHEB4.4 T2 4|
— MR =B B Tz EER
KPI B4.1 B Tz BE T
KPI B4.2 EERIER
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2022FERIR. HERER

. REERBRENEE HEED
FTELEB. AL EEN
[EHEBS5. A EEEE
—MRIXEEBS AIFEMEEER
KPI B5.1 =LEX
KPI B5.2 AIREHEEEE
EEB6.ERET
—MRI%FEB6 TP R EE R RE
KPI B6.1 21LER
KPI B6.2 21LER
KPI B6.3 BFRG%E R
KPI B6.4 P R%ERE
KPI B6.5 iR L2 EEFLRE
EBmEB7.R&E5
— M FEBT RE5
KPI B7.1 21bEER
KPI B7.2 RE
[EEB8.MAEKRE
— MR iEFEBS ERRGEARES
KPI B8.1 NS BERRS
KPI B8.2 2/bER
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2022F EIRIZE. HERERHE

c) ESEFFAKGEHKABRERR
EHEA B B
tapeout FRER] T4 |, HEOERKER(C)XKEIRIERER(PCB)RAHNRE TR, AXREGE

WIP (Working In
Progress)

WAT (Wafer Acceptance
Test)

CDA (Compressed
Dry Air)

MAU (Make-up Air Unit)

BCD (Bipolar-CMOS-
DMOS)

ERT (Emergency
Response Team)

IGBT (Insulated
Gate Bipolar Transistor)

MOSEFT (Metal-Oxide-
Semiconductor
Field-Effect Transistor)

MCU (Microcontroller
Unit)

XBERAETE, BTERUERRE,
B Ao

BTERLEHREMH. TREMR. FRROF
HEHREFEFRHE T (test key) R, BEE2BRERE S TEREEEMEE,
BRAEZIRER.

SHEME, RIREHHERN— B BHRE.

—REE R KT ERM, EMER—SH L8 EBipolar. CMOSMDMOSE&{f,

ERsRE M, HESERER/)E,

BRI R W=1RE ) MMOS ( @EMIVSHEE ) ARNEE S
5

‘T, EMBJT( BiRE
BREFES R R

2= 1o

%%(metal) A1t ¥(oxide)-¥ E 5 (semiconductor) 5 M E R EEE, HRESEXH U RE

o

mR K

HUEHIEIT, XIBEA AT ERKER K, BIERRERSZMMBRERRMEZER, I
Hﬁqﬁ sHEEE. USB. ADE# . UART. PLC. DMAZ A2 N0, EELCDERFHE E’i%ﬁ
BEEBE A L, ERGHERNTE#, ATRMNERSAMTRBAEIZE,
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EHERA A B=

ASIC (Application EREKER, BEENTAFPERNEEEFAMNTEMRT. BIENEKER,
Specific Integrated
Circuit)

OBC (On Board Charger) BNE#HFxEH, EEELHETHTE LTI,

PMIC (Power XHEREEIC, B REETAZNENER, HIRERIASFEREREIIF.
Management IC)

BMS (Battery BENERRR, TERATEMEERGESEE BT, HILtEHHRBFEMBHK
Management System) &, EREMHFERASW, BEEMAKEE,

d) BEERHHA
(FMFEEARANF022FFRT. HENEAREN U THBEAI AHE |), KBEEUSW, JFHHMEHEET
FUNEBREENEE, WERBARSE, MINEEEIREARELE. £ MERRE T HERRATTE RIS

L HE
ABER. AREREFNFERARDAREFAR, BEHARFERESHUBERREE

B E. 2022415 1H —2022412A31H

W& IE
. EEBMARIMERAT(RE. £ RERRERESI N 2022F 1 A RREMIR )

128X
AREEHNERMAEDERNEFERSALLRAEANE , BETHENRIIRE XA BERETHRIGCELH
BlE, MET—HZE, AMBREBBLE, AREFAILEESEAARBELRTERER, HRIFHBOHRN.

[EFIR A
. ZUHRA, ARBMNHREESNEABE I AINELEHBANELGURER, FRAREERER . AREF
HEEMZENERRSEINREE S RNTERBALMERR SR, R, AREHRE. L@NREA
EhEAEHREAREMERTELERFENETIRETEHER,

. EBE—8t, ABRERBEERTEERER, URRERBEELEE, AREHE—HEETRBEHANR
AREETARE B ERFREESABEN, EREMET TURSHRE, KENDBETETEEREN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B B E RS

Ernst & Young Tk @ B ISR TelE . +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place ~ H&HIEAHRLEEI795  FaxEH: +852 2868 4432
EY& i 979 King’s Road N — 2718 ey.com
7 Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the members of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 229 to 347, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

The Group’s equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as
at 31 December 2022 included
an unlisted equity investment
amounting to US$176 million.
The Group measures the
unlisted equity investment at
fair value at the end of each
reporting period and engages
an external expert to assess
its fair value. During the vyear,
this matter was significant to
our audit because the carrying
amount of the unlisted equity
investment was material to
the consolidated financial
statements and the valuation
process was complex and
involved significant judgements.

The Group’s disclosures about
the valuation of the unlisted
equity investment are included
in notes 3, 18 and 37 to the
financial statements, which
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, assessing the
competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuer engaged
by the Group and involving
our internal specialists to
assist us in evaluating the
methodology of the valuation
and the key assumptions used
in the valuation such as the
determination of comparable
public companies (peers),
selection of the price multiple
and estimation of the discount
for illiquidity.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an investment property

The Group recognised an
investment property amounting
to US$169 million as at 31
December 2022. The Group
measures its investment
property at fair value at the
end of each reporting period
and engages external experts
to assess its fair value.
During the year, this matter
was significant to our audit
because the carrying amount
of the investment property was
material to the consolidated
financial statements and the
valuation process was complex
and involved significant
judgements.

The Group’s disclosures
about the valuation of the
investment property are
included in notes 3 and 14 to
the financial statements, which
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, assessing the
competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuer engaged by the
Group, comparing property-
related data used for the
valuation with the underlying
documentation and involving our
internal specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodology
of the valuation and the key
assumptions used in the
valuation such as the estimated
rental value, term vyield,
reversionary yield and long-term
vacancy rate.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’'s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2022 % A *= \_4 %
BE—T-_—#t+-A=t+—AtgE N F Eﬁ:ﬂ.

2022 2021
ol - St 5 —E-—F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Kt FEx FET
Revenue SHEA 5 2,475,488 1,630,754
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,631,832) (1,179,156)
Gross profit EF 843,656 451,598
Other income and gains H U A R es 5 70,986 60,758
Fair value gain on an investment property % & ¥ KA FER 78 183
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (12,464) (10,673)
Administrative expenses EEEMR (266,666) (198,920)
Other expenses Hih &M 5 (111,360) (165)
Finance costs 5 ER 7 (40,331) (13,226)
Share of profits of associates BORI=l NI | 12,171 6,765
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BAEF 6 496,070 296,320
Income tax expense FriSHi < 10 (89,499) (65,349)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREA 406,571 230,971
Attributable to: THIALEL -
Owners of the parent ISNEILY-PN 449,912 261,476
Non-controlling interests JEFEAR RS (43,341) (30,505)
406,571 230,971
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &4 A& ERESE AE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EERER.
OF THE PARENT: 12
Basic AR
— For profit for the year — FRmF US$0.345 US$0.201
0.345% 7T 0.201%7T
Diluted By
— For profit for the year — FRRF US$0.342 US$0.198

0.342% T 0.198% 7T
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GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPRERENSIVE INCOME

mEEHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—ES-—fF T4
US$’000 US$'000
FErx F=x
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR=EF 406,571 230,971
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip 2wk
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be REZHRA eEND S
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BREMNEMEE (BB )
periods: 5.
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BREBINETSEE EHIINE
operations et (309,458) 80,630
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that may be REEEE A EFHHIEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BRENEMEE (R )
periods W E5E (309,458) 80,630
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that will not be ~ REZHRAEEHHESE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BRENEMEE (BB )
periods: WS
Equity investments designated at fair value BEERATHE ARMEE
through other comprehensive income: Wi BRI A -
Changes in fair value NEEEE) (53,707) 15,564
Income tax effect FriStis & 8,348 (2,335)
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that will REBBETISEFSEE
not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BRENEMEE(EE )
periods W ERIE5E (45,359) 13,229
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FREMEE (B )
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX sk, HMBRFIIE (354,817) 93,859
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR FREZEWRBAE 51,754 324,830
Attributable to: THALFEL
Owners of the parent ISYNEILY=DN 153,027 336,438
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R 2 (101,273) (11,608)
51,754 324,830
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANGCIAL POSITION
e ISR R

31 December 2022

—E-—F+=-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
—s=-= B —F
+=B=+—H +=-—A=+—H
Notes US$’000 US$'000
ez FErx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME. WEK&EE 13 3,367,716 3,116,501
Investment property REYE 14 169,363 184,883
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 78,425 75,331
Intangible assets B EE 16 32,986 35,312
Investments in associates REL N RIAIRE 17 130,721 122,040
Equity investments designated EERATHES AREMEE
at fair value through other Wi IR &
comprehensive income 18 178,632 257,788
Long-term prepayments to third parties ENE =7 2 REITA FRIE 7,742 15,673
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBE = 28 14,066 3,479
Total non-current assets JEMBEEMRTE 3,979,651 3,810,907
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties under development FEEFRME 19 134,723 114,492
Inventories w5 20 578,060 432,917
Trade and notes receivables B 5 EUGRIA K R 21 291,856 181,042
Prepayments, other receivables TERTEIE. B EYRIE &
and other assets Hih&EE 22 48,273 43,443
Due from related parties e BR B 5 208 35(c) 13,006 6,910
Pledged deposits [mEEEGIVER /N 23 1,042 2,248
Cash and cash equivalents RENIEESEEY 23 2,008,765 1,610,140
Total current assets mBNEELRE 3,075,725 2,391,192
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEAE
Trade payables B SR 24 236,999 194,385
Other payables and accruals HAb eI sRIBE R EHE R 25 593,971 560,435
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTESRITER 26 426,756 195,024
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 4,704 1,676
Government grants e =) 29 37,714 66,837
Due to related parties e BAHE 5 5RIB 35(c) 6,096 7,501
Income tax payable FETFRSHEL 76,176 54,543
Total current liabilities mENBERRE 1,382,416 1,080,401
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEZEHE 1,693,309 1,310,791
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES EERERRBARE 5,672,960 5,121,698

continued %&/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEPBRRER

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
—EC-CF T —F
t=A=t+-8 t-A=t-~
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Kt FEx FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRERITER 26 1,481,580 1,395,279
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 14,644 16,137
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIEEE 28 41,268 25,735
Total non-current liabilities IEmB BB 1,537,492 1,437,151
Net assets BEEFHE 4,135,468 3,684,547
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 30 1,994,462 1,986,152
Reserves HE 32 1,036,008 884,207
Total equity attributable to BARHEE AELERGATE
owners of the parent 3,030,470 2,870,359
Non-controlling interests JEIEALRE RS 40 1,104,998 814,188
Total equity EREE 4,135,468 3,684,547

Suxin Zhang
RED
Director

EZE

JunYe
113
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
g e ez RS PR SS EA B IR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAAEAARE
Fair value
reserve of
Other financial
capital assets at
reserve fair value (Accumulated
Share and  through other Statutory ~ Exchange losses)/ Non-
Share Merger option contributed comprehensive Revaluation  reserve  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve  surplus income  surplus# funds reserve profits Total interests equity
RATEHA
AftEk  Ef2ENE
FER  HEREEL EERE  NERE (BHEE)/

BE  ofEE BRERE HRRBR  AVEGR EERM g¢ e EREA &b FERER  BEEE
Nofes  US§'000  USS000  USS'000  USS000 USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000
ki TEn TR TEn TER i & TEn TER TRt FEn TR FER

(note 30) (note 31) (note 32) (note 40)
(30 (&3t (i¥32) [ H3t40 )
At 1 January 2022 R=E--%-f-A 1,986,152 645,494* 14,5724 35,685* 25,055* 99.257*  140426* 221,381 (297663)* 2,870,359 814,188 3,684,547
Profit{loss) for the year Fhghl /| BR) = - - - - - - - Megf2  ddogt2  (43341)  40gsTH
Other comprehensive EREp2RENE:
income for the year:
Change In fair value of equity  #FRATE AL
nvestments designated FENGRNRERE
atfairvalue through other —— HATEES, 1%
comprehensive income, i)
net of tax - - - - (45,359) - - - - (45,359) - (45,359)
Exchange diferences related  ARSENEHENE
{o foreign operatons £ - - - - - = - (2515%) - (515%)  (57932)  (309.459)

Total comprehensive income ~ FRZENELE

for the year - - - - (45,359) - - (251,526) 449912 153,027 (101,273) 51,754
Transfer of far value reserve HERATEF AL

upon the disposal of f2mARNRER

equity investments at BRNEANTRERE

fair value through other

comprehensive income - - - - (1,943) - - - 1,943 - - -
Issue of shares B1kin 30 8,310 - (2,369) - - - - - - 594 - 594
Equity-setfled share option [ EREEAERE

arrangements Tk 31 - - 1,143 - - - - - - 1,143 83 1,226
Capital contribution from FHARERLE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 392,000 392,000
Transfer from retained profs ~ EAE—HTAF

generated by asubsidlary B HBRET - - - - - - 50699 - (50,699) - - -
At 31 December 2022 i 2

+-A=1+-A 1994462 645494 13,346* 35,685* (22,247 99257 191,125* (30,145 103493* 3,030,470 1,104,998 4,135,468

continued #&/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

— AN *E 2 Z "‘-‘ Eb % Year ended 31 December 2022
:%:I\': = ﬁ% BE-F-—fl-A=+—RAILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BLTERNEE

Fair value

Other reserve of
capital ~ financial assets
reserve atfair value

Share and  through other Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share Merger option  contributed  comprehensive  Revaluation reserve  fluctuation  Accumulated controling Total
capital reserve reserve surplus income  surplus# funds reserve losses Totdl  interests equity
BAFEA
AfhEx  EpREkE
FRE  MEREEZ EERE  NERD
RAE  abbE ERERE (588 0 OTERR  EfRH £ e ZER B FERER  ERER
Notes  US$000 US§000  US§000  US$000 US$000 US$000 US§000  US$000 US§000  US§000  US$000 US$000
it T TR R TR Tr T TEn T i FEn fEn fEn
(note 30) (note 31) (note 32) (note 40)
(Kzk30) (Kxs1) (Hat32) (K40
At 1 January 2021 R=F=-%-A-A 1,979,033 645,494 16,212 35,685 11,826 99,257 105,631 159,648 (524,344) 2528442 825679 3354121
Profitloss) for the year Emgtl /| B8 ) - - - - = = = = %1476 261476 (30505 230971
Other comprehensive EREp2ENE:
income for the year:
Change in fair value of equity  EIRATES AR
invesiments designated 2EREHRERE
atfairvalue through other —— HATEES, 1%
comprehensive income, i)
net of tax - - - - 13,229 - - - - 13229 - 13229
Exchange differences related  BREEGIEHEINE
to foreign operations B - - - - - - - 61733 - 61733 18,897 80,630
Total comprehensive EREENREE
income for the year - - - - 13229 - - 61,733 261,476 336,438 (11,608) 324,830
Issue of shares Bakh 30 7,119 - (1819) - - - - - - 5,300 - 5,300
Fquity-setled share option L\ & ehBefkiE
arrangements g3 31 - - 179 - - - - - - 179 17 29
Transfer from retained profits ~ BRE—FHFAT
generated by a subsidiary  EEHERER - - - - - - 34,795 - (34,79) - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+-A=t-A 1,986,152 645494 14,572 35,685 25,055" 99267 140426 221381 " (297,663 2,870,359 814,188 3,684,547
#  Revaluation surplus arose from a change in use from an owner- #  EEERFRRERTFEIRS —HEHYE

occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
US$1,036,008,000 (2021: US$884,207,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

H) % E LR B o

BEBERE T BAE S Y BHMIEEZF B
A f# 1#1,086,008,000% 7T ( —F — — 4.
884,207,000% T )o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
aeReRER

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE-Z_—F+-_A=+—HIFE
2022 2021
—s=-= T —F
Notes USs$’000 US$'000
Hfat ETT =
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHAERERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax T AT A 496,070 296,320
Adjustments for: FLATSIREH A .
Finance costs W%EER 7 40,331 13,226
Share of profit of associates pak ey dWNGVinv | (12,171) (6,765)
Interest income FLEMA 5 (26,944) (13,437)
Dividend income from financial BAFER AEMEER
assets at fair value through other HHEREEMEEY
comprehensive income AR BUA 5 (63) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEMZE. KRERZBEE
property, plant and equipment Bey( Uz ) &8 5] (5) 76
Depreciation of property, plant and M. WENREETE
equipment 13 439,917 302,245
Changes in fair value of an REMENTEES
investment property 14 (78) (183)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 5,842 5,676
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH 16 11,101 10,095
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMRE MR ) &=
inventories to net realisable value Al IR RE 6 19,612 (180)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of B S5 EWEIE (BE
trade receivables #E ) RE 6 (16) 273
Impairment of items of property, plant M. WE&ZEEE
and equipment RE 13 858 3,914
Equity-settled share option expense LA i E M AR R 31 1,226 296
975,680 611,556
Increase in properties under development % F 4242 1) (29,624) (10,858)
Increase in inventories FEEM (154,646) (206,680)
Increase in trade and notes receivables & 5 FEURIE & FE Z 1
389 (110,684) (60,391)
Increase in prepayments, other TETFRIAE. EAthEUGRIA R
receivables and other assets H &M (4,248) (10,248)
Increase in amounts due from related JFE U B RS 5 FRIB AL N
parties (6,096) (2,204)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits 2 3ERFZR L (1m0 ) 1,880 (1,889)
Increase in trade payables B 5 I IR N 42,614 63,405

Increase in other payables and accruals — E 58 R & {4 2 A

il 110,940 137,861

(Decrease)/increase in government grants BN (354> ) 10 (22,645) 23,513
Decrease in amounts due to related FE ST RS 75 SRIBR

parties (1,405) (5,146)
Cash generated from operations KESTHELNIRS 801,766 538,919
Income tax paid BEREEH (50,901) (20,448)
Net cash flows generated from RETEHMBRSREFHE

operating activities 750,865 518,471

continued #&/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2022

=1 /N S =
7 \E\Iﬁﬁ)ﬁié‘% BE-F-—&1-A=t+—AILEE

2022 2021
s —E-—F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hiat FErx FET

CASH FLOWS FROM RETEFERERE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received ECHE 28,450 5,899
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYE. MENMREER.

and equipment, prepaid lease TENHEERIE R AR

payments and intangible assets BE (996,182) (938,911)
Purchases of equity investments BERTEATE AR

designated at fair value through other 2EKE M RERE

comprehensive income = (6,290)
Purchases of an investment in an BER—ZBEARNKE

associate (6,717) (7,405)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEDE. BEREZHEEE

property, plant and equipment FT1S 708 109 54
Receipt of government grants for WEIB TS ZE. BE K

property, plant and equipment 518 B 7 B 38,414 83,594
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERANFEF AR MEE

assets at fair value through other W) & El & E RS 5IE

comprehensive income 5,707 -
Dividends received from financial assets — WHiZ AFEAEMEE

at fair value through other W= e R EERE

comprehensive income 63 =
Net cash flows used in RETEFMARSRETHE

investing activities (930,156) (863,059)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHMERTRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRD PR 5RIE 6,248 7,419
New bank loans FILIRITE N 514,622 1,070,805
Capital contribution from non-controlling  FF¥Ef%#EZE H &

interests 392,000 -
Interest paid ENHE (47,286) (11,729)
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (199,670) (47,860)
Principal portion of lease payments SHEERE D (3,246) (3,995)
Receipt of government grants for OB BT 5 B 75 B R | 4 B

finance costs 11,100 -
Payment of share issued expenses SRR EITH (832) -
Increase in a pledged deposit —IE IR FIL AN (759) -
Net cash flows generated from REEER SR SRE T

financing activities 672,177 1,014,640
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBAESEEYREMER

EQUIVALENTS 492,886 670,052
Cash and cash equivalents at FNReLREEED

beginning of year 1,610,140 922,786
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEREEHE, T

changes, net (94,261) 17,302
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERAERAEEEY

END OF YEAR 23 2,008,765 1,610,140
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBAESEEYEHRIM

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHEE 23 735,800 379,968
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ REERFREIEAR DR

maturity of less than three months when — ={@ A K9 FE B E EiTF X

acquired 1,272,965 1,230,172
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in PR REE 2 RERF

the statement of financial position and FroR & MIREEEY

in the statement of cash flows 23 2,008,765 1,610,140
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022
—E__F#t+_A=t+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central,
Hong Kong. The principal place of business is located at No.
288, Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductor
products and real estate development.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent of the Company is
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Group”),
which is a state-owned company established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and supervised by the Shanghai
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission (“Shanghai SASAC”). The ultimate parent of the

Company is Shanghai SASAC.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Br RS R aR MY R

RFAREEEHR

EHEEERAF([ARAE ) A—
FR_ETRF—A-+—HEBBF
MR BER AR, ARAREMRHE
BABRBPIREBRB125ERIBITH L
2212F, TEEEMA A BT RT
SR E &= S E #2885

ARAMEBREHR/IREER. RF
A, RRFHFR Tixﬁé%ﬂé BE
mAEE MHE REHERE,

EERA, ARANERAAA/LEE
W(RE)ARAR ([ FLEE ), &%
NRAIRRHPEARLME (THE ) K
VYA EBTEAEEEEEREZE®

(TEBMEEZR |) EEMBEE AR
ARAHREERRB B LBEMEE
ES)

ERTLANER

ARRNFRBFEWT -

Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration and registered share ALARERRETY
Name business capital ('000) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
HMRL,/ BRIEE/

£ B HRER B (T ) Ef B FEEKEH

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation ~ Cayman Islands US$0.001 100% - Investment holding
(“Grace Cayman’) REHE 0001%7T RERR

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation
([ Grace Cayman )

Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor PRC/Mainland China RMB7,828,578 100% - Manufacture and sale of
Manufacturing Corporation (‘HHGrace”)* HE / RER ARH7 828 5787TT semiconductor products
FEENEN+ERMEERAA(Z0EN ) TERBETERER

Huahong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$2,536,852 22.2% 28.8%  Manufacture and sale of
(*Hua Hong Wuxi"y™ mE /BB 2536,852% T semiconductor products

EOHER( £ ) BRAR ([ FIEH ) EEREETERER

Shanghai Huahong Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000 22.2% 288%  Real estate development
(*Huahong Real Estate Wuxi")** HE /HER AR30,0007T Bt ERFE

LEETER(BH )RR EREXES )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ R B

31 December 2022
—EF+ZA=1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREEER(EF)

(continued)

ERTLANER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Con]!)any
registration and registered share ARARERRES L
Name business capital ('000) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
HRAL/ BRITEE/
£ B ARER EfBRA( ) B B TEEHEH
Huahong Semiconductor Manufacturing (Wuxi) PRC/Mainland China RMBG,680 100% - Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. (‘Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi")** FE /RER AERH6,6807T semiconductor products
FLEREE (£ ) ARAR ([ BIRERS ) EERHETERER
Global Synergy Technology Limited (“GST") PRC/Hong Kong HK$10 100% - Trading
IEHERARRR ([ Bk ) HEVESS 1087 g5
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. USA - 100% - Sales office
%8 - HEHER
HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
A& 10,0008 HEMER
*  HHGrace is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned company under Y BT R N RE T B A RS B
PRC law. B2 Ao
*  Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi are > ZEYTAE R R AT UG A B IR 15 A B4

registered as a Sino-foreign joint company under PRC law.

under PRC law.

Huahong Real Estate Wuxi is registered as a domestic company

During the year, Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi was

established.

NS

BiEMBHrIEE LA

ELERELRE T EZETMBA
AT

AN, FEMRGERBKIL.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eceinon MG ERRMIEE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for an investment
property, equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

2B EE

ZEFBHRRDIBEHEESAMAE
(TERGAE ) EHNBEENE
SEA(TFBHBMELER |, B
PREEEMEMEER. FEGER
(TEEEEA ) R ). BEAR
S ERAR TR R AHEDIRE. 7%
BRDBBEELKAERE, S
NHEFENRENE. BERAFE
APARM R AR SR RERE RIZAF
B ABRZNEREERIN . ZFHH
BRAXT(IERT)) 25, MKES
RSN, FMEBECRHNBREREONT
(V2 28

mERE

HAVBRREBEARARFAREFLF
(REAIAKE NBE_T__F+
A=+ RLEFENMBER. T2
AR AR ERAHEEFNER
(BREEBLEER) MAKEE RS2 A
WREFXGMZA AR ERBREE
AR A @R, BEENITERERIKE
TRRAFEERE®R, MAKERE
BB S ( BRI T A% EE
BRRE S RREERE IR EER )

R—RERATOEES BREE IR
HlEZHEE. WARREREXEEE
BRI E T R SR LN T RA
¥, AFHEARRSERRETREHS
BN, AEEeERMARBEER
B, 8.

(a) HEZEIZE T EMBEEEE AN
BRRHE,

(b) RBEMANLZHEMZEAMNER
4

(c) AEEHREENBEERRR,

ERALIEZ NS b B ok =g il
R, YRB-REFARREE. T2
AIH) A AR B RS S 2 B R
RaAlk, LTHESS AREZSESD
R IER AL,
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2.1

31 December 2022
—EF+ZA=1+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

AR AT o 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE k&

2AmMBERE(F )

REEE(E)
T%iﬁ?&&ﬁ@’ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ?&ﬁ’ﬂ%%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%%%
AEBEFABEA ARFZERER, B
BEBOHERERE LB G SR. ANE
BB AR ZER S MESN S BRI
EERAE. #m. KA. XERBAS
MEBELRE AR 22,

HEERBABR LA =HIFHREREL
—Iﬁiylﬁﬂjfﬁ g, AEESEHNT
HEREEBIRE T, TRARINMA
S “EJJ BBREEGIE), mig
BmR P Ao

i 2N S B 2k 3 — A F A B RO 4E 4
AIEBCHER()VZ T RARNEE (B
e ) RafE, (i)TmIEE %'Jﬁﬁﬁnﬁ’]ﬁﬁ
EEE NS F RS RN

B, REROFIBRENAFEE, (ii)Ffr
REBEMZERNRFE R(ii)BEmF T
AIA M EE RN BB EB. LR EMD
EENL G WEEE{JE’JZKEIJ&VE%{ E
PHEABBERBEN(WER), W
ZSEIEEEH?%WF%QE&EEEWE
VAR —EERER,

BHBENRBRKE

AEBERMALERFREHBRRER
ERATRETEEMBRE L,

BB TSRS &8 BERAEZRZ 1240
ER AR KN
ERGIERE16E HE. BER
({B5TA) Rl (FRTH
BHIZHTEE
ERGEREITR  BELAH -
SEHEN EBITARZHA
DR HREER BB TSRS 28
—F-)1FZ2 B, BB
—E-_TFEHHZFE  BHEREER
B2 ¥, BEY
SR R
1655 B8 KT 2 i
BRIERGI REE

GEHER 41
AT TS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022.
As there were no business combinations during the year,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items as determined by HKAS 2 /nventories, in
profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 January 2021.
Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for use,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

31 December 2022
——HF+=R=

- PIRERARMEE

22BN BB R IE(HE)

HERARARE ZRETEEMHREE
AEERFEHERN TX.

(a)

BRMBRELEFEIWR (EFIA)
A=ZB—N\FRABMNTEHRE
BERMEZR ([ HSAESR |) B4R B
RBRRZ 5/ E K AIER A
AIfEs, MBAKNERELER,
ZEERI AT RBEBY RS %R
FIRIBMEERRAWGISN, BB
A2ERSERETEENAEBR
BREER. ZPISMERRE, HR
ERMIENEBE P AEEBR
TR G ERIEI7TRAEE (EER
MHRERBRES - 2ES21
BMRBERKAEE, KATEYH
BHRESEA LR ERBED FIER
MEBGFHEREITIRHEE (
RO HRERERES ) -2ESR
2157, MIEBMESER. LI, &
FEFIABBFRAEERKRER S
THEERER. AEREEH_-F
T oF AR RBEENER
BHETHEEER . ARFEARY
BEBEH, RETHAREENE
B R R A BRI E,

&

HRGERIFE16H (TR )R
LHEREYE. BMEARERBEHN
AR MR EEEEDERERTE
ZEEREMTALE BIEMBRED
ELRIAR HE ZEMMREHE,
Bk, BERAREESSERE
R EREaTEAHEERNE
BB 2 s AR EEE 2K
o REEBH_T-_—F—A—
Bz RAIMRERNYE. BER
REBEEBEPEAZFET R, A
REWE. BEMRREBAIHERZ
R EBEREENER, Bk
CHERS SEER 53/ OE ki
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31 December 2022

T _F+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

(d) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out

amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

e  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those
paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The
Group has applied the amendment prospectively
from 1 January 2022. As there was no modification
or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities during
the year, the amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts’®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 — Comparative

31 December 2022
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Information®
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)?*
Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants (the 2022
Amendments’)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction’

Amendments to HKAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

© An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of HKFRS 17
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to

be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.

However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact

on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG .30 BB 14 5k 4 3 > BB EHE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination
over whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA
issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before
the reporting date affect the classification of that liability as
current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments
require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-current when
it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants within
12 months after the reporting period. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early
is required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
is non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is
not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the accounting
policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences for transactions related to leases.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EKRSTHEME
POLICIES
Investments in associates REE NTMIRE

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in
an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property, equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in

their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAE HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAEREHTHEHBE(E
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BT (&)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued) AT AT #4018 & 7K & B 75 BB
(&)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b) ZATRFTEE TIEMMGHENE
applies: B
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEAXSEBR —SE
group; ojpA=UNSIF
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) EBAS—HEB (5 EB
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary MERE. FRAKRRTF
of the other entity); AE)WEERRREE D
E
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iiiy ZEBEAEE AR —F=
same third party; THAEERSE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv) ERBA—RE-FEBENE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; EhE ME—EBRA%E
a1} /NG
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ZEBAAEEKEKNEE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity EHBNEREREENRR
related to the Group; S WEEBEETET S
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEBBE@)IBMIA LT IZES
person identified in (a); s Bl
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) (a)(i )Iﬁﬁﬁ§|J/\i¥T§ A
influence over the entity or is a member of the key B8 25#‘7‘22%%2% (3
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent E f‘g’%ﬁ’]l A MEEER
of the entity); and B8 ; &
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (Vi) ZEBIZEBBESEN
part, provides key management personnel services SR EIF D E=W/NE W= PN S ETE= N
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. SEHEA TkT,\E 258
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended

use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5% to 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EASHHEME (F

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment property

Investment property is interest in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such property is measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the investment property is stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Process technology licence and software

Process technology licence and software are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years of
the underlying products, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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2QABEREHBEME(H)

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights 42 to 50 years
Buildings 2 to 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAE HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as other income and gains in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through

profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EASHHEME (F

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days to 150 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts
due to related parties, interest-bearing bank borrowings and
lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAE HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.
Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Costs for properties under development include
land costs, construction costs and other direct and indirect
development expenses in relation to property development.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

AR AT o 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE k&

2.4 Ej( +E&%ﬁg n\ﬁ

RIEBIESHEAE
TRABBERAENEEHENR. EHENE
B AR | AR

ERATRBERR —ERALGERA
BARMAEENARE, XRAFRED
FRBERENE, GRERIERA
BRRIEERRARETRERR—BAHNA
B, MEAREENZERIEaRE

=7
2106}

HEEmTE

& BEEFBRITARBIMITHRARZER

ﬁ%ﬁaﬁﬁmigﬁ A B #LOF R E A
THENRANBEEERREERE,

ETH?}%@EQEZ&/ﬁEﬁEE\EE%, i F

BRI BN K 2

3
BRI RERE B
E5IR, BASE T HEEEE,

MAERQRERANE, KASEE
BIH. EEST REEHANEESR

Flo BERBMERABE KA, 2
MR R R A B R BB R R
REREEY, TRREEREEE
A 52 B 8 B AR 2 A
HE R



2022 F[Z R E ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #1488 HR AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 267

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eeeonnn REREERRMTEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAE HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAE HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2ABREFTBERBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).
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31 December 2022
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 04 EAE HEME ()

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2AERETTBRBE (&

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Mainland China and
overseas subsidiaries and associate are currencies other
than US$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into US$ at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into US$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

31 December 2022
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 37 to
the financial statements. For an unlisted equity investment of
US$176,190,000 as at 31 December 2022 without recent deal
price to be referenced, the Group determines the comparable
public companies (peers) and select the price multiple.
addition, the Group makes estimates about the discount for
illiquidity and size differences. Further details are included in

notes 18 and 37 to the financial statements.

Fair value of an investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from the

discounted cash flow projections.

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the

amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31
December 2022 was US$169,363,000 (31 December
2021: US$184,883,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity

analysis, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located
in Shanghai and Wuxi, the PRC. Therefore, no segment
information based on the geographical location of non-current
assets is presented for the year.

Revenues are attributed to geographical areas based on the
locations of customers. Revenues by geographical segment
based on the locations of customers for the year are presented
as follows:

31 December 2022
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2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

US$’000 US$'000

EY FET

China (including Hong Kong) e ( BIERE) 1,811,269 1,205,149
North America b3 297,683 159,281
Asia (excluding China and Japan) TN ( NEEFERER) 210,610 169,227
Europe B 114,728 70,627
Japan Bz 41,198 26,470
2,475,488 1,630,754

The Group is involved in the business of the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Revenue from the sale
of semiconductor products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the semiconductor products, where
the performance obligation is satisfied. The normal credit term
is 30 to 45 days upon delivery. Payment in advance is required
for some contracts.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended
31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).
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31 December 2022
—EF+ZA=1+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

AND OTHER EXPENSES

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains and other

expenses is as follows:

WA, Htlr AR sk HE
b & A

HUA L EUA RS R E M E AN
DITEAT .

2022 2021
—E-—F —E—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEt FET
Revenue from contracts with customers &F & &z
Sale of goods HEEm 2,475,488 1,630,754
Other income Hbg A
Gross rental income from investment REREMELEHED
property operating leases: MW ALEE.
Fixed lease payments E &R 14,358 14,488
Interest income FEHA 26,944 13,437
Government subsidies U i Ah 27,679 7,288
Sale of scrap materials SHERER 1,476 586
Cliheis Hith 524 1015
70,981 36,814
Gains &
Foreign exchange gains, net HNEBE 5 W 2 5 5E = 23,944
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME. BENMKREEE
plant and equipment Frigdeas 5 =
70,986 60,758
Other expenses HihEH
Foreign exchange loss, net HNEE H B8 55 106,804 -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME. REMKREHEEN
plant and equipment ] = 76
Others Hity 4,556 89
111,360 165
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA, Httk AR KERH
AND OTHER EXPENSES (continued) e (&)
2022 2021
—E—_— - —F
USs$’000 US$'000
TER FET
Types of goods EmER
Sales of semiconductor products and FEREE MR EER
total revenue from contracts with REZEFALRUA
customers 2,475,488 1,630,754
Timing of revenue recognition U A TR SR B
Goods transferred at a point in time AR —REENER &
and total revenue from contracts REEFELHRUA
with customers 2,475,488 1,630,754
The disaggregation of the Group’s revenue based on the BE_T_—_H+_A=t1t—HL*F
geographical region for the year ended 31 December 2022 is &, REBERMRNWADEEHIN

given in note 4. FMiaEd,
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BiAER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ RNEBMAOB AR HRINBR TFA)
(crediting): THEIREES.
2022 2021
—s-= —E-—F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
et x5t FET
Cost of inventories sold BEETFERA 1,631,832 1,179,156
Depreciation of property, plant and ME. BMENRETE
equipment 13 439,917 302,245
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREESERE 15 5,842 5,676
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 16 11,101 10,095
Research and development costs R B8 k2N 160,936 86,068
Lease payments not included inthe ki ABEAESE
measurement of lease liabilities MAERR 33(b) 2,625 1,572
Auditor’s remuneration % B 2 B 1,395 660
Employee benefit expense (including EERAMHAS ( BHEEER
directors’ and chief executive’s == THA B E
remuneration (note 8)): (BzE8 ) ):
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE. He REMER 382,804 289,787
Equity-settled share option expense DA B BB RER 31 1,226 296
Pension scheme contributions RS EMER( EE
(definedcontribution scheme) * HHEE ) 31,660 28,287
415,690 318,370
Impairment of items of property, plant  #1%. BB & BEIEER
and equipment RE 13 858 3,914
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment & 5 EUIE ( #E )/
of trade receivables BB 21 (16) 273
Write-down/(reversal) of inventories to 12 &#iR ( #E ) &
net realisable value AJE IR RE 19,612 (180)
Changes in fair value of an investment &% R FEEE)
property 14 (78) (183)
*  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by * REEERE F BRI
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of AR R F I 57K Fo

contributions.
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B 5 ¥ R B

—E-—f+=-HA=+—H
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BIEEH

2022 2021
—E—= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFAE 39,451 12,347
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFE 880 879
40,331 13,226

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERERETHAERHH

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RIE ETAR B R BB R &G 5£383(1)
(a). (b). C)ENEIR(AR(HE=E
ERZER ) BB ) FoBWBENARFE

EERERTTRABRS

Bian T

2022 2021

—E=-= —E—F

US$°’000 US$000

ETT F=T

Fees e 234 231
Other emoluments: Eai < .

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Bl JZBEREWFIZ= 206 179

Performance related bonuses B SR IR BRI IEAT 452 593

Equity-settled share option expense R AR ERER 57 99

Pension scheme contributions BRIRS IR 9 9

724 880

958 1,111

In prior year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE, ETESFREARANE
Bt 8 R E M AR EREH A RGER
FERHE, EAE— SRR KM
31, HABREN R FECKEREY
REBEHEXRER, YRROAHREETAR
REFZ B HRIABRNSERD T AL
EERERTHRABNHHEES,
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EENEESTHAENEM
REMUNERATION (continued) (48 )
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FHANMBLIERTESTIHNES
during the year were as follows: U
2022 2021
—=-— - —F
US$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Stephen Tso Tung Chang SR AH A 78 77
Kwai Huen Wong, JP FiEE, KFHt 78 7
Long Fei Ye - o 78 77
234 231
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRWEEN TRULIERITESH
independent non-executive directors during the year Hinle( T =——%F. &),
(2021 Nil).
(b) A non-executive director and the chief executive (b) FHBITESERESTHRAR
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration

FM. 2RR RERAHN MRREEN BikE
e BEWNE WAL REREEx  HEHK SHeER
US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

2022 —F--
Chief executive: RefTHRAE.
Mr. Junjun Tang EHERE - 206 452 57 9 724
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERESITHAENIHN
REMUNERATION (continued) (48 )
(b) A non-executive director and the chief executive (b) kHTEERBRSTHAE(H)

(continued)

Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions  remuneration

B RER  ERAEES NESEEN ERE
ik BN WA BRERX TR Ham
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$:000 US$:000
TET TET TET TET TET TER

2021 —EC-—fF
Chief executive: RefTHRAE.

Mr. Junjun Tang BHELE - 179 593 99 9 880
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors received BRI RSN, MEEEN T
any emoluments during 2022 and 2021. ToERZIEZ—FIRRAEAE

B o
There was no arrangement under which a director waived REA, BEESELLHEREK

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B = A  E B o
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31 December 2022
T _F+=-A=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director, who is also the chief executive (2021: one director
being also the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining four (2021: four) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

9. IEBREHER

FRN, It na EERE—RES
(MAEAESRITBRAB (ZZE=—F. —
ZEZ(NMARSTHRAR)), EHH
FIBEN EXH 8, TN, EHIMAE
(ZZ2=—F. N )VIIEARRES
NEEHEEMNFMFBLT.

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—F

US$’000 US$'000

E FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind B, E85 R EWF= 1,127 1,094
Performance related bonuses AR IR MM TEAL 771 1,384
Equity-settled share option expense AR EENERERS 121 97
Pension scheme contributions RIS FTBIHER 9 26
2,028 2,601

The number of highest paid employees who are not directors
of the Company and whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HEBN A THRIBNLIFARBESH
ReFEEABLT .

Number of employees

EEAE

2022 2021
—ZE=-= —E-—F
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 £3,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7L £3,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 £ 4,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T E4,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 £5,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7 £5,500,000/ 7T 1 -

HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 7t £7,000,000/ 7T =
4 4

In prior years, share options were granted to four non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in note 31 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE, MEFEERFEHTR
ABMERSHEEREAASBEIRHER
BRERERE, RE—PHBRUHR
RIES1RE, HABRENQFED
ZEBIMNERRER, XINREBH
EFARNAFERBERRARNEED
AFARDRIEEE R IERBITRA BMR
=HFEBHFBRED



10. INCOME TAX

2022 F[Z R E ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #1488 HR AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 287

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eceinon MG ERRMIEE

10. TS %

Profits arising in Hong Kong were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% during the year (2021: 16.5%). No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Company and
a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable
income during the year (2021: Nil).

The Company'’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or
carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in
their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of
25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, HHGrace, is qualified as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” and was therefore entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2022.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC
and with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of
the Group’s subsidiaries, Hua Hong Wuxi, is entitled to an
exemption from CIT for five years, commencing from the first
year that Hua Hong Wuxi generates taxable profit, and a
deduction of 50% on the CIT rate for the following five years.
Hua Hong Wuxi was in accumulated tax loss positions as at 31
December 2022 and the tax holiday has not begun.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in
Japan was subject to corporation tax at a rate of 33.58%
(2021: 33.58%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States was subject to federal corporation income tax at
a rate of 21% during the year (2021: 21%), as well as state tax
at 8.84% (2021: 8.84%).

RERME SR EZ16.5%( =T =
—%F. 16.5% ) TR EHAFS . A
RARR R —RERBEMEIATA
AR ERIT EES R A, I E
REBHNERIELBE( S =—F.
£ )

o

BHRARBERSESEMKIZNTA
AERSHEYEERSXME (M
WMERIRIN ) HEEEMER, WA
FRAABEBNECEMEHR ([ EEMR
B o

FBEARRESDEZMEEETEAM
LENTFAR, BRERIEEEESEHM
BREABRNPEIEERE T2 RER
U AIZ25% B EE R R BAFELE
Frig o

BIEFBRAEER AR REREEE
HWEARLE, AEE—RTARELR
NHEREWRK A SHEMEE], &
EER-_ZE-_TFE T - _FHMAR
15% K BB R AT,

BEFBRAEERERREREEE
WAt E, NEE—RTARIETED
BEBESESRH SN E —FRAFE
ROBMEEmSE, REEAFHR
50%, BE T _F+=_A=+—
H, EEHHFSINHEEE, B
TRER M ARFA

AR EEBAFMA M EER TR A
JlE %233.58% ( — & — — . 33.58% )
By TR R

AAREERFMA L K EERT AR
JERNFERNIZ21%( T = —F. 21%)
HEE B EEMSHENE84%( ZF =
—F . 8.84% ) MMTREL R BT,
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10.

31 December 2022

= —&#+—-A=+—H

INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FR88 ( &
The major components of income tax expense of the Group NEBFEFRBESH T EBARK MM
are as follows: .
2022 2021
—E—= —E—F
US$’000 US$'000
EpIw FET
Current income tax — PRC TSR — R 74,516 49,910
Current income tax — elsewhere BTSN — HtibE 43 41
Withholding tax on the distribution of AR B2 R R AR B A TR AL
dividend from a PRC subsidiary 2,500 -
Deferred tax (note 28) IRFERLIA ( fizE28 ) 12,440 15,398
89,499 65,349
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BARNR RERE D TR a4 & T 7

tax at the statutory rate of 25% for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to

VR R B A TE TR R 25% T B B B Al /i Al
REARERY, BREERREFED

the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: HIERSTOERIOT.
2022 2021
—s=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
EpH FET

Profit before tax T B A 496,070 296,320
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% HOREME25% T E A 124,018 74,080
Effect of different tax rates for specific BEA D MBERH S

provinces and countries or enacted by BREMN TR RN T E

local authority (57,612) (39,700)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of gt —HAR & EAFS B AY B

previous periods 309 71
Profits attributable to associates B & N Al (R R A (1,826) (1,015)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT HF B 2 434 153
Tax losses not recognised due to tax . A i R TR B TE g 18

holiday 50,695 47,629
Tax losses not recognised due to B AR SR AN K AT BE B AR B AR 5 v

improbable future taxable profits AR R TR IEE 1B 1,481 2144
Temporary differences not recognised RERE I Z5E 129 927
Additional deduction of research and Bt 35 K AR L HURL

development costs (42,532) (33,753)
Additional deduction of equipment 2% 18 E A HIRL (3,630) =
Effect of withholding tax at 10% (2021: BAEBRFEFA _T—H#\ﬁﬂfi

10%) on the distributable profits of the HAIA10% ( ZF =

Group’s PRC subsidiary 10% ) sT BB & 18,033 14,813

EARBERBERTEN

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BIER Y 89,499 65,349
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DIVIDEND

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,303,399,389 (2021: 1,300,169,098) in
issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
the exercise price on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

31 December 2022

—E-_—_F#+-HA=+—H

11.

12.

B 5 ¥ R B

R E

EETERKNEE_T-_—_F+=A
Z T BHUEFEZAARE( =T =—
F. &),

BRAAEBREREARN
BRER

EREARBFNTIERT RN E) EBERE
BEEAEGFRZAERFEFRNE %
771,303,399,389f% ( — & — — 4.
1,300,169,0980% ) I /@ A% B9 AN 4 - 15
HETE,

SRCHEIRNSEIRES LR ER
IR A ABMEFREMFTE S8R
REZEBBRIMEF AR ESRE
RBENERBZFADETEERARE
I ERE&FAA B ST E BRI AT
PR BRAEBRFATREETZE
BN IS8,
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12.F R AT ERERSAE AENL
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EREFR(E)
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BREAREERFNTEDER.
based on:
2022 2021
—EB-_—F - —F
USs$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BAREREERE A
holders of the parent eyl 449,912 261,476

Number of shares

REEE
2022 2021
—EC- 8 —E-—F
Shares A5
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EERERZNNFER
shares in issue during the year used in BEITE BRI
the basic earnings per share calculation 1,303,399,389 1,300,169,098
Effect of dilution — weighted average TRREE OB E.
number of ordinary shares:
Share options B8 A% 10,545,888 19,996,637

1,313,945,277 1,320,165,735
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.%. MERRKE

Plant and Office Motor ~ Leasehold  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
BT HERHE W% AE RENEEE EEIR ECh
US§'000 US§'000 USS'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
S E TiR S TER TER TER e
31 December 2022 ZE-CE+ZA=t-H
At 1 January 2022: R-B--%£-A-R.
Cost AR 480,349 6,752,780 64,260 1,805 4,289 252,902 7,556,385
Acoumulated depreciationand ~ BEHFERSE
impairment (239,948)  (4,133,229) (44,323) (1,244) (4,257) (16,889)  (4,439,884)
Net carrying amount FH3E 240,401 2,619,557 19,937 561 2 236,013 3,116,501
At 1 January 2022, net of \-Z2--F-f8-H,
acoumulated depreciatonand  SIB Zat I ERAE
impairment 240,401 2,619,557 19,937 561 2 236,013 3,116,501
Additions AE = = = - - 955,100 955,100
Transfers g5 1,609 478,395 3,556 53 1Y) (483,655) -
Disposal RE - (194) (236) (1) - - (441)
Depreciation provided FRHRNE
during the year (15,646) (419,467) (4,655) (136) (13) - (439,917)
Impairment HE = (822) (36) - - - (858)
Exchange realignment BN AR (19,884) (221,418) (1,734) (40) 6) (19,590) (262,669)
At 31 December 2022, net of RZE_-fF
accumulated depreciation and +ZA=1-H,
impairment NBZHERAE 206,480 2,456,051 16,832 a1 58 687868 3,367716
At 31 December 2022: RZE_-fF
'I':ﬂ E+_ E g
Cost A 442,247 6,640,233 49,805 1,506 3,968 703,329 7,841,088
Accumulated depreciaionand ~ Z: T ERAR
impaiment (235767)  (4,184,182) (32,973) (1,079) (3,910) (15461)  (4473372)
Net carrying amount FEFE 206,480 2,456,051 16,832 421 58 687,868 3,367,716
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2022
—T_—#F#+—A

=+—H

13.M%. BEKRRE (&

(continued)
Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings machinery ~ equipment vehicles  improvements i progress Total
BF  HREREE kM g HENERE fRIE 5
US$000 US§1000 US§1000 US$000 US§000 US$000 US$000
e T S T T TE e
31 December 2021 ZRZ-F1+ZAZ1-H
At 1 January 2021: RZE--£-A-H.
Cost B 471,159 5,138,983 56,047 2,081 4,191 872,854 6,545,315
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZEFHEREE
impaiment (219613)  (3753370) (38428) (1.777) (4,151) (1753)  (4034873)
Net carrying amount KESE 51,546 1,385,613 17,619 304 40 865,320 2510442
At 1 January 2021, net of A—Z2-—F-f-H,
accumulated depreciatonand IR EEHTERE
impairment 1,546 1,385,613 17,619 304 40 855,320 2,510,442
Additions AE = = = = = 855,168 855,168
Transfers E 454 = 1,475,794 6,276 393 - (1,482,463) -
Disposal RE - (80) (25) (25) - - (130)
Depreciation provided ERERE
during the year (16302)  (281,664) (4,149) (122) 9) - (302245)
Impairment B = (3735) (179) - - = (3914)
Exchange realignment [EiA% 5,157 43,629 394 1 1 7988 57180
At 31 December 2021, net of e 3
accumulated depreciationand ~ +=F=1—H,
impaiment MR nERRE A0401 2619557 19,937 561 R 26013 3116501
At 31 December 2021: RZE--F
+ZA=1-H
Cost A 480,349 6,752,780 64,260 1,805 4,289 262902 7,556,385
Accumulated depreciationand ~ E:fERAR
impairment (239948)  (4,133.229) (44323) (1,244) (4,257) (16,889)  (4,439,884)
Net carrying amount EREE 240,401 2,619,957 19937 561 32 236,013 3,116,501

For the year ended 31 December 2022, certain items of the
Group’s machinery and office equipment of US$858,000 (31
December 2021: US$3,914,000) were obsolete with a minimal
recoverable amount determined based on their fair value less
costs of disposal and were therefore fully impaired.

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying value of US$1,803,095,000
(31 December 2021: US$2,256,289,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note 26).

BHE-_ZT-_—_F+-HA=+—HL*F
B, AEERSERPHAREPETES
858,000kt ( —E-—%F+=-_A=+
—H. 3,914,000 7T ) BE@E, MR
B E N FER SRR AN T AR A U
Ele®E, BmxaERE.

R—_ZE-_—_F#+-_A=+—H, &
% B K @ % & A1,803,095,0003%
T ZEZ—F+=-_A=+—8.
2,256,289,000 7T ) A TWE. W
EREEEEBTFRITURSEAEEN
IRITRE ( HEE26 )o
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31 December 2022

==
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ZHA=A f

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. REY
2022 2021
—E—_— - —F
US$’000 US$'000
EYe F=7T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B®EREE 184,883 180,476
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NP EFHEN W FRE 78 183
Exchange realignment M H R (15,598) 4,224
Carrying amount at 31 December R+t A=+—H8EAEE 169,363 184,883

The Group’s investment property is situated in Shanghai,
the PRC. The directors have determined that the investment
property is an industrial property based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the property.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31
December 2022 based on valuation performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market
value basis. The valuation is based on capitalisation of income
derived from the existing tenancy with allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the property.

Every year, the Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s property manager and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results annually when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a related party under an
operating lease (note 33 and note 35(b)).

AEBENREMELNTE LS, EF
EERYENEEL. BHLEREFER
BEMERTEMH.

R-ZTE-_—F+—-_A=+—H, A&H
MIREMEERE —REEEEENE
MAERMPERITEETHRARER
REEAFATERET T &2, ZHEES
EZETRABROMBYEBEAERKA
BETRIRA B AEREE o

BF, AEENYRLE MM BEER
EZRESNBEEMAEAEEYENIN
BAE, REFERBHMEMN TH.
BE BUMEIRELRARERKE, K
SENMELERMBRERFRENT
BEETHER, CERAEMEFIR
—RIGERERAELR.

REYEREBELEHOTHETER A
( B FE33AIMTEES5(b) )o
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31 December 2022
T _F+=-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s
investment property, which is an industrial property, was
made using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at
31 December 2022 and 2021. During the year, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and

14. REYHE(E)

D EER

AREEREME(ATEDE )R _F
T FERZE—F+ZA=1+—HHK
BEAFENEDNFEAEATAHEE
AR ( E3R ) EH . RERW, FIR
HEo MW ENTEFESER, AE3

EHIZE %

Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). WIEEASGELY ( —E-—F. £),
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the T AEEEGEFrBGERT R
key inputs to the valuation of the investment property: g A BRI E
Significant unobservable Weighted
Industrial property Valuation techniques inputs average
IEME B E R BARANAI BRI A BUE IR
As at 31 December 2022 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$13.2
(per sg.m. per month) (equivalent to
RMB89.00)
RZZE_Z_F+_A=+—H FHRERZX fhEtEEEE 13.2% 7T
(BFHAREH) (HERARY
89.007T )
Term yield 6.75%
FEAE K
Reversionary yield 7.25%
BEREI R
Long term vacancy rate 10.00%
RYEEX
As at 31 December 2021 Term and reversion method Estimated rental value US$13.3
(per sg.m. per month) (equivalent to
RMB86.00)
RZZE_—F+_A=+—H FHRERZE hEtHEEER 13.3% 7T
(BFIAEH) (HERARE
86.007T )
Term yield 6.75%
FHERE
Reversionary yield 7.25%
EERE R
Long term vacancy rate 10.00%
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14. BB (H )

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the term and reversion method, fair value is measured
by taking into account the rental income derived from the
existing lease with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease, which is then capitalised into the value
at appropriate rates.

The term value was estimated based on the existing rent, the
tenancy period as stated in the lease agreement and the yield
during the term period (tenancy period). The reversionary
value was estimated based on the market rents, the market
yield and the reversionary periods.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property. A significant increase/(decrease) in the
long-term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the fair value of
the investment property. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long-term
vacancy rate.

DFEER(E)

REBFHRERE, XATFEDEARR
BHROEEMNBESWA, IRZFHELD
MEERERRAGIRES BE, HiR
WERENMC R B EAHEEEN
EHo

EHEEDREAEGHEMIANERA
He. HHLRFHAR(EE ) DHREMG
ito BEREEDNREMERS. M5O
B REFEBRE

R HEEEATSHESFEREER
RiEg LA ATR)BEBREMEN
RNFERNEEN R ) REEE
KRR REFAE (T ) &
EYREMENRFERBRD 1 H
mle —ME, RAEFHEEEES
MEBRREFFEE, HeFERELER
RHERAES, MEMHZEXHER
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. (E RS E
2022 —E-=
Land use
rights  Buildings Total
T fE AR BF st

US$000  US$000  US$°000
FTERr TXR FTER

At 1 January 2022, net of R-_E-_—#—H—H,
accumulated depreciation k2t E 60,191 15,140 75,331
Additions NE 9,393 6,394 15,787
Depreciation provided during FATIRITE
the year (1,952) (3,890) (5,842)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (5,370) (1,481) (6,851)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE__F+-_A=+—H 62,262 16,163 78,425
2021 —E-—F
Land use
rights Buildings Total
4 AR BF #Et
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021, net of R-ZZE-_—F—HF—H,
accumulated depreciation [ i =S 60,354 18,867 79,221
Depreciation provided during FATIRITE
the year (1,556) (4,120) (5,676)
Exchange realignment P& 35, A 2 1,393 393 1,786
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H 60,191 15,140 75,331
As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s land use rights RZZBZZF+=-A=+—H, ~%5H
with a carrying value of US$50,231,000 as at 31 December RZBZ—F+-_A=1+—HERHEHER
2022 (31 December 2021: US$46,604,000) were pledged to 50,231,000 ( ZE=Z—F+=ZHA=
banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note 26). +—H: 46,604,0003%7T ) & T i

FRESETFRITURS RSB AR
1TRE (HI3E26 )o
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16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022
- oF+ZA=+—H

16. B EE

B 5 ¥ R B

Process
technology
licence Software Total
TEEAEFA LIgus et
Us$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEx FE Tt
31 December 2022 —E-_—_F#+=-H=+—H
At 1 January 2022: R-ZZB__F—H—QH.
Cost (D% 297,366 146,577 443,943
Accumulated amortisation and S EHERE
impairment (279,314) (129,317) (408,631)
Net carrying amount AREFE 18,052 17,260 35,312
At 1 January 2022, net of R-—_BE-_—_F—H—H,
accumulated amortisation and Nk 2T RRE
impairment 18,052 17,260 35,312
Additions NE - 11,718 11,718
Amortisation provided during FA1E
the year (5,248) (5,853) (11,101)
Exchange realignment RIS (1,316) (1,627) (2,943)
At 31 December 2022, net of R-E-_—F#+=-A=+—H,
accumulated amortisation and Nk RT3 88 MO E
impairment 11,488 21,498 32,986
At 31 December 2022: RZE_—_F+=-_A=+—H.
Cost AR 270,734 147,145 417,879
Accumulated amortisation and ~ ZET#EEE &R E
impairment (259,246)  (125,647)  (384,893)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 11,488 21,498 32,986
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31 December 2022
T _F+=-A=+—H

16.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. B &EE (& )

Process
technology
licence Software Total
T &5 MTET Al B 5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET =

31 December 2021 —E-_—-+=-H=+—H
At 1 January 2021: R-ZZB-_—F—H—QH.

Cost (DN 290,715 131,796 422,511

Accumulated amortisation and S LR E

impairment (267,884)  (117,680)  (385,564)

Net carrying amount AREFE 22,831 14,116 36,947
At 1 January 2021, net of R-_ZE-_—F—HF—H,

accumulated amortisation and ks 288 LoRE

impairment 22,831 14,116 36,947
Additions NE = 7,777 7,777
Amortisation provided during FERVEH

the year (5,099) (4,996) (10,095)
Exchange realignment b 5 AR 320 363 683
At 31 December 2021, net of WR-_E-_—F+-_A=+—H,

accumulated amortisation and MR 2t MR E

impairment 18,052 17,260 35,312
At 31 December 2021: R-_BE-_—F+-_A=+—8.

Cost AR 297,366 146,577 443,943

Accumulated amortisation and R ET#EEE RIRE

impairment (279,314) (129,317) (408,631)
Net carrying amount BREEE 18,052 17,260 35,312
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

31 December 2022

—E-_—_F#+-HA=+—H

B 5 ¥ R B

17. RBEE N TR E

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E—F

US$’000 US$'000

=== FET

Carrying amount BRTEE 130,721 122,040

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

TEMENFFBET:

Percentage of

Place of Paid-in equity interest
registration and capital attributable
Name of company business B A to the Group  Principal activities
RMB’000 REE G
NCIERE ke ARETT BEES L FEEH
Shanghai Huahong Technology PRC/Mainland 548,000 50%  Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Huahong China development and
Technology Development”) HE FEA investment
EREINMBRERARAR R pERIRE
([EFEMRRER )
Shanghai Huahong Investment PRC/Mainland 480,000 20% Investment
Development Co., Ltd (“Huahong China ®E
Investment Development”) HE B A

PEEIREERERAR
([FMREER |

The Group's voting power held and profit sharing arrangement
in relation to Huahong Technology Development are 40% and

50%, respectively.

The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

AEEAREIMEERBAENRER
K R B 22 k> Bl 7340% 52 50% o

AEBEBARBNEEFRBRAEX
E AN 38
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

31 December 2022
—EF+ZA=1+—H

17.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Huahong Technology Development and
Huahong Investment Development:

REBERTNKRE(HE)

TREEFEIMEBERMETREER
RS EHL

Huahong Technology Development Huahong Investment Development

ERRERE ERERR
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F —E-CF =8==
t=A=t-A tzZA=t-A t=A=t-A t+=A=+-~H
US$’000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
FTERr = TERT FER
Current assets MBEE 31,186 27,884 24,365 16,969
Non-current assets FRBEE 307,918 324,496 76,980 21,354
Current liabilities mBEE (91,340) (100,312) (186) (37)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (23,606) (23,233) (7,949) (175)
Net assets FEE 224,158 228,835 93,210 38,111
Net assets, excluding FEE, TRERE
goodwill 224,158 228,835 93,210 38,111
Reconciliation to the Group’s AEEREE AT
interest in the associate: RREE R
Proportion of the Group’s REERBE AT
interest in the associate HORERS L {51 50% 50% 20% 20%
Carrying amount of the RERMEE
investment 112,079 114,418 18,642 7,622
Huahong Technology Huahong Investment
Development Development
E R R EINEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
—EB-C—F —E-—4F —E=-= T —F
US$’000 US$'000 US$°000 US$'000
FTEx FExT TEx F=
Revenue WA 26,283 29,423 850 104
Profit and total i A R 2 E U E
comprehensive income FEEC] 14,832 13,342 23,775 470




2022 F[Z#E ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #1882 HR AR HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 301

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS ERER BT EE

18. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 18. € WRE

2022 2021

—E-— —E-—F

USs$’000 US$'000

SR FET

Equity investments designated at fair value §7F &z A FEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income: W HIRARE

Listed equity investments EHRAIRE 2,442 14,310
Unlisted equity investments FELETIRAKRE 176,190 243,478
178,632 257,788
Equity investments designated at fair value through other EEBIEAFE AL M2 E KSR
comprehensive income are listed equity investment in AEEABEEYAETRITRMHAER
Shanghai Awinic Technology Co., Ltd. and unlisted equity NAEH EmRARE A REREBESD 5
investments in Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation #$174,170,0003€ J© }%2,020,000% T
(“Shanghai Huali”) and QST Corporation (“QST”) with carrying WEBSZENHMEFERAR( LB
amounts of US$174,170,000 and US$2,020,000, respectively, N REBYWERBEERARITHE
which were irrevocably designated at fair value through B ) B ETRAKRE, MAKE
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these REBZERETHEIMIETE /AT
investments to be strategic in nature. Bt AHMEENE, DHRZERE

BRESEE
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19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. REHPYE
2022
—E—=
US$’000
FTEx
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—B8ERAEE 114,492
Additions NE 20,231
As at 31 December R+—_A=+—H 134,723
The Group’s properties under development are recognised in AREERPVENHEANBEE L
leasehold land situated in Mainland China. P RERR
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s properties under ﬁf::g:\:iﬂ'iﬂ =+—8, &&
development with an aggregate carrying amount of @%&Eqamﬁﬂﬁﬁg@@é’zgg,oaa,ooo%
approximately US$88,033,000 (31 December 2021: Nil) were T(=F_—F+-A=+—H: &)
pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted to the EEA TR T ASERTREAM
Group (note 26). B ( Bi3E26 )
20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &
2022 2021
—EC-CfF T —F
USs$’000 US$'000
FTEx F=
Raw materials R 255,511 185,541
Work in progress ERS 179,510 139,754
Finished goods SIRK Th 171,039 126,119
606,060 451,414
Provision for inventories FEREMH (28,000) (18,497)

578,060 432,917
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES . EFERFEBRERERE

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E-—F

US$’000 US$'000

FErx FET

Trade receivables 2z 5 el IE 229,409 154,339
Notes receivables EWEE 64,038 28,424
293,447 182,763

Impairment of trade receivables Z S EWERIERE (1,591) (1,721)
291,856 181,042

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit and the credit period is generally 30 to 60 days. There
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowances, is as follows:

AEEEETFNESRBPUGER
T, EEH - MRR/0E60K, AEE
WEEAEFEERR, NEBELER
HE S RBFIARRER B EER R
RREMEERIEE. &2 EBKHEA

REE

WEZAHE, BZREFE(MRE

BEE ) RESITIT

2022 2021
—s-= T —F

US$°000 US$'000

SFESou FET

Within 3 months 31E A AR 212,563 149,900
3 to 6 months 3Z6f@ A 15,255 2,718
227,818 152,618

The movements in loss allowance for impairment of trade

BZRWREREBERENE SN

receivables are as follows: ™
2022 2021
—_s-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
ET F=x
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,721 1,619
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BEEEFEE ( fizEe ) (16) 273
Write-off s = (199)
Exchange realignment b (114) 28

As at 31 December Wt+—-_HA=+—H 1,591 1,721




304 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED #i1-@& 8 HE A 7] « 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE3E

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥ R B

31 December 2022
—EF+ZA=1+—H

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss for all trade and notes receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade and notes receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit losses have also
incorporated forward-looking information. The expected credit
loss rates for trade and notes receivables that were not yet

past due or aged within 3 months are minimal.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to

enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

21.

ESRUREREVRREE
)

AEBRAE BV BHRELEANEIRA]
PAERREEBRCBTE, %%
AIA PRI 8 5 R UKR R ERRE
REEEFEDNENER, RtEE
HEEER, E5RKBERERERE
ERBAREERREEARREE
T, BHMEEERTEEREEE
Fto HARBINIRE R3EAAANE
HRM AN EREBRNBREERE
IR,

/

pil

B

Il

W& B R AR BT ES
i, At BRI EER. BEEDE
RAAELBEER0S BEF S 1
Bl EHE, ERAL. TFRLR
TR AREAERE R REBR
RERBEES ) OAMRBET. %
SHERMIEIEE R, RRRBERR
s BRI BB RB A B, E AT
RER TG EEERANARRTRE
Bro RIS, WH S EUHERNE
B R BAERARHNTED, 2
F LA

TXEFAEE B ERETENE
5 NGRS AR QB #Y
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31 December 2022
—E-—F+-A=+—H

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES NEZREWFEREKREE
(continued) (#&)
The credit quality of the trade receivables is as follows: BHRWFENEEEENT:
As at 31 December 2022 R-B-Z-_H+-A=+—H
Past due
gz
Less than
Current 3 months Over 1 year Total
e AH3EA —FBE a5t
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEX 0.07% 1.63% 100.00% 0.69%
Gross carrying amount (US$'000) BRMAE
(FZ=1) 224,961 3,065 1,383 229,409
Expected credit losses (US$'000) TEEEEEE
(F=71) 158 50 1,383 1,591
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—H+=ZH=+—H
Past due
180 Hf
Less than
Current 3 months Over 1 year Total
BNER D A3fE A —FLA AaF
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEEX 0.18% 1.40% 100.00% 1.12%
Gross carrying amount (US$'000) BRMBE
(F=7) 152,329 570 1,440 154,339
Expected credit losses (US$'000) R EEEE
(F=71) 273 8 1,440 1,721
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31 December 2022

= —&#+—-A=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

22. FEHRIE. HMERRER

OTHER ASSETS =R

2022 2021
—E—_— - —F
US$’000 US$'000
TER F=T
Other receivables H b pE U Fh1E 24,476 23,485
Prepayments and other assets TR ERIA R H & 4,009 13,707
Value-added input tax AN EIRTRE 20,687 7,206
49,172 44,398
Impairment of other receivables H h E UK IE R E (899) (959)
48,273 43,443

Other receivables are repayable on demand. H fth JEYRIE A B IR ESREIE

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

o fth FE MR SRR E R R R 2 B i
T

2022 2021

—s-= - —F

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

At 1 January n—HA—H 955 940
Exchange realignment PE 5 (56) 15
As at 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 899 955

The Group applies a general approach in calculating ECLs for
other receivables. Other receivables related to debtors that
are in default are classified as Stage 3 and the lifetime ECL
rate was estimated to be 100% based on historical credit loss
experience, resulting in an impairment balance of US$899,000
(2021: US$955,000). The remaining other receivables are
classified as Stage 1 without any significant increase in credit
risk tracked since initial recognition. Their recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors,
and the expected credit losses as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 were considered to be insignificant.

REBEB M AFTE EMEWIE
MIBHEERE, BELNBEBAMBLD
HEMEWRIBEREAE =R, RERE
S EEBELRET2HEBREEBR
K B100%, B IR E 4 & /2899,000
E( T =—%. 955,000% 7T ), E
HBEMBEKKERELAE KR, 84
FTHERBBHNEERBRYEEAEKXR
. BRI 2R ERARE B
MEE, MEBEZT_—_FR_FT=——
F+ A=+ BNEHEEBEER
BTEKR,
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 3. B RESZEYURDIE

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

EEEER N

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
=== FET
Cash and bank balances e RIBITERS 736,530 379,995
Time deposits THATF 1,273,277 1,232,393
2,009,807 1,612,388
Less: pledged deposits B BHERER
Pledged deposits [REEECEER N (1,015) (2,221)
Others Hph (27) (27)
Cash and cash equivalents HWERIREEEBY 2,008,765 1,610,140

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to US$1,305,378,000 (2021:
US$975,405,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RMEER, XEEMIR S MIRITER
URTHERDIAARE ([ ARE )
=18, &1,305,378,000% jt( —F —
— . 975,405,000 7T ) ARED
AERLBRAREMER, A, BEF
B P H  (HNEE E R Il ) Be (S BE .
EERNEEERE), AEBELES
BERERRIMNEXFHNRITHEARKE
HBHME,

RITRE DHREE A RITERFHRF
BRERG R, MEHEMERIEFA
SENSREFTRAMLRE=([EA
N, RE R HE B R EREUH
Bo RITEBNEFRNEER BT
3 8 38 A RCERAYERTT o
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24. TRADE PAYABLES 24

An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

B RARIE

RERERRZERBHGF, AREE
SN FRIBRNIRE DTN T

as follows:
2022 2021
—E—= —E-—F
US$°000 US$'000
ESp0 FET
Within 1 month & A AR 141,338 131,102
1 to 3 months 1231E A 60,772 41,450
3 to 6 months 3E61E A 11,699 7,223
6 to 12 months 62121 A 9,388 2,767
Over 12 months 1218 A E 13,802 11,843
236,999 194,385

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

BSREMNRIEAERE. THER—K
RI0KXEGOKRIR AL E,

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. Hitt BN REBEREHE A
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
S == FET
Other payables and accruals EMEMREREGER 318,917 307,416
Contract liabilities aR8E 192,588 182,453
Payroll and bonus payables e Hr & RIEA 82,439 70,539
Others Hity 27 27
593,971 560,435

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand.

As at 1 January 2021, the carrying amount of contract liabilities
was US$82,720,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, contract liabilities
of US$182,453,000 (2021: US$82,720,000) at the beginning of
the year were recognised as revenue. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was mainly due to the increase in
short-term advances received from customers in relation to the
sale of semiconductor products.

HpEARAEER. RERAREX

REE,

R-E-_—F—HF—H, A4¥EEERA
{&/482,720,000% 7T,

BHE_ET-_ "+ -_A=+—HIF
g, F1)182,453,000k T( T~ —
. 82,720,000% 7T ) WA N A BEHIE
REBA RZEZ_FR-_F=-_—F
MEHNAEBEENEERANEHEEYE
BEMREBNTFEEHBZUEIM,
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31 December 2022

- oF+ZA=+—H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

26 —l-/u\ﬂ{T{ﬁITA

2022
—s=-=
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity US$’000
BB FIZE(%) 2| HA FEx
Current E
Bank loans — unsecured SRITER — &I 0.55-5.50 2023 314,039
0.5525.50 —E-=
Current portion of long-term K HIER1TE 2 A9 BN EA
bank loans — secured =i ﬁ%&ﬁ 1.20-6.30 2023 112,717
1.20£6.30 —E-=
426,756
Non-current FERE
Secured bank loans BHEMRITER 1.20-6.63 2024-2030 1,451,580
1.20£6.63 —T-NF - —FB=FTF
Unsecured bank loans MmIKIFIRITE R 2.00 2024-2030 30,000
—ECNFE-—E=FF
1,481,580
1,908,336
2021
—E-—F
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity US$'000
EBREFIE (%) EI|HA FET
Current }ﬁib
Bank loans — unsecured IRITER — BEH 0.78-1.14 2022 180,989
0.78%1.14 —E-_F
Current portion of long term K EA$R1T & 7 &) BN EA
bank loans — secured %7 *ﬁ%ﬁﬁ 1.20-4.10 2022 14,035
1.20£4.10 —E-—F
195,024
Non-current FERE
Secured bank loans BEPRITER 0-4.10 2023-2028 1,395,279
0£4.10 =FE_FT-)N\F

1,590,303
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(continued)

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FErn FET
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: FEEBIRITER.
Within one year —FR 426,756 195,024
In the second year F—F 183,281 107,943
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-EZERT(BEEERT) 827919 677,961
After five years hFE 470,380 609,375
1,908,336 1,590,303
Except for bank loans of US$132,562,000 (2021: $2132,562,000% jo( = & = — &F.

US$30,249,000) which are denominated in RMB, all borrowings
are dominated in United States dollars.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, certain of the Group’s
bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group’s assets
with carrying values as follows:

30,249,000 T ) WIRTTE FTUAAR K
sHESN, FrA BRI LFETHE,

RZBE-_—FR-_F-_—F+-_A=+
—H, AEENETRITERHEF
AEBHNEEFEER, EEMNERAAED
T

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Notes Us$’000 US$'000

Bfat FEx FET

Property, plant and equipment ME . BE MERE 13 1,803,095 2,256,289
Right-of-use assets BREEE 15 50,231 46,604
Properties under development BrRpyE 19 88,033 -
1,941,359 2,302,893
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEEE

2022 2021

—=E=-= —E—F

US$’000 US$'000

=== FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—H/ERAE 17,813 21,640
Additions INE 6,394 =
Accretion of interest ) B 3E 0 880 879
Payments BN (4,144) (4,878)
Exchange realignment M H R (1,595) 172
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HBmEAEE 19,348 17,813
The maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2022 HEAER =S =-_=F+=-A=+—H

is as follows: I HAB RN T .

2022 2021

—E=-= —E—F

US$’000 US$'000

=== FET

Within one year —F R 5,458 2437
In the second year F—F 2,615 1,842
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEFERT(BIEEEMT) 5,059 5,527
After five years RE%E 10,119 12,895

Total undiscounted lease liabilities RENIRFAEBERE 23,251 22,701
Discount amount BLIR R (3,903) (4,888)
Total present value of lease liabilities HEBENRRE 19,348 17,813
Current portion BN EREL 5 4,704 1,676
Non-current portion JEBNHEREL o 14,644 16,137

2022 2021

—E—-= T

US$’000 US$'000

T35 FET

Analysed into: DR

Within one year —F K 4,704 1,676
In the second year F—F 2,014 1,142
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEFERT(BIEEEMT) 3,622 3,772
After five years AF% 9,008 11,223
Total present value of lease liabilities HEBBENEIRE 19,348 17,813
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEEH I
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FRNECHEEEREENSEHNT .
year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFRIEEE
Difference of
Fair value Fair value fixed assets
gains on gainon between
financial an investment Withholding  accounting and
investments property tax tax basis Total
SRIRER RENEN BEAE
AHEKE NFHERE TR fiezg &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$1000 US$'000
TEL TET TEr TEL e
As at 1 January 2021 N_E-_—F—H—H 2,114 585 10,922 - 13,621
Deferred tax charged/ ~ ERMA /(FFA ) B&EM
(credited) to profit or BRI FE10)
loss during the year
(note 10) - 21 14,813 - 14,840
Deferred tax charged ~ FRMARMZEREN
to other comprehensive  IEIERIE
income during the year 2,335 - - - 2,335
Exchange realignment  E i HAE 79 14 - = 93
As at 31 December 2021 RZZ=—F+-f=1+—-HRK
and 1 January 2022 —E--%-F—H 4528 626 25,735 - 30,889
Deferred tax charged to ~ FRINE EXMETHAE
profit or loss during the ~ ( Fit3E10)
year (note 10) - 12 15,533 3,566 19,111
Deferred tax charged FAMEEMEZEKEN
to other comprehensive  EREFHIE
income during the year (4,528) - - - (4,528)
Exchange realignment B 5% - (48) - 55 7
Gross deferred tax RZE--#+-A=1-8
liabilities as at 31 EEREARLER
December 2022 - 590 41,268 3,621 45,479

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

BEBE(FEAREXNMBECEMRER
%), KRB AR R INE B EmIh
B EE T IRMALEAIZ10% 5 A IRF
Bio B, NEBAFNFBEAMAKT
MZEFARE _TTN\F—A—HE
A B 2 P 0 TR B BB AR TR N R
fied P B P 3 B OB 4 B 2 T RDEHE IR
REIABEHE, AIeLEARENEN
&,

R A 1) AR BRI A< S B, X 48 Bf 7 A ]
P RIE R
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. IEERIIE (48 )
Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of the Group’s NI Bk ol = N OB = =
investments in associates where the Group is able to control PE sk A b F B IR ARERT, RN
the timing of remittance or other realisation and where A RARRER S F RS A, KNE
remittance or realisation is not probable in the foreseeable BE et EIRERAELERE, &
future. The aggregate temporary differences relating to AL N RIS EE L AR ERELER
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities arising on investments in HABZ R E=EL%EA77,595,000%
associates is US$77,595,000 (2021: US$71,536,000). FE(—ZT——%. 71,536,000E7T )o
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEAE
Losses
Write-down of available Fair value
inventories and for offsetting oss on
impairment of against future financial ~ Government
receivables Accruals Leases taxable profits investments Grants Total
AR
TFRMAR ARERE  SRREN

BAGURRE  ERHER B8 EiNBR  ATERR  BEED st
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000
e TERL TERL TERL e TEn TERL

As at 1 January 2021 RZE--F-fA—H 2,369 5,740 370 486 - - 8,965
Deferred tax creditedto  E R AJBH)

profitor loss during the ~ EFERIE ( FiEE10)

year (note 10) 109 (203) » (436) - - (558)
Deferred tax charged ERMAEM2EKE

to other comprehensive  HERETIE

income during the year - - - - - - -
Exchange realignment B} 5% 56 161 9 - = - 206

Asat31December 2021 RZZ=—%F

and 1 January 2022 +-A=+-Bk

“%--#-f-H 2,534 5,698 401 - - - 8,633

Deferred tax credited/  FMEFA /(415 ) 1B%

(charged) to profit or IR ( 1310

loss during the year

(note 10) 571 1,469 2 - - 4607 6,671
Deferred tax charged FRMeEf2ERE

to other comprehensive  R)IETEH B

income during the year - - - - 3,820 - 3,820
Exchange realignment B ¥ 5% (241) (702) (34) = 59 70 (848)

Gross deferred tax assets WZZE-ZF
asat 31 December 2022 +-A=1-H
ERMEEEER 2,864 6,465 391 = 3,879 4677 18276
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31 December 2022
—EF+ZA=1+—H

1

28. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. EEBIE (& )

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

HEREYER, ETEERBEEERE
BEEETBARREKRFIEE, AT AR
EiReE B S AL BIEE T A ETT

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
EpH FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE AR R ERA
the consolidated statement of financial EEF IR & BEFRE
position 14,066 3,479
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in ?v?/.:.\ﬁﬁk#ﬁi’%ﬁﬁ A=)
the consolidated statement of financial BRI B EFRE
position (41,268) (25,735)
Net deferred tax liabilities EEFIR A EFRE (27,202) (22,256)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of ATIEE W RERREHIBEEE:
the following items:
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
EpH FET
Unused tax losses RENARIAREE 29,540 22,332
Deductible temporary differences AT R =R 17,876 17,018
47416 39,350

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of

$EIE%}%E$E’JT)EEIEI§?TER

US$22,576,000 (2021: US$18,800,000) that are available 22,576,000% Tt ( - — F.
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the 18,800,000% 7T ), T?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%i
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has BB RARIRARRERT T, NEE

tax losses arising in Mainland China of US$6,964,000 (2021:
US$3,532,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

TRNRA FR B A b E A 4 TE E5 186,964,000
Ej( T =—4%. 3,532,000%7T ),
#55 — 2= 1 4F R Bl HR A B 885 2K SR FE AR AR

it o
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be recognised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the temporary differences as it is not considered probable that
the above items can be recognised.

31 December 2022
—F+ZA=1+—H

28 JEEBIE (K] )

B 5 ¥ R B

HRNEERIEEETREEBIESRT
FARF], BTKRAIGEA BRBE N AT
A SHR] TRER MBI A, MU B
ZEBRERRERREE,

mRR R LERIER AR

REIS B HER,

B BHE R EZEERDECHREE,

29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 29. BUS# B

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E—F
Us$’000 US$'000
=== FET
At 1 January n—H—H 66,837 58,926
Additions NE 58,237 154,965

Released to offsetting research and B AR S A B B AR
development costs (31,368) (65,596)
Released to offset finance costs BEA A SHET 75 & B (11,100) -
Offset with long term assets EIHRAEE (38,414) (83,594)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (6,478) 2,136
As at 31 December wW+—-_A=+—H 37,714 66,837

The Group received government funding for several
government-sponsored projects focusing on the research and
development of advanced technologies.

AEENZ ERNE AR DR SERT
BNESLEY, ZFREBINHEL

R o
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—E-—#+=-A=+—H
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. R A<
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$000
=== FET
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE

1,306,836,740 (2021: 1,301,191,585) 1,306,836, 7400 ( — & ——4 .

ordinary shares 1,301,191,5850% ) E@A% 1,994,462 1,986,152
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RACIRANZESEAM AT .
follows:

Number of Amount of
shares in issue  share capital
ERTROEE BA&EE
’000 US$’000
T8’ FEx
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=—F—H—H 1,297,818 1,979,033
Share options exercised (note (a)) IT{E BB AE ( BisE(a) ) 3,374 7,119

At 31 December 2021 and RIE-_—F+-_A=1+—HRK
1 January 2022 —E-_4—H—H 1,301,192 1,986,152
Share options exercised (note (a)) TTPRERRAE ( BisE(a) ) 5,645 8,310
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+_A=+—H 1,306,837 1,994,462

Note:

(a)

The subscription rights attaching to 4,738,000 (2021: 1,197,000)
share options under the 2015 Options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$6.912 per share (2021: HK$6.912 per
share), resulting in the issue of 4,738,000 (2021: 1,197,000)
shares for a total cash consideration of US$4,173,000 (2021:
US$1,065,000). An amount of US$1,803,000 (2021: US$465,000)
was transferred from the share option reserve to share capital
upon exercise of the share options.

The subscription rights attaching to 907,000 (2021: 2,177,000)
share options under the 2018 Options were exercised at the
subscription prices of HK$15.056 and HK$17.952 per share
(2021: HK$15.056 and HK$17.952), resulting in the issue of
907,000 (2021: 2,177,000) shares for a total cash consideration of
US$1,768,000 (2021: US$4,235,000). An amount of US$566,000
(2021: US$1,354,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to share capital upon exercise of the share options.

(a) RIEBE-_ZT—RHFERKRE, 4,738,000
?(=—T = —4. 1,197,0001) ) B &
M RBECIERABESTR6.912
B ZTE=_—F. BK6912F )
171, 3| B 3% 174,738,0000 ( = &
— — 4. 1,197,000 ) I& 1p, #3R
% K 8 54,173,000k t( =T = —
. 1,065,000E 7T ), HERERITE
%, 1,803,000% Jjo( = T = — .
465,000 7T ) SAIEE AR ER HE
BEERA,

(b) RIFE=ZF—/)\F E M, 907,000
M= T - — . 2177,0001 ) B
BENEREEERRBESR
15.056/8 7T A }&17.95208 T( = &
— — 4. 15.056/8 JT &17.952%

) 97 £, 3| £ % 17907,0008% ( =

— — . 2177,0000% ) & 5, #

4 KRB A1,768,000E T( - F =

— 4. 4,235,000 7T ), ERRAEETT

i %, 566,000 T( =& = — F.

1,354,000 7t ) RIEC B R ERFE

BB,

RSl
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. BB AESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Scheme includes two batches, each of which
was effective on 4 September 2015 (the “2015 Options”) and
on 24 December 2018 (the “2018 Options”), respectively.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including a non-executive director, an executive
director and other employees of the Group. The share options,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
7 years from the respective effective dates.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a vesting
period of two to five years and ends on a date which is not
later than the expiry date of the Scheme.

ARpal&BE—BEREE (] ZE
), EEAHAEEIEFNEREME
B2 A B2 HEE R HE X EE,
ZErE D Amit, SR _Z—Hh
FAAMB([ZE—AFERE]) &
—E-N\FE+_At+HWB([=ZF—
NEERE]) ER. Zirdl2FaE&
B2HEBRARAES(BRIE—RIE
WITES., —RATES ) REAEEE
HiEE, BRIESWBUHKISE], ZEE
AERE S R AE R B HARE ST 7 F A o

IREF Al AR IR AZ AT B 2 R AT {E B AR 4
HETSRBAZSERETERAQR
T B EITRMN 210%, REM+ =&
AHIRE, ZESFAERSBERE
B ERIT 2RO E TEBBAAN
RNEEAIERE TG 21%. #E—
IR T B It PR B 2 B AR A RN ZE AR SR 7
BEREAE A,

MARAEE. RRTHRABXEER
R FE 2 EMBEA TR TRERER
EABSEIENITESHE, LN,
WEREM+Z@EAE, RFAQF
FERRIBULIFENTESHEESH
AR A+ 2 B AERR N AN BT
R R B BEITRMD 20 1% 2 E (1R
BRI BEAQRROESRFTE )BEa
5008 87T, AIZEEAEERREARAE LB
SRR

ERLEBREZTERABESRE, X
R-ERFRBHREFABARRZETE
fEim 2 BRTAR ko



318

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T

325 G
FHE

BRREAT » 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F[Eiks

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ R B

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. [BREFTE (&)
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the BRE ITEBARAESESE, TS
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock PRATREZ &ZEE: ()\ANREKRHD
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the IR TR B B STz W (&
date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock R (AR B RMH AR EEF L B HFI A&
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five R HBEEBLF 2 FHNTHE,
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BN IEMT A AEERE K
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. RERARSIEENEF
2015 Options —E-hFERE
The following 2015 Options were outstanding during the year: FR, UTFERESABE_Z—RF
REAR T
2022 2021
—E—= —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price HK$ of options  price HK$  of options
per share 000 per share '000
hnFESE g i)
TEE BREHA 1B BREZA
BRET T4 BRAT T
At 1 January n—HA—H 6.912 4,738 6.912 5,935
Exercised during the year FRITE 6.912 (4,738) 6.912 (1,197)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H - - 6.912 4,738

31 December 2022

= —&#+—-A=+—H
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. R AERTEI (&)

2015 Options (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the outstanding
2015 Options as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

“E-AFRRE(R)
RBERR-_T-—AFEREETHEA
TTEBERENITEE RITEBMT .

Exercise period
1765

4 September 2018 to 3 September 2022

—E-N\FAANBE-_ZE-__FHLA=H

4 September 2019 to 3 September 2022

—E-NAFAANBE-_Z-_FHLA=H

2022 2021

—E-— —E-—F
Number of options Number of options Exercise price*
BIREHE B ES R IEE*
’000 ‘000 HKS$ per share
R T1n FRET
- 1,952 6.912
- 2,786 6.912

- 4,738

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’ s share capital.

The 4,738,000 (2021: 1,197,000) share options exercised
under the 2015 Options during the year, resulting in the
issue of 4,738,000 (2021: 1,197,000) ordinary shares of the
Companyfor a total cash consideration of US$4,173,000
(2021: US$1,065,000). An amount of US$1,803,000 (2021:
US$465,000) was transferred from the share option reserve to
share capital upon the exercise of the share options, as further
detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

TEETTHRIATRE T, HARE]ZRA
BHEMBUNE, RIEREZTEERNTH

%

IEo

FR, _ET-—HAFEREET
4,738,000 ( Z—ZFE——4. 1,197,000
) BREREITE, SIBAREET
4,738,0000% ( —ZE = —%. 1,197,000
i) LAk, 81 S RER4,173,000
E(ZF=—%F. 1,065,000%7TT )
INEF TG SR M sE 30 — ettt BERARE
EE1T{E %, 1,803,000E (-8 = —
. 465,000% 7T ) B FIEE R I8 AR 4
REERERA,
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. [BREFTE (&)
2018 Options —ET-)\FERE
The following 2018 Options were outstanding during the year: FR, UTFERESABE_-_Z—/\F
BRI T
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price HK$ of options  price HK$  of options
per share 000 per share '000
InFEF5 T
TEE BREHE 1TEE BREHAE
BRET T4 BRAT T
At 1 January n—A—H 15.317 24,963 15.310 33,547
Exercised during the year FRTfE 15.244 (907) 15.088 (2,177)
Forfeited during the year FRRU 15.403 (618) 15.357 (6,407)

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 15.318 23,438 16.317 24,963
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2018 Options (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the 2018 Options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

31 December 2022

T+ =-A=+—H

M5 B =
31. BT & (/R
—B-\FERE ()

RIS EIR — 2 — /\F BRI T
RN TR AR EAI T,

follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Number of Number of Exercise
options options price* Exercise period
BREHE IS E TEE* TfEH
’000 '000 HKS per share
T4 T BRET
6,523 6,954 15.056 24 December 2020 to 23 December 2025
—ECEF+-A-+HAE=E-AF+=-A=+=H
4,512 4,943 15.056 24 December 2021 to 23 December 2025
—F+ - A-t+WHBEE-_E-_RF+=-A=+=H
9,429 9,859 15.056 24 December 2022 to 23 December 2025
B F+-A-+WBEE-_ZE-RFt+-A=-+=H
925 1,025 15.056 24 December 2023 to 23 December 2025
=+ AZtTERAEE-_AF+HA=+=H
62 62 18.400 29 March 2021 to 28 March 2026
——F=AZt+hBEZZE=_"F=H=+/\H
125 125 18.400 29 March 2022 to 28 March 2026
R CHF=AZTAREZZRF=A=1+N\HR
125 125 18.400 29 March 2023 to 28 March 2026
—=F=A-thBE-_ZT-_~F=A-+/\H
125 125 18.400 29 March 2024 to 28 March 2026
—ECNF=A-—tABRE_ZE-_ARE=A=-F+NH
256 316 17.952 23 December 2021 to 22 December 2026
B+ -A-+=RE-_T-AFt+-A=-+=H
639 677 17.952 23 December 2022 to 22 December 2026
B+ -A-+=ZRE-_T-_AFt+-A=-+=H
642 677 17.952 23 December 2023 to 22 December 2026
— =+ -_A-+=HE-ZE-_X"Ft+=-A=+=AH
75 75 17.952 23 December 2024 to 22 December 2026
—E-NF+ A+ =ZHRE-_T-AFt+-A=-+=H
23,438 24,963
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment Y M EETERRLARET, AN A]

in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in

the Company’ s share capital.

ZIRAEFHEMIAU N, RIEKEZ
TTE1E A 7%
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31.

32.

31 December 2022
R F+=R=A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2018 Options (continued)
The Group recognised a share option expense of the 2018
Options of US$1,226,000 (2021: US$296,000) during the year.

The 907,000 (2021: 2,177,000) share options exercised
under the 2018 Options during the year, resulting in the
issue of 907,000 (2021: 2,177,000) ordinary shares of the
Companyfor a total cash consideration of US$1,768,000
(2021: US$4,235,000). An amount of US$566,000 (2021:
US$1,354,000) was transferred from the share option reserve
to share capital upon the exercise of the share options, as
further detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
23,438,000 2018 Options outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 23,438,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of US$60,844,000 (including US$14,796,000
transferred from the share option reserve to share capital).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 22,670,809 2018 Options outstanding, which
represented approximately 1.73% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 233 to
234 of the financial statements.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, which are applicable to
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, profits of the PRC
subsidiaries, as determined in accordance with the applicable
accounting rules and regulations in the PRC, are available
for distribution in the form of cash dividends to the Company
after the PRC subsidiaries have (1) satisfied all tax liabilities;
(2) provided for losses in previous years; and (3) made
appropriations to the statutory reserve funds. The Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
funds until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital.

31.

32.

i AR N F] o 2022 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE k&

BRAESTE (&)

—E-)\FERE(E)
REBRFEARNRE - — \FRRER
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—4£. 296,0003 7T )o

FR, ZT— )\ FER#EIET07,000
M=—ZZF = —4%. 2,177,00017 ) B& A%
HEEITE, 5IBAR RE1T907,000/%
(= ——%. 2,177,0000% ) @A,
#3845 K18 5AE1,768,000F T ( — T —
—% . 4,235,000 7T ), AT IREHS
TI30#E — S RFul, BIRIEEITHE,
566,000 T ( =& = —4. 1,354,000
EL)NZECHBEREREEEER
Z’KO

Rk EHR, K2R A% HF23,438,000
PEARITERN T — \FERE, BE
AARERNERNERE, BHITESN
RITEOBRE e BHEINETT
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fEHE, MHZBHARRQRRBITRNEIE
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33. LEASES

As lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 14) to Shanghai
Huali, under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease
term of 20 years. The terms of the lease generally also require
the tenant to provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was US$14,358,000
(31 December 2021: US$14,488,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenant are as follows:

Seiass DITSERERME

33.#HE

ERBHBEA
AEBRE-—BESHEREE, BHEE
EE(MF14) BT EgES, B
HA20% . %M AR — MR IR R B A
HMAREBEERTAMERESARED
B, AEERFARRNEAERAL
14,358,000 T ( —E-—&+=-fA=
+—H. 14,488,000 7T ), HFEH
R HRE IS,

= — —E—F+ZA=+
—H, AEERBENAUTRBLERLNIR
RRAEEREAFARMRA SR
R

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—4F

US$’000 US$'000

£ FET

Within one year —F R 14,641 15,754
After one year but within two years —F R ERMEN 14,641 15,534
After two years but within three years MEBRER=FR 14,641 15,534
After three years but within four years —FERERENFR 14,641 15,534
After four years but within five years WFEZERAFR 14,641 15,534
More than five years BiBERF 32,636 50,190
105,841 128,080

The Group received advance rental payments of US$3,041,000
from Shanghai Huali as at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: US$3,606,000).

R-BE-——F4+=-A=+—H, &
E U B +E EE h 38 A 43,041,000
En(Z2=—F+=ZA=+—H.
3,606,000 7T )o
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33. LEASES (continued)

As lessee

The Group has various lease contracts for land use rights,
offices and dormitory properties used in its operation. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land
from the owners with lease periods of 42 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of offices and dormitory properties generally
have lease terms between 2 and 20 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning andsubleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
Detailed information regarding right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities is set out in notes 15 and 27, respectively,

to the financial statements.

(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

33.HE (&)

fERAERA
AEEHBERAREXFEEN LR
. RAERBEEWENETHES
4, DIEBIEER —RIERZTAMEE K
BREL, HEN T42E50F, M
RIEZE LA ERNGR, BTeEE
SERZIE, BAERBEWENE
H@EN T2E20F, —MMmE, &%
B mAEBEAINATEZ RS HEE
EAE,

HEREEENHERBEABNE
FHEF 1B 0 Bl 0 B 75 R MY RE15
K27,

(b) RESRFTEINEERE B

leases are as follows: IS¢
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
Ee FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 880 879
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ~ {FREEETER
assets 3,890 5,676
Expense relating to short-term leases  #245 EATH E 5 B89 S2 2,625 1,572
Total amount recognised in profit RIBRERN B LR
or loss 7,395 8,127

(c) Total cash outflows for leases and non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in
note 39 to the financial statements.

(c) HERSMLABENALEREEE
AHEREMIFERERE N R
RMTEIIAKEE



2022 FE#HE ANNUAL REPORT 2022 « #EHr@Es AR A7 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 325

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2022 Ejﬁ%*&% Mq.%—I

T+ =-A=+—H

34. COMMITMENTS 34. &

AEERRERMRANTERALRE.

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

2022 2021
—E—— —E-—F
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI, ([BREME.
Property, plant and equipment M. BE KR 284,304 283,019

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 35. BHt X5 REEER

BALANCES

(a) Name and relationship (a) BEEKRER

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

RS B BEAKENREE
Huahong Group and its subsidiaries
FEIKREREFLF

— Hua Hong International Inc. (“Huahong International”)

— FEMERARADR ([ FOERE )

— Shanghai Huahong Zealcore Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Huahong Zealcore”)

— DEETEEMRARDR ([ FMRT )

— Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Hongri”)

— BT EEREFARAR(M4R )

— Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Development
Center (“ICRD”)

— PEEXREEAETRO ([ EXEHEMAE])

— Shanghai Hua Hong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd.
(“Jitong”)

— PEEMRERAFRNERAR ([ 5@ 1)

— Shanghai Huali

— bBES

NEC Corporation (“NEC”)*
NEC Corporation ([ NEC | )*

— NEC Management Partner, Ltd. (“NEC Management”)
— NEC Management Partner, Ltd. ([ NEC Management |)

26.60% shareholder of the Company
FiA%26.60% 2 A A IR
Subsidiary of Huahong Group

A EEFRA]
Subsidiary of Huahong Group

FEHEEFRA
Subsidiary of Huahong Group

FEHEEFRA
Subsidiary of Huahong Group

EWEEFRA
Subsidiary of Huahong Group
U EEF LA

Shareholder of the Company
(before 19 February 2021)
RRBRE (KRB —F_A+NBZA)

Subsidiary of NEC
NECF A 7]
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31 December 2022
T _F+=-A=+—H

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(a) Name and relationship (continued)

B[b.FWEMERE R (&)

(a) BBREE (&)

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

BB A8 SR B BIER
SAIL and its subsidiaries
EEBAREFAT

— Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd. (“SAIL")

— BB ERR AR ([ LG8 )
— Sino-Alliance International Ltd. (“SAIL International”)
— Sino-Alliance International Ltd. ([ SAIL International )

Huahong Technology Development
EINFER

— Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(“Huahong Real Estate”)

— PEETEXARAA([FLEX])

— Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd.
(“Huajin”)

— DEERYEERERAR(] 28 )

Holding company of Sino-Alliance
International Ltd.

Sino-Alliance International Ltd. F)4ZEA% A 7]

14.5% shareholder of the Company

FiiR14.5% 2 AR BIIR

Associate of the Group

ZN SN

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development

FARRERT AT

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development

FUMRERF AT

* NECR-ZE-—#_-_HA+NAHEHE
RALR G AT E R HUt, NECK
B FRE]THEREBNEGE 7o

* NEC disposed of all of its shareholdings in the Company on
19 February 2021. From then on, NEC and its subsidiaries
are no longer related parties to the Group.
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—E-—Ft-H=t—H

35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 5. A ARG RAEeR (&)

BALANCES (continued)

(b) BHLIRZ
AEENFAD BB T ETATER

(b) Related party transactions
The Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year: 5
2022 2021
. S —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
Ep F=T
Sales of goods to related parties MR 7 S B
(note (i) ( BEEG) )
Huahong Zealcore* FEHT B 9,711 6,404
ICRD* SRR E R R 4,394 8,742
Hongri* LINER 3,342 3,376
Purchases of goods from related B S BEEE R
parties (note (ii)) ( BisE(iy )
Hongri# ra* 18,422 18,247
Huahong Zealcore* TEATE A 825 688
Shanghai Huali EEET 69 519
Jitong FTim 20 249
NEC Management NEC Management - 233
Rental income from a related party K BEEE: SRR S YA
(note (iii)) ( B sE(iii) )
Shanghai Huali# gER 14,254 14,497
Service fees charged by related B 7 WO RS &
parties (note (iv)) ( B=E(iv) )
Huajin 48 400 338
Huahong Real Estate e - 28
Interest expense charged by a a7 AR T B 2
related party (notes (iv) and (vi)) ( BEEExIvV) B2 (vi) )
Huahong Real Estate EITEHE 714 795
Expense paid on behalf of a related X BB LRI
party (note (v)) ( BRE(V) )
Shanghai Huali LBEh 32,728 30,760
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35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(b) Related party transactions (continued)

The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Note (i) The sales of goods to related parties were made

according to the pr